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EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
Board of Regents
201 Welch Hall
(734) 487-2410
October 30, 2012

9:00 AM – 9:45 AM

Athletic Affairs Committee

Room 201

9:00 AM – 9:45 AM

Educational Policies Committee

Room 205

10:00 AM – 10:45 AM

Faculty Affairs Committee

Room 205

10:00 AM – 10:45 AM

Student Affairs Committee

Room 201

11:00 AM – 11:45 AM

Finance, Audit and Investment Committee
Room 201

1:30 PM

Regular Board Meeting

Room 201

AGENDA
Call to Order
Roll Call Attendance
Tab A

Open Communications

Tab B

President’s Report

Tab C

Introduction of Presidential Scholars

Tab D

RESOLUTION: Cultural Heritage Months

Tab E

RESOLUTION: Jim Streeter

Tab F

Proposed Minutes of the September 18, 2012 Regular Board Meeting

CONSENT AGENDA
Section 1
Section 2
Section 3
Section 4
Section 5

Emeritus Faculty Recommendations
Academic Affairs Administrative/Professional Appointments/Transfers
Staff Appointments
Staff Separations/Retirements
Emeritus Staff Recommendations

REGULAR AGENDA
Student Affairs Committee
Section 6
Report and Minutes
Athletic Affairs Committee
Section 7
Report and Minutes
Faculty Affairs Committee
Section 8
Report and Minutes
Educational Policies Committee
Section 9
Report and Minutes
Section 10
Commencement Speaker and Honorary Degrees
Section 11
Board Policy Update: Degrees, Certificates and Requirements for
Graduation (6.1.1)
Section 12
Board Policy Update: Undergraduate Grades and Academic Progress (6.2.1.3)
Section 13
New Charter Awards
Section 14
Charter School Board Members Appointments
Finance, Audit and Investment Committee
Section 15
Informational Reports and Financial Updates
Section 16
Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Information
as of June 30, 2012
Section 17
FY2013-14 General Fund, Scholarships, Awards and Grants Requests
Section 18
FY 2013-14 State Capital Outlay Request
Section 19
Refunding Portions of Current Debt and New Borrowing
Section 20
Approval of Lease Agreement for Livonia Campus
Section 21
Approval of Lease Agreement for Detroit Campus
New Business
Section 22
Section 23
Section 24
Section 25
Section 26

New Policy: University Code of Ethics (3.1.10)
New Policy: Workplace Violence Prevention (3.1.11)
New Policy: Employment of Relatives (3.1.12)
Policy Revision: Political Activity – (3.2.6)
Policy Revision: Supplemental Employment Non-Bargained Employees:
(3.1.6.1)

Chairman’s Comments
Adjournment

Tab A

EMU Board of Regents
Public Communications
201 Welch Hall
Tuesday, October 30, 2012 at 1 :30 p.m.
FIVE PEOPLE HAVE REQUESTED TO SPEAK- as of October 29, 2012

FIVE CONFIRMED SPEAKERS -6 minutes each

1. Ruhul Mumen, J.D. (Bangladeshi-American Caucus)-Authorizing a new Charter School
in the city of Hamtramck.
2. Matthew Norfleet (Student Government)-Priorities of Student Government
3. Zhaawanong Nimkii Kuew /Linda Cypret-Kilbourne (Michigan Coalition Against Racism
in Sports and Media)- Decision to use the Huron logo on new band uniforms
4. Glen Qualls -Resurrection of the Huron logo
5. Matthew Evett (University Faculty Senate)- Faculty Senate Affairs

President's Report
EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
Board of Regents' Meeting
October 30, 2012
Today we celebrate another milestone in our ongoing mission to revitalize Eastern
Michigan University -- the dedication of Phase II of our $90 million self-funded Science
Complex. The new facility is the largest construction project in Eastern's history, offers
new labs, enhanced instructional technology, and a planetarium. It is truly a game
changer in terms of our ability to educate our students in the STEM (Science,
Technology, Engineering, and Math) areas that are critical to the state and to our nation.
According to the U.S. Department of Commerce, over the past ten years, growth in
STEM jobs was three times as fast as growth in non-STEM jobs. STEM occupations
are projected to grow by 17 percent from 2008 to 2018 compared to 9.8 percent growth
for non-STEM occupations. A recent market analysis tells us that 183 occupations in
Southeast Michigan and the State of Michigan will have wages higher than the median
wage. Of these 183 occupations, 25 percent are reliant on STEM and these
occupations are likely to grow 30 percent faster than non-STEM jobs over the next
decade. Eastern's Science Complex prepares STEM graduates.
The Science Complex is home to our Biology, Chemistry, Psychology, Geography and
Geology, and Physics and Astronomy departments. Thanks to our faculty, staff and
facilities team for their involvement in the creation of a beautiful academic environment
for student research and learning, and for their patience working adjacent to
construction. I would like to acknowledge our Board of Regents for its leadership on the
Science Complex and for approval of $90 million in bonds to fund the project. We
continue to seek funding from the state legislature for Strong Hall to complete the last
leg of this complex. Please join us at the dedication today at 3 p.m. in Room 158 of the
Complex.
Today, we are recommending for Board of Regents' approval a 2013-14 financial aid
budget of more than $38 million. If approved, this will represent a 78 percent increase
in aid over the past six years, and an increase of more than $2.6 million (7.5 percent).
We also welcome today the 2012 class of 16 Presidential Scholars who competed on
campus to receive our largest academic award, a four-year full scholarship. Our Fall
2012 incoming undergraduate class of 5,076 is our largest in history and they are bright
and eager to succeed on campus and in their future careers in Michigan.
Eastern's future is bright. Our campus community and alumni take pride in Eastern.
Many additional accomplishments are listed in the Appendix to this Report, which is
available on the University's website. Thank you, Chairman Wilbanks.
Susan Martin
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Recognition:
•

Steven Hurbis, EMU student and a member of the EMU Mock Trial, achieved the rare
distinction of a perfect score as an attorney and witness at the Ohio State University Mock
Trial Invitational. He also finished as the top-ranked attorney and witness at the tournament.
In addition, the EMU Mock Trial team won three top-ten attorney awards and two top-ten
witness awards at the invitational.

•

A graduate of the M.S. in Accounting program, Kimberly Kopka was awarded the "Best
Masters Student Paper Award" at the 2012 Midwest AAA.

•

Eaton Rapids' downtown has been named to the National Register of Historic Places thanks
to efforts made by EMU graduate students in the historic preservation program. The
city's downtown development authority contracted with the students who wrote the
nomination application. The process took more than a year and involved researching the
town's history.

•

Professor Vijaykumar Mannari (polymers and coatings technology) was awarded the
Michigan Green Chemistry Governor's Award at the 2012 Michigan Green Chemistry and
Engineering Conference. The award is recognition of success and innovation by the
awardee incorporating principles of green chemistry into their work.

•

The NAACP Ypsilanti/Willow Run Branch is honoring the faculty and staff of EMU for our
contribution to betterment of the University community in areas such as excellence in
teaching, services to the community, diversity enhancement and scholarships throughout a
variety of awards programs. Dean Michael Tidwell attended the presentation and accepted
the "Award of Distinction in Leadership and Excellence in Education" on behalf of Eastern at
the Second Annual Freedom Fund Gala Dinner Celebration, October 27 at the EMU Student
Center.

•

The College of Business has been named an "outstanding" business school by the
Princeton Review for the ninth consecutive year.

•

The College of Education has expanded its outreach in Asia with a new partnership
agreement with Korea National University of Education. The agreements were signed on
August 16 during a visit by Korean educators to Eastern.

•

A new partnership with the College of Education and Global Educational Excellence (GEE)
will pave the way for student teaching and job opportunities for EMU students and graduates
in the Middle East. The agreement was signed October 1. Both institutions pledged to
provide collaborative educational opportunities as GEE expands its operations into Jordan
and Dubai.

•

Eastern's mechanical engineering technology program (MET) is now accredited a distinction that will directly increase job opportunities for its graduates.

•

The nursing program at EMU was awarded accreditation when the Board of
Commissioners of the Commission on Collegiate Nursing Education (CCNE) met in early
October and reviewed for accreditation all nursing programs that hosted a spring 2012
on-site evaluation.
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•

Adam Meyer, director of the Disability Resource Center, is becoming recognized as a
national authority for disability issues in the educational environment. He was invited to lead
a workshop on significant documentation and process changes in the higher education
disability field for Nebraska and Iowa disability service providers on October 26.

Gifts & Grants:
•

The EMU McNair Program for Post Baccalaureate Studies has received a renewal award
from the U.S. Department of Education. Funding is awarded by the DOE with an initial
award of $220,000, and four noncompeting renewals. Full funding for this grant cycle is
expected to be $1.1 million over five years.

•

The Institute for Language Information and Technology (ILIT) has received $200,000
from Google, Inc. for the "Endangered Languages Project Technical Lead Succession
Agreement."

•

The Eastern Michigan Writing Project (EMWP) received a total of $60,000 in grants in
May and June 2012 from the National Writing Project under a program called "Supporting
Effective Educators Development (SEED)." The grants will help implement professional
development programs for teachers in schools within the area.

•

The inaugural Greg O'Dell Golf Outing raised more than $40,000 towards its goal of
endowing a $100,000 scholarship fund to benefit criminal justice students at EMU.

•

Kristine Ajrouch (Sociology) received a $30,000 grant to investigate the "Muslim Immigrant
Experience: Trends and Outcomes." She is one of only five recipients of the BORDERS
Awards in Immigration Research through the University of Arizona. Her aims are to
describe Muslim immigrants demographically and in terms of pre-immigrant migration and
social capital factors such as religious attendance and social network, and examine the
extent to which these factors explain linguistic, political/civic and economic integration.

•

Bradley Wilkerson (Information Assurance in Technology Studies) has received funding of
$20,000 from the U.S. National Security Agency under its Cyber Competition Awards. The
purpose of this grant is to provide support in the form of scholarship awards to the winners
of the Information Assurance High School Cyber-Security Competition.

•

Maria Milletti (Chemistry) has received a grant of $18,500 from the Jean Dreyfus
Boissevain Lectureship for Undergraduate Institutions program of the Camille and Henry
Dreyfus Foundation. The funds will be used to bring a leading chemistry researcher to
campus to give two lectures to our faculty, graduate and undergraduate student researchers
during the summer of 2013. In addition, this grant will support the summer research of two
undergraduate chemistry students working with faculty on projects.

•

The Institute for the Study of Children, Families and Communities (ISCFC) has
received $15,000 from Washtenaw County in support of the project, "Connecting Hamilton
Crossing: Developing Family Self-Sufficiency Education Programs for Subsidized Housing
Residents." This funding will support the development and implementation of a financial
self-sufficiency education program for the residents of Hamilton Cross, a redeveloped
subsidized housing project in Ypsilanti.
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Events:
•

The Fifth Annual "Lights Before Christmas" at the Toledo Zoo is on Saturday, Nov. 17.

•

Industry experts will share strategies in a search-marketing workshop, to be held on
Friday, Nov. 16.

•

EMU's open house for new and returning graduate students is scheduled for Saturday,
Nov. 10. An academic fair with faculty advisors and a financial aid presentation will be
available.

•

In an effort to educate the public about the pros and cons about the new Affordable Care
Act, Eastern hosted the seminar, "Everything You Need to Know About the Affordable
Care Act: A Community Teach-In," on Thursday, Oct. 25.

•

Parents and Family Weekend was held October 19-21. The weekend offered a way for
families to experience the excitement of Eastern's campus. Activities included a Friday
Frenzy Spirit Rally, several concerts, the EMU Alumni, Parents and Friends Tailgate and
the EMU v. Army football game.

•

More than 200 EMU and community participants attended the October 16 Association for
Jewish Studies Distinguished Lectureship Program, The Triangle Shirtwaist Factory Fire:
Out of Tragedy Comes Social Justice. The program was presented by Dr. Pamela
Nadell, Patrick Clendenen Chair, Women's and Gender History, American University.

•

The Arrive Alive Tour was held on campus October 15. The program uses high-tech
driving simulators, an impact video and a number of other resources to allow those behind
the wheel to experience the potential consequences of texting while driving.

•

Explore Eastern took place on October 13. 670 students attended this year, compared to
509 last year (a 33% increase). With parents and guests, more than 1,900 people attended
the program, and 945 participated in campus tours.

•

The Fifth Annual Fashionality Fashion Week was held October 8-11. This year's theme,
"V," celebrated the hard work and dedication it takes to make fashion week a success.
Fashionality members are students interested in pursuing careers in fashion design,
marketing, public relations and communications.

•

Fall Major Fest, held October 8, is an event where students undecided on a major have the
opportunity to meet with faculty and staff in various academic departments in a festive
atmosphere which includes prizes and Learning Beyond the Classroom credit. 225 students
and 59 departments attended.

•

The annual "College Begins at Head Start" program was held October 2-11. More than
300 pre-school children and 150 parents and teachers from Ypsilanti and Whitmore Lake
Head Start programs toured campus, visited Rynearson stadium, explored the Mark
Jefferson rock garden and had lunch at the Student Center. The program, run by
Government Relations, is part of a nationwide effort to encourage Head Start families to
finish school and pursue a college education.
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•

The Department of World Languages hosted its Eighth Annual German-American Day
on October 1. This year's theme was "The Grimms are In: Celebrating 200 Years of the
Brothers' Grimm Fairy Tales and their American Adaption."

Of Note:
•

Veteran student enrollment at EMU has increased by 32% over the past four years, from
366 in fall 2009 to 483 in fall 2012.

•

The reverse transfer agreement with Washtenaw Community College was signed
Friday, Sept. 21. The agreement will help students obtain their associate degree through
credits accumulated at EMU.

Athletics Highlights:
•

Men's Cross Country: Terefe Ejigu finished third at NCAA Pre-Nationals. He also was
named MAC Male Scholar Athlete of the Week (Sept. 20), claimed the Bubble Buster title at
the University of Toledo and won his second consecutive Spartan Invitational.

•

Women's Cross Country: The team took fourth place at the Notre Dame Invitational.
Victoria Voronko turned in a third place finish.

•

Football: EMU beat Army 48-38 at Rynearson Stadium for their first win of the season.
It was also Band Day at EMU with 12 local high school bands from all over the state of
Michigan performing with the EMU Band at half-time. Nearly 800 high school students
participated.

•

Football: Alex Gillett was named a semifinalist for the William V. Campbell Trophy. He
was among six MAC semifinalists.

•

Football: Bronson Hill was selected as the National Running Back of the week (October
13) by the College Football Performance Awards. In addition, Hill was named the MAC
Conference male Scholar Athlete of the Week (October 14).

•

Football: Garrett Hoskins was named the John Mackey Tight End of the Week (October
24). It is the first time since 201 O that an EMU student-athlete has been selected for the
honor.

•

Men's Golf: Brian Churchill-Smith shot a career-low 54-hole tally to finish as the runner-up
at the 28th Annual Georgetown Intercollegiate with a four-under par 209.

•

Women's Golf: Meredith Fairbairn finished second at the MAC Preview Invitational,
October 15-16, and the team finished third.

•

Softball: For the ninth straight year, the EMU softball team has been ranked among the
top-20 in all Division I schools in team GPA The Eagles earned the ninth spot with a GPA
of 3.552 last year.
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•

Women's Volleyball: Rachel laquaniello was named one of ten NCAA women's volleyball
student-athletes who excel both on and off the court who were selected as finalists for the
2012 Senior Class Award Championship.

•

Wrestling: Aaron Sulzer, Jared Germaine and Nick Whitenburg are ranked in the MAC
Preseason Poll. Sulzer is tied for first at 157 lbs., Germaine is third at 125 lbs., and
Whitenburg is third at 197 lbs. The Eastern team is ranked fifth in the MAC Preseason Poll.

* * * * *

Tab C

2012-2013 Presidential Scholars

The Honors College proudly introduces the 2012-2013 Presidential Scholars. These remarkable
students represent the best of EMU. Each student is already actively engaged in outstanding
academic, service, and leadership work.
Shahana Ahmed, from Warren, Michigan, is pursuing a major in Biology and a minor in
History. Shahana graduated from Warren Mott High School.

Rachel Bentley, from Cincinnati, Ohio, is pursuing a major in Secondary Education-Math and a
minor in Spanish. Rachel graduated from Turpin High School.
Tiffany Browne, from Garden City, Michigan, is pursuing a major in Secondary Education
English Language and Literature. Tiffany is a graduate of Garden City High School.

Danielle Clevenger, from Rochester, Michigan, is pursuing a major in Psychology. Danielle is a
graduate of Rochester High School.
Taylor Gakle, from Saline, Michigan, is pursuing a major in Nursing. Taylor graduated from
Saline High School.

Ryan Goodcase, from Novi, Michigan, is pursuing majors in Psychology and Biochemistry.
Ryan graduated from South Lyon High School.

Shelby Hallenbeck, from Flat Rock, Michigan, is pursuing a major in English Language and
Literature and a minor in Journalism. Shelby graduated from Huron High School.

Hannah Hilbert, from Indianapolis, Indiana, is pursuing majors in Anthropology and German
and a minor in Religious Studies. Hannah is a member of the EMU Forensics Team. She
graduated from Fishers High School.

Elise Hiskens, from Ann Arbor, Michigan, is pursuing a major in Early Childhood Education.
Elise originates from Australia. She is a graduate of Huron High School.
Nicole Lomonaco, from Wyoming, Michigan, is pursuing a major in Apparel Design and a
minor in Theatre. Nikki graduated from Wyoming Park High School.

Emily Lundh, from Canton, Michigan, is currently undecided about her major. Emily is a
member of the EMU Women's Soccer Team. She graduated from Salem High School.
Isabelle McCormack, from Canton, Michigan, is pursuing a major in Nursing. Isabelle
graduated from Salem High School.

Alexa Salsbury, from Delta, Ohio, is pursuing a major in Biochemistry. She graduated from
Pike-Delta-Senior High School.

Mohammad Siddiqui, from Canton, Michigan, is pursuing a major in Health Care
Administration. Mohammad graduated from Star International Academy.

Samantha Weaver, from Lake Orion, Michigan, is pursuing a major in Secondary Education
English Language and Literature. Samantha graduated from Lake Orion High School.

Yukiko Roy, from South Lyon, Michigan, is pursuing majors in Nursing and Japanese. Yukiko
graduated from South Lyon High School

TAB D

RESOLUTION
Recognizing Cultural Heritage Months
at Eastern Michigan University
Whereas, Eastern Michigan University recognizes that respect for cultural differences is
important, and seeks to demonstrate an appreciation of human diversity by providing an
atmosphere of mutual respect; and,
Whereas, Eastern was cited for its commitment to campus diversity in the annual
"America's Best Colleges" published by U.S. News and World Report; was given the
designation of "Best Midwestern College" by The Princeton Review for the tenth
consecutive year; and, was recognized by Diverse Issues in Higher Education for the
ninth consecutive year for its growing number of African American graduates; and,
Whereas, African-American, Arab-American, Asian/Pacific-Islander American, Latino
American and Native-American people have all distinguished themselves, have made
significant contributions to the history of the state of Michigan and to the United States,
and continue to enrich our nation intellectually, socially and culturally; and,
Whereas, September 1 5 through October 1 5 has been established as National Hispanic
Heritage Month, and celebrated at Eastern as Latino Heritage Month; and,
Whereas, the month of November has historically been designated as National Native
American History Month; and,
Whereas, the month of February has been established as Black History Month; and,
Whereas, the month of May has been recognized nationally as Asian/Pacific-Islander
Heritage Month, and is celebrated at Eastern in the month of March; and,
Whereas, the month of April has been designated National Arab-American Heritage
Month; and,
Whereas, Eastern Michigan University recognizes the contributions and achievements of
these cultures by celebrating with educational, social and cultural programs.
Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved, that the Eastern Michigan University Board of Regents
calls upon the campus community to join the President of the United States, the Governor
of the great State of Michigan and communities across the Nation in recognizing the
many contributions of these cultures by honoring these observances and by dedication to
the pursuit of equality.
October 30, 201 2

TAB E

RESOLUTION
Recognition of Jim Streeter
Whereas, Jim Streeter, Eastern Michigan University Associate Athletic Director for
Media Relations, has closed out his exemplary career on October 1 9, 2012 after 39 years
of service to the University and its athletics program; and,
Whereas, he was the longest tenured Division I sports information director in the state of
Michigan, the dean of all Mid-American Conference sports information directors, and
only the third director in the history ofEastern's Athletic Media Relations Office; and,
Whereas, Jim's outstanding professionalism, kindness, leadership and unwavering
support of EMU sports have been recognized by his co-workers, students and industry
peers; and,
Whereas, he was instrumental in the development and maintenance of the athletics
department's archives that include game programs, game video, statistics and news
releases dating back to the founding of the athletics program; and,
Whereas, as a proud alumnus of Eastern, Jirn was inducted into the Eastern Michigan
University Athletics Hall of Fame in 2004.
Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved, that the Eastern Michigan University Board of Regents
congratulates Associate Athletic Director for Media Relations Jirn Streeter for his
outstanding career and commends him for the honor and distinction he has brought to
Eastern Michigan University.
October 30, 201 2

TAB F

EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
Board of Regents Meeting
September 18, 2012

These are the proposed minutes of the September 18, 201 2 Board of Regents meeting.

The meeting of the Eastern Michigan University Board of Regents was called to order by
Chairman Wilbanks at 1 :05 p.m. in Room 201, Welch Hall, Ypsilanti, Michigan.
The Board members present were:

Regent Floyd Clack, Regent Beth Fitzsimmons, Regent Michael Hawks, Regent Mike
Morris, Vice Chair Francine Parker, Regent Tom Sidlik, Regent James Stapleton and
Chairman Roy Wilbanks.
TAB A

OPEN COMMUNICATIONS

Secretary Reaume announced that six people requested to address the Board of
Regents. Each speaker was given up to 5 minutes to speak.

1. Dr. Mary Schneider and Dr. Amy Knopps (EMU Marching Band) - Present new
marching band uniforms and speak to the overall outcome of the project

2. Laura Schulz and Stacy Morris (Young Alumni Council) - Update on the Young
Alumni Council
3. Howard Bunsis (EMU-AAUP) - Contract Negotiations

4. Matthew Norfleet (Student Government) - Priorities of Student Government

5. Desmond Miller (Student Government) - Special thanks to Board of Regents

6. Katie Mercer (EMU Dare to Dream and the Latino Student Association) - EMU
Dare to Dream organizer/EMU Residency Policy

TAB B

President's Report
EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
Board of Regents' Meeting
September 18, 2012

We are pleased to announce that we have the largest incoming class of new
undergraduates in the University's 163-year history and the largest freshman class in a
decade! New undergraduate enrollment for the fall opening term (includes freshmen,
transfers, and others) totals 5,076 this fall -- an increase of about 6 percent from the
previous high of 4,751 in 2001. The freshman class of 2,595 increased by 21 percent
from 2,130 last fall. This is the largest incoming class of new freshmen since 2003. At a
time when Michigan's population is declining and the projection of Michigan high school
graduates is expected to fall from 100,009 in 2012 to 91,972 in 2022, Eastern grew!

The incoming freshman class also shows distinctly higher grades than last year, and is
more diverse as well. Final figures indicate that 725 freshmen had a high school GPA of
3.50 or higher, compared to 532 last fall, an increase of 36 percent. In addition, 877
freshmen earned a high school GPA of 3.0 to 3.49, compared to 663 last year -- a 32
percent increase. Further evidence of the improved academic standing of students is
enrollment in Eastern's respected Honors College -- up from 165 last fall to more than
370 this fall. Minority students, defined as African American, Hispanic or Native
American, total 892 compared to 632 last year, a rise of 24 percent.
As a result of the enrollment gains and the reinvestment in upgrades to campus housing,
more students are living on campus. This fall, 1,840 first-time students are living in
EMU residence halls and apartments, about a 19 percent increase from last fall's total of
1,549. Overall, 3,343 students are living in EMU housing this fall, an increase of 1 1
percent from last year's total of 3,013. I would like t o thank everyone who helped with
move-in and orientation to help new students feel at home at Eastern.

I would like to congratulate the work of the faculty contract bargaining teams, led by
Susan Moeller, EMU-AAUP president and professor of accounting and finance, and
James Carroll, associate provost and associate vice president for research and
administration, and interim dean of the Graduate School. A tentative agreement was
reached two weeks before the expiration of the current contract in a positive spirit of
cooperation and mutual respect. I also would like to acknowledge our clerical secretarial
bargaining teams for their hard work on difficult issues, led by Michael Shumaker, chief
negotiator for UAW CS local 1975 and library assistant, and David Trakul, director of
employment relations and policy. All contracts in the past four years have been
accomplished internally without outside counsel and without any interruption of work.
As I begin my fifth fall at Eastern, I thank the Board of Regents and all of our students,
faculty and staff, alumni, friends and supporters for what we have accomplished together
in the past four years. Fall enrollment has grown from 228,520 student credit hours to
246,059. Total student headcount has grown from 21,926 to 23,502. After capital
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improvements of over $200 million, the campus looks beautiful and the $90 million
science complex and renovation of Pray-Harrold and residence halls create a vibrant
campus atmosphere to live and learn in. The endowment is at a record $51,413,003 with
completion of the "Invest, Inspire." campaign which raised $56 million. In the past four
years, University House has hosted 241 events and 10,798 guests. We have hired over
100 new faculty and authorized 37 searches for next fall. At the same time, we have kept
college affordable by keeping tuition low with an average increase of2.86 percent and
increased financial aid to a high of $35.7 million. In the past two fiscal years we have
eliminated 111 administrative staff positions totaling $5,890,807 and increased spending
on Academic Affairs by $4. 7 million, from 52. 7 percent of our budget in FY 11 to 54
percent in FY 12. We are embarked on strategic planning for the future and will utilize a
market analysis and benchmarking studies to inform the strategic plan process this fall.
Campus safety is paramount and investment in a crime response team, dispatchers,
cameras and technology have resulted in a decline in burglaries from 47 in 2008 to 13 last
year. Crimes that do occur are swiftly solved. We have a stable and strong leadership
team that loves Eastern. Our future is bright and strong.
This is a time of exceptional momentum, growth, pride and excitement on campus. The
full President's Report is available on the University's website. Thank you, Chairman
Wilbanks.
Susan Martin
TAB C and TAB D

PROPOSED MINUTES OF THE JUNE 19, 2012 REGULAR BOARD MEETING
and PROPOSED MINUTES OF THE JULY 24, 2012 SPECIAL BOARD
MEETING

Vice Chair Parker moved and Regent Clack seconded that the proposed minutes for the
June 19, 2012 Board meeting and the July 24, 2012 special meeting be approved as
submitted.
Motion Carried

CONSENT AGENDA
Regent Sidlik moved and Regent Clack seconded that the items on the Consent Agenda
be approved (Section 1-7)
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Section 1

EMERITUS FACULTY RECOMMENDATIONS

Recommended that the Board of Regents grant Emeritus Faculty status to one ( 1 ) former
faculty member: Max Plank.
Section 2

ACADEMIC AFFAIRS ADMINISTRATIVE/PROFESSIONAL
APPOINTMENTS/TRANSFERS

Recommended that the Board of Regents approve two (2) Administrative/Professional
appointments (Steven Pemecky and Susan Risi) and eight (8)
Administrative/Professional transfers (Daniel Clemans, Suzanne Gray, Martha Kinney
Sedgwick, Mary Sue Marz, Lynn Nybell, Kathleen Stacey, Hung-Lian Tang and Wade
Tornquist).
Section 3

ACADEMIC RETIREMENTS/SEPARATIONS

Recommended that the Board of Regents approve twelve (12) retirements (Karen Camey,
Jeffrey Duncan, Sue Grossman, Robert Holkeboer, Mary Keren, Russell Larson, Sheila
Most, Steve Moyer, Max Plank, Lynne Rocklage, John Waltman and Alida Westman)
and eight (8) separations (John Bulmer, Nina David, David Dobrzykowski, Anna Maria
Hong, Michael McGuire, Andrea Schollaert, Gennaro Scigliano and Steven Webber) for
the reporting period May 1, 2012 to August 31, 2012.
Section 4

FACULTY APPOINTMENTS

Recommended that the Board of Regents approve one ( 1 ) new faculty appointment for
the 2012-2013 academic year: Edwin Joseph.
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Section 5

STAFF APPOINTMENTS

Recommended that the Board of Regents approve fifteen (15) staff appointments for
reporting period June 1, 2012 to August 31, 2012: Alan Diez, Katie Elverson, Tyler
Jones, Brian Filipiak, Lorne Robertson, Robert Densic, Jerron Parker, Blaire Trevil,
Nicole Bober, Diane Brinson-Days, Tauheed Rashad, Lauren Richardson, Amanda
McVety, Kathleen Gale and Molly Tiernan.
Section 6

STAFF SEPARATIONS/RETIREMENTS

Recommended that the Board of Regents approve fifteen (15) staff separations and
retirements for the reporting period of June 1, 2012 to August 31, 2012: Kesha Robley,
Sharreen Boone, Raymond Martin, Paula Stoll, Raymond Lynch, Cali Crawford, Sam
Bowles, Alvin Dumas II, Bree Brouwer, Mary Moos, Robin Allen, Ernest Bentley,
Martha Costa, Anthony Valdez and Carlos Costa.
Section 7

EMERITUS STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS

Recommended that the Board of Regents grant Emeritus Staff status to six (6) staff
members: Ada Barrett, Henry Braunz, Veda Jenkins, Loretta Newman, Teri Papp and
Art Timko.
Motion Carried

5

REGULAR AGENDA

Section 8 and Section 9

MONTHLY REPORT AND MINUTES - STUDENT AFFAIRS COMMITTEE and
POLICY REVISION: 8.1:5.B - STUDENT CONDUCT CODE
Regent Fitzsimmons moved and Regent Clack seconded that the Student Affairs
Committee Agenda for September 18, 2012 and the Minutes of the June 19, 201 2
meeting b e received and placed on file; and, that the Board approve the revision to
section 5.B of the Student Conduct Code (Board Policy 8.1).
Motion Carried
Section 10

MONTHLY REPORT AND MINUTES - ATHLETIC AFFAIRS COMMITTEE

Regent Hawks moved and Regent Morris seconded that the Athletic Affairs Committee
Agenda for September 18, 2012 and the Minutes of the June 19, 2012 meeting be
received and placed on file.

Motion Carried
Section 1 1

REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF COACH MURPHY'S EMPLOYMENT
AGREEMENT

Regent Hawks moved and Regent Stapleton seconded that the Board of Regents approve
the amended employment agreement for Head Men's Basketball Coach Rob Murphy. A
roll call vote was taken: six - approve (Wilbanks, Clack, Fitzsimmons, Hawks, Morris,
Stapleton), two - not approve (Parker, Sidlik).
Motion Carried

6

Section 12

MONTHLY REPORT AND MINUTES - FACULTY AFFAIRS COMMITTEE

Vice Chair Parker moved and Regent Clack seconded that the Faculty Affairs Committee
Agenda for September 1 8, 2012 and the Minutes of the April 17, 2012 meeting be
received and placed on file.
Motion Carried
Section 13

MONTHLY REPORT AND MINUTES - EDUCATIONAL POLICIES
COMMITTEE

Regent Sidlik moved and Regent Hawks seconded that the Educational Policies
Committee Agenda for September 18, 2012 and the Minutes of the June 19, 2012
meeting be received and placed on file.
Motion Carried
Section 14

DELETION OF ACADEMIC PROGRAM

Regent Sidlik moved and Vice Chair Parker seconded that the Board of Regents approve
the deletion of one existing degree program: the Spanish Literature Minor.
Motion Carried
Section 15

BOARD BYLAW AMENDMENT: 5.08.01

Regent Sidlik moved and Regent Clack seconded that the Board of Regents approve the
amendment of bylaw 5.08.01 regarding the University officer assigned to the Student
Affairs Committee.
Motion Carried

7

Section 16

MONTHLY REPORT AND MINUTES - FINANCE, AUDIT AND INVESTMENT
COMMITTEE

Regent Morris moved and Regent Sidlik seconded that the Board of Regents receive and
place on file the Minutes from the June 19, 2012 Finance, Audit and Investment
Committee meeting, the Agenda for the September 18, 2012 meeting and the
Informational Reports and Financial Updates.
Motion Carried

Section 17

COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT BETWEEN EASTERN
MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY AND THE EMU AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF
UNIVERSITY PROFESSORS (AAUP)

Regent Morris moved and Regent Clack seconded that the Board of Regents approve the
new collective bargaining agreement between Eastern Michigan University and the EMU
Chapter of the American Association of University Professors (EMU-AAUP) and
authorize the President to execute the Agreement on behalf of the Board of Regents.
Motion Carried

Section 18

COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT BETWEEN EASTERN
MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY AND UAW INTERNATIONAL UNION AND LOCAL
1975 (EMU CLERICAL/SECRET ARIAL UNIT)

Regent Morris moved and Vice Chair Parker seconded that the Board of Regents approve
the new collective bargaining agreement between Eastern Michigan University and UAW
Local 1975 (EMU Clerical/Secretarial Unit) and authorize the President to execute the
Agreement on behalf of the Board of Regents.
Motion Carried

8

Section 19

GROUND LEASE AGREEMENT (EMU AND YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP)

Regent Hawks moved and Regent Morris seconded that the Board of Regents approve the
Addendum to the Ground Lease between Eastern Michigan University and Ypsilanti
Township originally dated September 26, 1986 and previously amended on March 1 ,
1988.
Motion Carried
Section 20

FINANCING TASK FORCE

Regent Morris moved and Regent Hawks seconded that the Board of Regents approve the
creation of a task force consisting of the Chair of the Finance, Audit and Investment
Committee of the Board, the President of the University, and the Chief Financial Officer
and Treasurer of the Board of Regents for the purpose of investigating and
recommending to the Board the refunding of the series 2009 A&B variable rate bonds as
well as recommendations to fund up to $10 million in new capital projects on Eastern
Michigan University's campus.
Motion Carried

Chairman Wilbanks called for any further business to be brought before the Board.
There being none, the meeting was adjourned at 2:02 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Vicki Reaume
Vice President and Secretary to the Board of Regents
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SECTION:

1

DATE:
October 30, 2012

BOARD OF REGENTS
EASTERN MICIDGAN UNIVERSITY
RECOMMENDATION
EMERITUS FACULTY STATUS
ACTION REQUESTED

It is recommended that the Board of Regents grant Emeritus Faculty Status to two (2) former
faculty member: Sharon Erenburg, Department of Economics from 1 987 to 2012 (25 years).
She retired August 3 1 , 2012; and Sue Grossman, Department of Teacher Education from
1 995 to 2012 ( 1 7 years). She retired August 3 1 , 2012.
STAFF SUMMARY
The Collective Bargaining Agreement between Eastern Michigan University and the Eastern
Michigan University Chapter of the American Association of University Professors (AAUP)
provide that a faculty member who has served the University for at least fifteen ( 1 5) years
may be nominated for Emeritus Faculty Status upon retirement.
The nomination for this individual has received the support of the department head, the dean
of the college, and the Provost and Vice President.
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS
None.
ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION
The proposed action has been reviewed and is recommended for Board approval.

Univedity Executive Officer
Provost\and Vice President

Date

EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
EMERITUS FACULTY STATUS RECOMMENDATION
October 30, 2012
Dr. Sharon Erenburg

Professor, Department of Economics from 1 987-201 2
(25 years)
Doctoral
Masters
Baccalaureate

University of Illinois
University of Illinois
Sangamon State University

Dr. Sue Grossman

Professor, Department of Teacher Education from 1 995-201 2
( 1 7 years)
Doctoral
Masters
Baccalaureate

M ichigan State University
Western Michigan University
Michigan State University

EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
Division of Academic Affairs

EMERITUS FACULTY STATUS RECOMMENDATION
E.C0r7C()'l l CS
The Department of
recommends the awarding of Emeritus
Faculty Status for the following retiring/retired faculty member:

u_ _

Name of Faculty Member: _

_

Current Status/Rank at EMU:
Date of Hire at EMU:
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(Minimum of 15 years of service required)

Please complete the following infomrntion on the retiring faculty member for whom you are submitting this recommendation.
This infonnation is needed for inclusion in the EMU Faculty/Staff/Student Directorv.
Home Address:

:-Mail Address:

Home Telephone:
Name of Spouse:

Degrce(s)/lnstitutions/Year: Baccalaureate:
Masters:
Doctoral:
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Please Attach a Brief Statement of Support to this Form

}180

Emeritus Faculty status is contingent upon the approval of the Board of Regents. The above information will be
kPnt nn fi Jr, in thf' Pmvos;t'� ()ffit'f'
f{cc.ommenctc<l hv
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Date

Provost

Date

/
Date

Ucan

Date Submitted to Board of Regents

Please forward this completed form to:
Debbie Clearwater
Academic Affairs, 1 06 Welch Hall

8/20/1 2

EASTERN

MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY

ECONOMICS
emich.edt1

Education First

August 30, 20 1 2

Dr. Kemper Moreland,
We are pleased to recommend that Professor Sharon J. Erenburg be awarded the status of
Emeritus Professor. She deserves this recognition for her 25 years of dedicated teaching,
mentoring, research and service to the Economics Department, the college, Eastern Michigan
University, and to the economics profession at large.
Students at the introductory, intennediate and graduate levels have admired and respected Dr.
Erenburg throughout her 25 years at EMU. They have continually noted the extreme rigor with
which she expects them to learn complex relationships among components of macroeconomic
activity, while admi1ing the clear and dedicated support and mentorship she provides in helping
them understand this material. While requiring students to understand complex, mathematical
relationships, Dr Erenburg also insisted that they communicate this knowledge in clearly written
English. Her dedication to written communication has also been demonstrated by her active
involvement in EMU's "Writing Across the Cun-iculum" program. Students have officially
recognized Dr. Erenburg's excellent perfonnance as a professor by awarding her the "Student
Appreciation Award for Excellence in Teaching" in all but one year since its inception in 1 999.
Dr. Erenburg also received the University Alumni Association's Distinguished Faculty Award.
Dr. Erenburg has excelled as a scholar through her published articles and extensive oversight of
student research. She has published research on public infrastructure and its impact on economic
growth, wages and productivity in highly respected economic journals including Applied
Economics and Journal of Macroeconomics, with one of these articles cited over 90 times by
other authors. Her published research also includes analysis of international interest rate
differentials on U.S. economic growth. Dr. Erenburg has also promoted and supported research
by students b y requiring a research paper in her graduate Macroeconomics class, several
extensive papers in her Applied Macroeconometrics class, and supervising over 25 culminating
Master's research projects and theses. Her support of student research has enabled students to
demonstrate highly sought technical skills, leading to their placement in high-level research and
policy positions in govenunent, business, finance, and consulting firms throughout the world.
Many of her students have also successfully completed Ph.D. and other advanced degrees, clue
significantly to skills they learned from Dr. Erenburg.
In the area of service, Dr. Erenburg served admirably on numerous depmtment, college, and
university committees. This includes numerous years of service on Faculty Council including
serving as its Vice-President, serving on at least four university-wide search committees,
extensive service on the General Education Assessment Committee, and service on numerous
depmimental search, perso1mel, and cuniculum committees.
It has been an honor and privilege to work with Dr. Erenburg whose intellectual rigor, integrity
and dedication have inspired us to strive for the standards she has set and achieved. It is an equal
honor and privilege to nominate her for well-deserved recognition as Emeritus Professor.
A

�

./
David Crary, Ph.D
Associate Professor of Economics

Jennifer Rice, Ph.D.
Associate Professor of Economics

703 Pray Harrold, Ypsilanti, MI 48 l 97 • 734.487.3395 • Fax: 734.487.9666

EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
Division of Academic Affairs
EMERITUS FACULTY STATUS RECOMMENDATION
Teacher Education
recommends the awarding of Emeritus
The Department of
Faculty Status for the following retiring/retired faculty member:

Name of Faculty Member:

Sue Grossman

Current Status/Rank at EMU:
Date of Hire at EMU:

Professor
08/31/12
Retirement Date: ------------

Fa ll 1 9 9 5

Number of Years at EMU:

17

(Minimum of 1 5 years of service required)

Please complete the following infonnation on the retiring faculty member for whom you are submitting this recommendation.
This infomiation is needed for inclusion in the EMU Facultv/Staff/S tudent Directorv.

Home Address:

Home Telephone: �----- E-Mail Address:
Name of Spouse:
1· g an S t a t e un_
1
· v e r s i· t Y - 1 9 6 5
�li· c l1_
D egree( s)/Ins ti tut i onsN car: Bacca laurea tc: ___
___ __________ ________________

Masters:

Wes tern Michigan University - 1 9 7 4

Michigan State University - 1 992
Doctoral: ------------------------

Please Attach a Brief Statement of Support to this Fom1
Emeritus Faculty status is contingent upon the approval of the Board of Regents. The above information will be
kept on file in the Provost's Office.

(nli":tl.r.: nrint)

n:ite

Derx111ment Heact' '\ l

Date

Provost

Date '

uean
Date Submitted to Board of Regents

Please forward this completed fonn to:
Nicki Banush
Academic Affairs, I 06 Welch Hall

8/3/04

EASTERN

MICH IGAN U N I V ERSITY
Education First

DEPARTMENT ! TEAC HER EDUCATION
0

emich.edu/coe/ted

June 14, 2012
Provost Kim Schatzel
106 Welch Hall
Eastern Michigan University
Ypsilanti, Ml 48198
Dear Provost Schatzel:
This is a letter to recommend Emeritus Faculty status for Dr. Sue Grossman, Professor of Teacher
Education (Early Childhood Education).
Prior to coming to Eastern Michigan University, Dr. Grossman taught at many levels. The period before
Sue came to Eastern Michigan University, she taught at the preschool, kindergarten, head start and
elementary levels. In addition, she taught at the college level at Kalamazoo Community College,
Western Michigan University, and Michigan State University.
At Eastern Michigan University (1995-2012), Sue taught courses in Early Childhood Education and she
supervised her students in field experience at the Eastern Michigan University Children's Institute.
During her time at Eastern Michigan University, Sue was active in the work of the Department of
Teacher Education and in the work of the Early Childhood Program area. In addition, Sue continued to
be active throughout her years at Eastern Michigan University in making presentations at local, state
and national conferences and in publishing her work in professional journals.
Because of her many contributions to the Department of Teacher Education, I strongly recommend that
Dr. Sue Grossman be awarded Emeritus Faculty status.

Sincerely,

Dr. Donald H. Bennion
Professor and Department Head

3 1 3 PC1rter Building, Ypsilanti, MI 481 97, 73-1.-187.3260 , Fax: 734.487.2 1 0 1

SECTION:

BOARD OF REGENTS
EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY

DATE:

October 30, 2012

RECOMMENDATION
ACADEMIC AFFAIRS ADMINISTRATIVE/PROFESSIONAL
APPOINTMENTSffRANSFERS
ACTION REQUESTED
It is recommended that the Board of Regents approve four (4) Administrative/Professional
appointments and two (2) Administrative/Professional transfers at the rank and effective date
shown on the attached listing.

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS

The salary would be absorbed in the 2012-2013 personnel budget.

ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION

The proposed action has been reviewed and is recommended for Board approval.

UniversitJ[ Executive Officer
Provost and Vice President

Date

2

ADMINISTRATIVE PROFESSIONAL HIRING REPORT
Name

Effective Date Salary

Rank

Jackson, Debra

1 0/08/2012

$ 82,000

Manager, Academic Collective
Bargaining Admin

Ostrowski, Julie

1 0/22/2012

$ 58,000

Marketing Manager

Teasdale, Scott

1 0/08/201 2

$ 55,078

Assistant Director, Bright Futures

Vandenberg, David

1 0/08/2012

$ 4 1 ,000

Physician Assistant Medical Director

Laporte, Marianne

8/6/2012

$ 1 03,205

Interim Associate Dean, College of Arts
& Sciences

Ikej i, Augustine

9/1 6/20 12

$ 90,000

TRANSFERS

Interim Department Head, Computer
Science

BOARD OF REGENTS

EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
RECOMMENDATION

SECTION :

DATE:
October 30, 2012

STAFF APPOINTMENTS
ACTION REQUESTED

It is recommended that the Board of Regents approve 8 staff appointments for the
reporting period of September 1 51, 2012 to September 3ot11, 2012.
STAFF SUMMARY

Of the 8 appointments, 4 ( 50 percent) are females, 4 (50 percent) are males.
Demographics of the total group indicate 6 Caucasians (75 percent) and 2 African
American (25 percent).
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS

The salaries are part of the University's 2012-2013 budget as approved by the Board of
Regents.
ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION

The proposed Board action has been reviewed and is recommended for Board approval.

l Jniv.6sit\ FxP-r.nti ve Office{

Date

3

EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
STAFF APPOINTMENTS
For Activity Date Reporting Period
September 1st, 2012 through September 30th, 2012
Last Name

First Name

Job Title

Karri ck

Daniel

Detect Lieut of lnvestig, PS

AP

CDSS3

Robinson

Stephanie

Dir Benefits Programs

AP

McMiller

Queen

Affirm Action/EEO Analyst

AP

Romanowski

Mark

Account Specialist

Talis

Kelli

E Class

Grade

Org Title

Current Hire
Activity Date Annual Salary
Date

Appt%

Ethnicity

Public Safety

9/10/2012

9/12/2012

80,000.00

100 WH

MGIL2

Employee Benefits

9/28/2012

10/1/2012

93,000.00

100 BL

PFHRl

Office of Diversity

9/24/2012

10/5/2012

46,000.00

100 BL

cs

05

Financial Ai d Office

9/10/2012

9/11/2012

34,352.00

100 WH

Fast Food Worker

FM

95

Eastern Eateries

9/11/2012

9/21/2012

22,422.40

100 WH

Barnier

Keith

Custodian

FM

06

Custodial Services

9/24/2012

10/5/2012

28,330.00

100 WH

Berwanger

Molly

Site Coordinator

PT

07

Stdy Chldrn and Family

9/24/2012

9/24/2012

42,203.00

100 WH

Spotts

William

Site Coordinator

PT

07

Stdy Chldrn and Family

9/24/2012

10/3/2012

42,203.00

100 WH

Presi dents Office: Human Resources
Prepared by: Employment Office

1 of 1

Gender
M

M

M

M

New Hire Report

BOARD OF REGENTS

EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY

SECTION:

DATE:
October 30, 2 0 1 2

RECOMMENDATION
STAFF SEPARATIONS/RETIREMENTS
ACTION REQUESTED

It is recommended that the Board of Regents approve 1 0 separations and retirements for
the reporting period of September 1 s1, 20 12 to September 3 0t1\ 2 0 1 2.
STAFF SUMMARY

O f the 1 0 separations and retirements there are 6 (60 percent) females and 4 (40 percent)
males. Demographics of the total group indicate 7 Caucasians (70 percent) and 3 African
American (30 percent).
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS

None

ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION

The proposed Board action has been reviewed and is recommended for Board approval.

Univelsit\Executive Officer

Date

4

EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERISTY
STAFF SEPARATIONS and RETIREMENTS
For Termination Date Reporting Period
September 1st, 2012 through September 30th, 2012
Current Hire
Date

Grade Org Title

Termination
Date

Last Name

First Name

Job Title

Lahrman

Matthew

Project Coordinator, JUT

PT

07

Inst for Language Info Tech ILIT

5/23/2011

8/24/2012 WH

Finley

Kellie

Fast Food Worker

FM

95

Eastern Eateries

9/12/2010

8/25/2012 WH

TERM END APPOINTMENT

Midkiff

Kathleen

Sr Evaluator/Recorder

cs

05

Office of the Registrar

5/27/1998

8/28/2012 WH

TERM RETIREMENT

Watt

Robert

Bus Consul Ml Smal Bus Dev Ctr

PT

08

Small Bus Devi Ctr

1/9/2012

8/30/2012 BL

Hatfield

Kelli

Site Coordinator

PT

07

Stdy Chldrn and Family

12/11/2006

8/31/2012 WH

Crowder

Susan

Mgr Regional Admissions

AP

AVAMl Adm Off Campus Outrh

9/24/2003

9/6/2012 WH

TERM AT WILL SEPARATION

HoldgreveResendez

Katie

Asst Director, Campus Life

AP

MGILl

Campus Life

8/13/2002

9/7/2012 WH

TERM PERSONAL

Klebba

Lisa

Dir EMU Autism Center

AP

MGIL2

Autism Collaborative Center

8/1/2011

9/8/2012 WH

TERM PERSONAL

Smith Jr

Carl

Stationary Engineer

FM

24

Heating Plant

7/1/2009

9/9/2012 BL

M

TERM PERSONAL

Chance

James

Database Specialist Sr

PT

10*

Doll Enterprise Apps and Serv

10/22/1984

9/10/2012 BL

M

TERM RETIREMENT

Presi dents Office: Human Resources
Prepared by: Empl oyment Office

E Class

1 of 1

Ethnicity

Gender Action Reason
M

M

TERM END APPOINTMENT

TERM PERSONAL
TERM PERSONAL

Separations

BOARD O F R E G E NTS
E A S T E R N M I C H I G A N U N I V E R S I TY

SECTION:
DATE:

October 30, 201 2

RECOMMENDATION
EMERITUS STAFF STATUS
ACTION REQUESTED

It is recommended that the Board of Regents grant Emeritus Staff Status to three (3)
staff members: James J. Chance, Database Specialist Senior in the Division of
Information Technology, who retired on September 7, 201 2 ; and Mary Murphy,
Library Administration Office Supervisor in the University Library, who retired on
June 30, 201 2 ; and Jim Streeter, Associate Athletic Director for Media Relations,
who retired on October 1 9, 201 2.
STAFF SUMMARY

According to University policy, retiring Administration Professional (AP), Athletic
Coaches (AC), Confidential Clerical (CC), Food Service, Custodial & Maintenance
(FM), Professional Technical (PT) or Clerical Secretarial (CS) staff members who
have served the University for at least fifteen (1 5) years, may be granted Emeritus
Staff Status. Such status is conferred based on the recommendation of the
President and approval of the Board of Regents.
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS

None
ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION

The proposed action has been reviewed and is recommended for Board approval.

U niversity Executive Officer
President

Date
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EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
EMERITUS STAFF STATUS RECOMMENDATION
The Department/Office of Division of Information Technology
Emeritus Staff Status for the following

reconunends the awarding of

retiring/retired staff member: Retired
Name of staff member:
Title upon retirement:

James J. Chance
Database Specialist Senior

Date of hire at EMU: 10/22/1984

Retirement date: 9/7/2012

Number of years at EMU: 28 years (Minimum of 15 years of service required)
Please complete the following information on the retiring staff member for whom you are submitting this recommendation.
This information is needed for inclusion in the EMU Faculty/Staff/Student Directory.

Home address:
Home telephone:

E-mail address:

Name of spouse:
Degree(s)/institutions/year: Baccalaureate:
Masters:
Doctoral:

Please attach 2 letters of support to this application
.\

�ecpP>91ended by

,I

J /

6e-fffutrnent Head,.and/or Suo�rvisor

l

I

f)ate

Recormnended by

Date

. lhte

Ex'eettt:iv"e C�uncii Member

Date

President

Date

Date Submitted to Board of Regents
After the Executive Council member signs, please forward this form and letters of support to: Cathie McClure, 1 0 1 Welch Hall.
Upon approval of the President, the recommendation will be sent to the Board of Regents. Emeritus Staff status is contingent
upon the approval of the Board of Regents. The above information will be kept on file in the Office of the Chief Financial
Officer.

EASTERN

MICH IGAN UNIV ERSITY
Education First"

DIVISION

of

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
it.emich.edu

September 4, 2012
To Whom It May Concern:

I wish to express my support for the recommendation that Eme1itus Staff status be
awarded to James J. Chance. James has dedicated 28 years of service to Eastern
Michigan University.

James' work ethic is beyond reproach, he has been very dependable and conscientious in
his role here in IT at Eastern Michigan University. He has provided excellent customer
service to those that we serve and is always pleasant and comteous to our constituents.
James is always supp01tive of his peers and colleagues, ready to assist them with
whatever task is at hand. I have always found James to be a great person to work with
and appreciate all of his work at Eastern Michigan University dming his tenure here.
James is a valued team member and we will miss him upon his departure for retirement
on September 7, 2012.
It is without reservation that I recommend James J. Chance be awarded Eme1itus Staff
status by the Eastern Michigan University Board of Regents. We in IT wish James all
the best as he moves to his next endeavor.
Sincerely,

Lynnette K.. Kose
Director, Enterprise Operations

1 1 8 Pray-Harrold, Ypsilanti, Ml 48197· 734.487.3 141 • Fax: 734.481.9290

EASTERN
M ICH I G A N UNIVERSITY

Education First

DIVISION of INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

September 1 2, 20 1 2

To Whom It May Concern :
I recommend that Jim Chance, retired EMU IT employee, be awarded the status of Emeritus Staff. For 28
years, Jim was a dedicated and reliable member of the university' s information technology team. Having
retired on September 7, 20 1 2, Jim l eft a legacy of excel lence that will be difficult to surpass .
In my tenure as CIO , I have had the honor to work with Jim on several occasions. His calm and friendly
demeanor made him a welcome member of several divisional committees, including the latest committee
focused on improving conflict management and team building skills within the IT division. Jim' s insight
ensured a program that will be usable, effecti ve, and results-oriented .
As a senior technologi st, Jim' s advice and counsel was often requested by more junior personnel within
the IT division as well as across the u niversity. His willingness to share his expertise with others kept his
phone ringing and his email full . His focus was always on improving service to our students, faculty, and
staff.
Personally, I enj oyed the times Jim and I had to talk. He was never focused on himself, but was always
wondering what more he could do to help others in the division or across the university succeed . His
dedication to EMU was commendab le.
In closing, Jim' s dedication to the university, his exceptional customer service, and his expertise
navigating the complexities of our technology systems made him an invaluable asset to the university. It
would be an honor to recognize him as an Emeritus Staff.
If you have any questions , please let me know.

Carl R . Powell, Ph .D.
Chief Information Officer

1 1 8 Pray Harrold, Ypsilanti , Michigan 48 1 97 • 734.487.3 1 4 1 • Fax: 734.48 1 .9290

EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
EMERITUS STAFF STATUS RECOMMENDATION
The Department/Office of University Library recommends the awarding of Emeritus Staff Status for the
following
retiring/retired staff member:

Name of staff member: Mary Murphy

Title upon retirement: Library Administration Office Supervisor, CS-06

Date of hire at EMU: September 23, 1985

Retirement date: June 30, 2012

Number of years at EMU: 27 years (Minimum of 1 5 years of service required)

Please complete the following information on the retiring staff member for whom you are submitting this recommendation.
This information is needed for inclusion in the EMU Faculty/Staff/Student Directo1y.

Home address:

Home telephone:

E-mail address:

Name of spouse:

Degree(s)/institutions/year: Baccalaureate: Morehead State University, Morehead, KY, Sullivan Business
College, Louisville, KY
Masters: _

_

_
_

Doctoral: ____

Please attach 2 letters of support to this application
Recommended by

Date

Depaitm �nt He�d l�r Sup ervif5l� .
_

Date

Executive Council Member

Date

President

Date

/Date!

Date Submitted to Board of Regents
After the Executive Council member signs, please forward this form and letters of supp01t to: Cathie McClure, 1 0 1 Welch Hall.
Upon approval of the President, the recommendation will be sent to the Board of Regents. Emeritus Staff status is contingent
upon the approval of the Board of Regents. The above information will be kept on file in the Office of the Chief Financial

Emeritus Staff Recommendation
For
Mary Murphy

STATEMENT OF SUPPORT
Mary began her career at EMU in the Library's Circulation area on September 23, 1985. In
January 1989, she was promoted to administrative assistant in the Library's Media Service
area. Two years later, in 1991, she transferred to Library Administration where she
remained until her illness that led to her retirement on June 30, 2012.

Mary has been known in the Library as an enthusiastic, cooperative employee, willing to
explore new projects and help out where needed. For many years she handled the Library's
United Way and in 1996 and 1997 single-handedly oversaw United Way for the entire
Division of Academic Affairs. During her many years in the Library's Administration
Office, she worked with human resources, facilities, and special events such as the EMU
Faculty Publications and Honored Faculty Annual Celebration. In addition to the above, she
worked with three administrators until the split of the department in 2001. She had a
wonderful working relationship with everyone in the Library and the campus community.
Mary led the Libraiy faculty/staff in a Wellness/Weight Loss Program. Her understanding
and patience in working with all departments on campus was an outstanding quality which
was acknowledged by all of those who knew her.

The year 2002 brought m any new challenges to the Library with a new administrator. Mary
was extremely helpful with her knowledge and flexibility in the ever changing Library. In
2010 Mary worked diligently on the search committee to hire a new library dean and her
expe1iise and valuable insight of the Library Administration Office was extremely
beneficial.
Maiy's dedication and loyalty to the faculty, staff and EMU community has been evident to
all those she has served over her many years with EMU. She was excellent in solving
issues within the depmiment and the EMU community. The Library Dean highly
recommends Mary Murphy for Emeritus Staff.

EASTERN MIC H IGAN U N IVE RS ITY
September 12, 2012

It is with great pleasure that I support the recommendation of Mary Murphy for Emeritus
Staff Status. I have known Mary since I began my EMU career in the summer of 2000.
Over the following decade I came to appreciate and rely upon Mary's steady presence
and knowledge in our administrative office as the library went through numerous changes
in structure, staffing and leadership.
I have been fo1iunate to see Mary is action both as a stalwart facilitator assisting myself
and other library personnel with payroll, human resources and physical plant matters. I
also had the privilege of working with Mary on all aspects of library administration
during my 6-month post as the interim University Librarian. Mary's institutional
memory and contacts, varied expertise and good judgment helped to ensure a smooth
transition from an outgoing administrator of many years, through my brief stint, to the
current head of the library. The value of her contributions were magnified as we
navigated these changes during the massive swing-space project on campus with
simultaneous work on the Science Complex and Pray-Hanold happening, and the library
taking on many additional tenants and related logistics.

Mary's eff01is on behalf of the library were not limited to traditional administrative
support roles. She was the leader of wellness and weight loss effo1is for all library staff
and faculty of which I was a beneficiary. Mary was also a major organizer and advocate
for United Way fundraising campaigns in the library and Academic Affairs.
Mary always displayed the highest degrees of integrity, responsibility, and
professionalism. She has been both a dependable team player and gracious leader. Mary
has been an asset to the University Library and Eastern Michigan University, and I am
happy to give my wholehearted endorsement of granting her emeritus status.
Sincerely,

Eric Owen
Associate Professor and Information Systems Librarian
University Library
Eastern Michigan University

University Library • Bruce T. Halle Library Building • 955 West Circle Drive • Ypsilanti, Michigan 48197
Phone: 734.487.0020 FAX: 734.487.8861 URL: http://www.emich.edu/halle

EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
EMERITUS STAFF STATUS RECOMMENDATION
The Department/Office of Athletics reconm1ends the awarding of Emeritus Staff Status for the
following retiring/retired staff member:
Name of Staff Member: Jim Streeter
Current Status at EMU: Associate Athletic Director/Media Relations
Date of Hire at EMU: Aug. 1 974

Retirement Date: Oct. 1 9, 201 2

Number of Years at EMU: 3 9 (Minimum o f 1 5 years o f service required)
Please complete the following information on the retiring staff member for whom you are submitting this recommendation.
This information is needed for inclusion in the EMU Faculty/Staff/Student Directory.

Home Address:
Home Telephone:

E-Mail Address:

Name of Spouse:
Degree(s)/Institutions/Year: Baccalaureate:
Masters:
Doctoral:
Please Attach a Brief Statement of Support to this Form and Two Recommendation Letters.
Recomnl"Jnded
by
"'

(please print)

Date

Department Head and/o� isor

Date

Executive Council Member

Date

Presi'ctent

Date ,-

Date Submitted to Board of Regents
After the Executive Council member signs, please forward this form to: Office of the President, 202 Welch Hall. Upon
approval of the President, the recommendation will be sent to the Board of Regents. Emeritus Staff status is contingent upon
the approval of the Board of Regents. The above information will be kept on file in the Business and Finance Office.
8/1 3/12

SECTION:

BOARD OF REGENTS
EASTERN MIClllGAN UNIVERSITY

DATE:

October 30, 2012

RECOMMENDATION
MONTHLY REPORT & MINUTES
STUDENT AFFAIRS COMMITTEE
ACTION REQUESTED
It is recommended that the Student Affairs Committee Agenda for October 30, 2012 and the
Minutes of September 18, 2012 be received and placed on file.

STAFF SUMMARY
The October 30, 2012 agenda for the Student Affairs Committee includes an update on the
Student Affairs Advisory Council and Student Government priorities, and a report on the CORE
National Alcohol and Drug Survey and the Student Alcohol Awareness Campaign.

In addition, the following announcements will be made : update on AATA bus and transportation
issues; Homecoming 2012 highlights; Outober; Greek Opening Convocation; Latino Herilage
Month and a preview of upcoming events.

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS
None

ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION
The prop�pas been reviewed anq,.� recommended for Board approval.

University Executive Officer
ProvJst and Vice President

Date
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Eastern Michigan University
Board of Regents
Student Affairs Committee

Tuesday, October 30, 2012
10:00 a.m.

Room 201
Welch Hall
Agenda

1. Approval of September 18, 2012 minutes

Regent Fitzsimmons

2. Update on Student Affairs Advisory Council and
Student Government priorities, including:

Student Members
of Student Affairs
Advisory Council

•
•
•
•

Status of Students with Disabilities organization
Tuition Equity (DREAM Act)
Civic engagement efforts
AATA bus passes

3. Report on the CORE National Alcohol and Drug Survey and the
Student Alcohol Awareness Campaign

Eric Ward, Kathy Walz,
Jeff Schulz and student
representatives

4. Announcements, including:
•
•

Update on AATA bus and transportation issues
Homecoming 2012 highlights

•
•

Outober
Greek Opening Convocation

•
•

Latino Heritage Month
Preview of upcoming events

John Lumm
Desmond Miller &
Allison Barke!
Oona Friedland
Jessica Potter, Cherese
Dafney, M uneeb Khan
Brittany Galloway
Melissa Ginotti

Eastern Michigan University
Board of Regents
Student Affairs Committee
Minutes of September 18, 2012
MEMBERS PRESENT
Regents:

Beth Fitzsimmons, Floyd Clack

Administration: Reggie Barnes, Perry Francis, Melissa Ginotti, Glenna Frank Miller, Kim Schatzel
Students:

Mallory Apel, Allison Barkel, Cherese Dafney, Oona Friedland, Brittany Galloway,
Brittany Gross, Trevis Harrold, Muneeb Khan, Bryan Michalowski, Desmond Miller,
R. Matthew Norfleet

GUESTS
Administration: (as signed in) Meredith Blaine, Liz Broughton, Marney Buss, Brian Fitzgerald, Mike
Fox, Tara Lynn Fulton, Robert Goffeney, Ellen Gold, Gloria Hage, Bob Heighes, Jesus
Hernandez, Erin Hunt-Carter, Rebecca Janes, Ann Klaes, Lisa Lauterbach, Kevin
Lawson, Amanda Lefeld, Calvin McFarland, Adam M eyer, Lourdes Mir-Orrange,
Nicholas Rachowicz, Ann Richards, Melissa Rosenblum, B.J. Selfridge, Kyle
Sutherland, Cynthia VanPelt, Kathy Walz, Eric Ward, Gretchen Ward, Casey
Wooster, Kaitlin Zies
Students:

Tashauna Culberson, Lacey Hoffman, Matthew Jones, Carly Miller, Myra Rawls, Ryan
Shell

Regent Fitzsimmons convened the meeting at 9:59am. Minutes of June 19, 2012 were approved as
presented.
Introduction of SAAC Members
Members of the Student Affairs Advisory Committee introduced themselves.
Fall Start up Report
Melissa Ginotti, director of Campus Life, Marney Buss, director of Residence Life, BJ Selfridge,
coordinator of Admissions Visit Programs, Matthew Jones, student, and Tashauna Culberson, student,
presented the 2012 Fall Start Up Report. Here are a few highlights:
• New financial aid procedures have been implemented which allow prospective students to know
what the potential scholarship offer is earlier in the process.
• Improvements have been made to Fast Track.
• Most residence halls are at capacity, with housing contracts up by 330 overall.
• More than 440 volunteers helped with move-in on Saturday. More than 150 New Student
Orientation Assistants helped during the four day orientation.

•

Fusion: First Four Orientation was held for FTIACs, Transfer, International, Graduate, Honors
College and Veteran students.

Student Government and Student Affairs Advisory Council Priorities

Student Government has 13 priorities for the 2012-13 academic year. R. Matthew Norfleet and
Desmond Miller shared the top three:
1) 24 hour access to a portion of Halle Library. This pilot program began on Sept. 10, 2012
2) Turbo Vote - which makes voter registration and absentee voting accessible
3) EMU Town Halls - which will provide a platform for student voices
The Student Affairs Advisory Council shared 2012-13 priorities. These include: Peer-to-Peer Book
Exchange, Improved Wi-fi in the Residence Halls, Development of an Annual Event to Connect EMU
and Ypsilanti, Winter Semester Student Activities Fair, Restructuring SAAC, Increasing Involvement of
Transfer and Commuter students, Creating more Activities to Engage Students, Increasing Alumni
Involvement, Beginning a Students with Disabilities Organization, and Implementing a Suicide
Prevention Campaign. The SAAC will meet every other week to work on priorities. They will report on
progress at the December 2012 meeting. This is not a concrete list - other items may be added.
Regent Fitzsimmons stated that she appreciates the Student Affairs Advisory Council and loves
working with them. She believes that they have many great ideas.
Medical Amnesty

Gloria Hage, general counsel, Jesus Hernandez, director of Student Conduct and Community
Standards, and R. Matthew Norfleet, Student Government president, presented a power point
related to a change to the Student Conduct Code - based on House Bill 4393. The change will address
the current code and make it consistent with state law. This change is being implemented to
encourage responsible decision making, and remove barriers to seeking medical attention when
needed. If an EMU student is underage and receives medical attention for excessive drinking, they
may apply for Medical Amnesty. Sanctions will be deferred and they must meet with a health officer.
If all requirements are met, they will receive a formal reprimand. This is a one-time option. If there is
a 2nd violation, the Student Conduct Code will apply.
A Medical Amnesty awareness campaign to share this information with the student body is being
planned.
Jesus recognized audience members who were involved in working on the code revision.
Regent Fitzsimmons asked if this change also relates to drugs. Jesus said that it applies only to
alcohol.
Announcements

•

Tara Lynn Fulton, dean of the Library, announced that EMU and U of M have entered into a
reciprocal library borrowing agreement. This includes most of the U of M libraries (not the

•
•

•
•
•
•

medical or law library.) EMU students must go to Halle to authenticate their library card before
borrowing books from U of M libraries. Tara handed out brochures and stated that information is
available on the Halle Library website. Regent Fitzsimmons thanked Tara and the staff of both
libraries for the work on this agreement.
R. Matthew Norfleet announced that 445 EMU students have completed the registration process
for Turbo Vote. Matthew thanked Leigh Greden, Desmond Miller, Jasmina Camo-Biogradlija and
Campus Life for help with this initiative. Students may sign up for this service at
em ich. tu rbovote. org.
Reggie Barnes announced that September 15 - October 15 is Latino Heritage Month. There are
many events scheduled for this time. Reggie also shared that L.I.V.E Welcome Week, designed to
engage first generation college students, was a success. There will be a BBQueer on September 18
at Big Bob's Lake House. Reggie's goal is to work with leaders to draw attention to issues of
diversity and inclusion. His desire is to be proactive, as opposed to reactive.
Glenna Frank Miller announced that the SAAC voted to change undergraduate commencement
regalia to dark green with EMU emblems on the lapels. The new regalia will be worn at the
December 2012 commencement
Provost Schatzel stated that she is honored to be part of the SAAC. She enjoys the interaction
with students.
Oona Friedland reminded everyone that the BBQueer is tonight. She also mentioned Outober which is national coming out month.
Glenna Frank Miller recognized the contributions that Cathie McClure and Teri Papp have made to
the Student Affairs Advisory Committee (Student Leader Group) over the years.

The meeting adjourned at 10:44am.
Respectfully submitted,
M ichele Rich
Student Affairs Committee Recording Secretary

SECTION:

BOARD OF REGENTS
EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY

DATE:

October 30, 201 2

RECOMMENDATION
ATHLETIC AFFAIRS COMMITTEE
ACTION REQUESTED

Working agenda for October 30, 201 2 and September 1 8, 201 2 minutes to be received and placed on file.

STAFF SUMMARY
•
•
•
•

Compliance System Review
EMU Sport Program and MAC Updates
Fundraising Initiatives Update
Good News from Athletics

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS

To be determined

ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION

The proposed Board action has been reviewed and is recommended for Board approval .

Derrick L. Gragg, Ed.D.
Director of Intercollegiate Athletics
Date: October 20, 201 2
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BOARD OF REGENTS
ATHLETIC AFFAIRS COMMITTEE
Tuesday, October 30, 2012
201 Welch Hall
9a.m.

AGENDA
A.

Approval of the September 18th, 2012 Minutes

B.

Compliance System Review

C.

EMU Sport Program and MAC Updates

E.

Good News from Athletics

D.

DG/kah
Agenda October 30, 2012.doc

Fundraising Initiatives Update

Eastern Michigan University
Board of Regents
ATHLETIC AFFAIRS COMMITTEE
Minutes of September 18, 2012
Members:
Regents: Chair Mike Hawks, Floyd Clack, Mike Morris, and Roy Wilbanks
Athletics: Dr. Derrick Gragg, Director of Intercollegiate Athletics

The Athletic Affairs Committee meeting was called to order at 9 a.m., by Regent Mike Hawks
Regent Hawks asked for a motion to approve the February 21, 2012. Motion made and
approved.

Athletic Goals 2012-13

Dr. Gragg presented the 2011-12 Goals for Athletics, which are based on pre-set criteria devised
by the Athletic Affairs Committee in 2005-06. This year's goals include a focus on:
• Continuing to implement NCAA certification improvement plans
• Integrity and commitment to NCAA rules and Regulations
• Academic Success of Student-Athletes
• Competitiveness within the MAC
• Athletic Fundraising
• Increasing Actual Attendance for Football and Basketball Games
Athletic Facility Improvement Updates

John Donegan and Scott Storrar provided an update of the most current athletic facility
renovations and improvements. Several of the athletic projects were at least partially or mostly
funded through private donations including the football locker room project, the tennis courts,
the baseball stadium brick fa9ade as well as the baseball locker room renovations. Regent Hawks
thanked John and Scott on a great job. Dr. Gragg reinforced a big thank you to John and his
crews for their outstanding work.
EMU Football Marketing Plan

Ted Coutilish, Associate Vice President for University Marketing and Tyler Jones, Director of
Athletic Marketing shared the 2012 football marketing plan. The Fox Sports Eastern Michigan
All-Access show was also spotlighted during the presentation. EMU All-Access can be seen on
selected Monday evening's beginning at 7:00 p.m. The show provides an inside look at EMU
football and men's and women's basketball programs with some features on EMU athletics as a
whole and academic success. The second episode aired last night and future shows will air on
October 15, October 29th and November 19111 • See attached. Regent Hawks remarked that the

new show is really good. Regent Wilbanks requested that Ted send the board members a copy of
the shows schedule and times.
Rob Murphy, Head Men's Basketball Coach Employment Agreement

Dr. Gragg recommended that the revised employment agreement for Head Men's Basketball
Coach Rob Murphy, which was signed on May 15, 2012, be approved and forwarded to the
entire Board for approval.
Good News from Athletics

Upcoming Athletic Events:
On September 19th1h, 5-7 p.m. Annual New Student-Athlete reception at the University House
where student-athletes get to interact with the university leadership. Dr. Martin and Dr. Gragg
along with the Student-Athletic Advisory Council members will be hosting this event.
Volleyball's home opener for the MAC season is the evening of October 1 st versus Ohio
University. Homecoming football weekend is set for October 6th versus the University of Toledo.
Volleyball's home opener for the MAC season is the evening of October 1 st versus Ohio University.

Homecoming football weekend is set for October 6th versus the University of Toledo.

Regent Hawks asked "are there any questions for Dr. Gragg?
Athletic Affairs Committee adjourned at 9:36 a.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Karen A. Hansen
Administrative Secretary
Intercollegiate Athletics
kah

Minutes, September 18, 2012.doc
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SECTION:

BOARD OF REGENTS

DATE:

October 30, 2012

EASTERN MICIDGAN UNIVERSITY
RECOMMENDATION

MONTHLY REPORT
FACULTY AFFAIRS COMMITTEE
ACTION REQUESTED
It is requested that the Faculty Affairs Committee Agenda for October 30, 2012 be received and
placed on file and the Minutes of the September 18, 2012 meeting be received and placed on file.
STAFF SUMMARY
The topic for the October 30, 20 1 2 Faculty Affairs Committee meeting is a discussion on EMU's
clinics.
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS
There is no fiscal impact.
ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION
The proposed action has been reviewed and is recommended for Board approval.

Univer$ity Executive Officer
Provosl and Vice President

Date
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EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
Board of Regents
Faculty Affairs Committee

October 30, 2012
10:00 - 10:45 a.m.
205 Welch Hall
AGENDA

Regular Agenda Items

Monthly Report and Minutes (Regent Parker, Chair)
Discussion Topic

"Clinics"

EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
BOARD OF REGENTS

FACULTY AFFAIRS COMMITTEE MINUTES
September 1 8, 2012
10:00-10:45 p.m.
205 Welch Hall

Attendees (seated at tables): J. Bishop, M. Bretting, R. Bullard, B. Brown-Chapell, D. Carr, J.
Carroll, R. Delph, M. Evett, E. Miguet, S. Norton, Regent Parker (Chair), M. Rahman, , D.
Selman, Regent Sidlik (Vice Chair) and Rebecca Sipe.

Guests (as signed in): D. delaski-Smith, A. Dow, G. Miller, A. Meyer, C. Powell, C. Shell, W.
Tornquist and D. Winder.

Regent Parker opened the meeting at 10:00 a.m.
Discussion: "The Honors College"

Dr. Rebecca Sipe, Director ofthe Honors College shared Honors College's enrollment for

academic year 2012-201 3 as the largest ever (1131 and still recruiting), and that 94.8% of
Honors students since 2009 have either graduated or are still enrolled at EMU and 92% of
Honors students who have enrolled at EMU since 2010 are still in good standing with the Honors
College.
Goals for the Honors College include: growth in enrollment; increased numbers of students
graduating with honors; enhanced advising and communications with upper level students to
support progress towards honors completion; strengthen communication and collaboration with
all constituents; strengthen curricular and non-curricular offerings; offer workshops and support
materials for students, advisors, department heads, and faculty; benchmarking; and develop a
plan for a comprehensive Honors Center.

Two Honors students remarked on their experiences; Elizabeth Miguet discussed her research
opportunities she has experienced, and Drake Carr presented his Study Abroad experience. Both
students brought examples of the work they have done with the assistance of Honors College
mentoring and support.
Two faculty members, Dr. Ronald Delph and Dr. Betty Brown-Chappell from the Honors
College described their experiences with Honors students, and the importance of the Honors
College at EMU, namely the importance of the unique classroom experience, lasting mentoring
relationships and co-curricular activities available to all Honors students. Dr. Betty Brown
Chappell told of the personal support she and her husband are giving to EMU through funding
scholarships and also the need for more minority and underrepresented Honors students, faculty
members and advisors.

Faculty Affairs Committee Meeting Minutes Sept. 1 8, 2012, continued

Dr. Mahmud Rahman pointed out that professors should be compensated for the extra effort that
goes into co-curricular activities and one-on-one mentoring.
Dr. Joe Bishop pointed out that reduced class sizes would benefit all students' learning
experience.
Regent Sidlik asked; what can the Regents do to help? Rebecca Sipe replied; create a
comprehensive Honors Center to meet the needs of residential and commuter Honors students.
To have Honors staff, faculty and students in one complex would be ideal. It was discussed to
start thinking about using the two buildings on campus that are currently unused, Jones and
Goddard.
Regent Parker thanked all and adjourned the meeting at 1 0:45 a.m.
Respectfully submitted,

Debbie Clearwater
Executive Assistant
Academic and Student Affairs

THE EMU PSYCHOLOGY CLINIC

6 1 1 W. CROSS STREET
YPSILANTI, Ml 4 8 1 97
PHONE: (734) 487-4987

The EMU Psychology Clinic is a training clinic operated by the EMU Department of
Psychology. The mission of the clinic is to provide convenient and affordable psychological
services to area residents, in the context of an academic training program. Low cost clinical
services - including psychological assessments and psychotherapy - are provided by clinical
psychology graduate students under the supervision of licensed EMU clinical psychology faculty
and several licensed psychologists from the Ypsilanti/Ann Arbor area. A broad range of
behavioral and emotional issues are treated at the EMU Psychology Clinic.

Role of faculty in the Clinic: Psychology Depa11ment faculty provide clinical supervision at the
Clinic. This entails meeting individually ( 1 to 1 Yi lu-/week for each meeting) and in group
formats (1 hr) with students on a weekly basis, monitoring and ensuring that effective and
empirically supported services are being delivered. Supervisors are also responsible for
reviewing students' clinical documentation and ensuring that it is completed in a timely fashion.
Client outcomes are systematically tracked at each session. Students and their faculty supervisors
review this data to guide their interventions. All sessions are recorded using webcams;
supervisors and their supervisees review session recordings during supervision meetings.
Impact on students: The most impo11ant proximal outcome indicator of the effectiveness of a
clinical training program is the ability of their students to match to pre-doctoral internship
training programs. The pre-doctoral internship is a full-year off-site residency that is highly
competitive, with only about 78% of eligible students matching to internship sites each year.
From 2006-20 12, we have achieved 96% internship match rate.

Impact on the community: The clinic operates on a fee-for-service basis, but fees are very low
compared to comparable services available elsewhere in the community. The need for
psychological services in the Ypsilanti/Aim Arbor area is substantial, and many of these needs
go unmet, particularly those of the most disadvantaged members of our community. At any
given moment, we typically have about 1 00 adult and 40 children/fan1ilies who are hoping we
can meet their needs for services. This is well beyond what we can realistically achieve. For
purposes of having a wide range of clientele for training purposes, it is nice, but as a commentary
on the state of the mental health system in our area, it is quite disheaitening. Given this scenario,
EMU is providing a huge service to a largely disenfranchised segment of the population.
To be more specific, from September 2008 through August 201 2 (i.e., since we instituted our
cmTent electronic medical record keeping system), we have delivered almost 8,000 hours of
(direct contact) psychological services to members of the community. If these hours had been
delivered by fully licensed practitioners, without the benefit of EMU's institutional support, the
cost to the community would have been roughly $800,000. Clearly, the EMU Psychology
Clinic is a major way that EMU gives back to the community.

SECTION

BOARD OF REGENTS
EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY

DATE:

October 30, 2012

RECOMMENDATION
MONTHLY REPORT
EDUCATIONAL POLICIES COMMITTEE
ACTION REQUESTED
It is requested that the Educational Policies Committee Agenda for October 30, 201 2 and the
Minutes of the September 18, 20 1 2 meeting be received and placed on file.

SUMMARY

The primary items for the October 30, 2012 Educational Policies Committee meeting include:
( 1 ) Emeritus Faculty Recommendations, (2) Academic Affairs Administrative/Professional
Appointments/Transfers, (3) Academic Retirements/Separations, (4) Commencement Speaker
and Honorary Degree Recipients, (5) Board Policy Updates, (6) New Charter Award, (7) Charter
School Board Member Appointees. A discussion on "Update on Advising and Retention" is
proposed.

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS

The fiscal impact of the actions taken is listed in the appropriate sections and in the Board
minutes.

ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION

The proposed action has been reviewed and is recommended for Board approval.

University\Executive Officer
Provost and Vice President

Date
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EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
Board of Regents
Educational Policies Committee
October 30, 20 1 2
9:00 - 9:45 a.m.
205 Welch Hall
AGENDA

Minutes (Regent Sidlik)

Monthly Report (Rhonda Longworth)

Consent Agenda Items
Emeritus Faculty Recommendations (Rhonda Longworth)
Academic Affairs Administrative/Professional Appointments/Transfers (David Woike)
Academic Retirements/Separations (David Woike)
Faculty Appointments (David Woike)

Regular Agenda Items
Commencement Speaker and Honorary Degree Recipients (Kim Schatzel)
Board Policy Updates (Rhonda Longworth)
New Charter Awards (Malverne Winborne)
Charter School Board Member Appointees (Malverne Winborne)
Discussion Topic
"Update on Advising and Retention"

EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
BOARD OF REGENTS

EDUCATIONAL POLICIES COMMITTEE MINUTES
September 18, 2012
9:00 a.m. - 9:45 a.m.
205 Welch Hall

Attendees: (seated at tables) J. Carroll, D. Clearwater, Regent Fitzsimmons, K. Kucera, R. Longworth,
Regent Parker (Vice Chair), Provost Schatzel, Regent Sidlik (Chair), M. Winborne and D. Woike.

Guests: (as signed in) D. Delaski-Smith, A. Dow, G. Miller, A. Meyer, C. Powell, C. Shell, W.
Tornquist and D. Winder.

Regent Sidlik convened the meeting at 9:00 a.m.

Discussion began with a request for updates to the committee on past retention plans and proposals. This
update will be provided at the October meeting, this will also include an update on advising initiatives.
We briefly looked at collaborative projects and how we can expand on successes of programs in
Athletics and Honors. In particular, Study Tables are being used, which are located in McKenny Hall,
close to Advising and career coaches with extended hours.

Report and Minutes (Section 13)
Regent Sidlik requested that the Educational Policies Committee Agenda for September 18, 2012 and
the Minutes of the June 19, 2012 meeting be received and placed on file.

Emeritus Faculty Status (Section 1)
Dr. Rhonda Longworth, Interim Associate Provost and Associate Vice President for Academic
Programming and Services, recommended that the Board of Regents grant Emeritus Faculty Status to
one ( 1 ) former faculty member: Dr. Max Plank, Professor, Department of Music and Dance.

Academic Affairs Administrative/Professional Appointments/Transfers (Section 2)
Dr. David Woike, Interim Assistant Vice President for Academic Affairs, recommended that the Board of
Regents approve two (2) Administrative/Professional appointments and eight (8)
Administrative/Professional transfers at the rank and effective date shown on the listing provided to the
Board.

Academic Separation/Retirement (Section 3)
Dr. David Woike, Interim Assistant Vice President for Academic Affairs, recommended that the Board of
Regents approve twelve ( 1 2) retirements and eight (8) separations for the reporting period May 1, 2012
through August 3 1 , 2012.
Faculty Appointments (Section 4)
Dr. David Woike, Interim Assistant Vice President for Academic Affairs, recommended that the Board of
Regents approve one (1) new faculty appointment for the 2012-13 academic year at the rank, salary, and
effective date shown on the listing provided to the Board.

Educational Policies Committee Meeting Minutes September 1 8, 2012, continued
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Deletion of Academic Programs (Section 1 4)
Dr. Rhonda Longworth, Interim Associate Provost and Associate Vice President for Academic
Programming and Services, recommended that the Board of Regents approve the deletion of one ( l )
existing degree program: the Spanish Literature Minor.

Board Bylaw Amendment: 5.08.01 (Section 15)
Dr. Kim Schatzel Provost and Vice President, recommended that the Board of Regents Bylaws 5.08.01
be amended as highlighted in the document provided to the Board. The change incorporates the recent
organizational changes at the university.

Charter Schools Update
Dr. Malverne Winborne, Director ofCharter Schools, gave an update on the Charter Schools'
application process:
o Twenty-one Phase One applications were received in March 2012, which were narrowed
down to ten applicants to paiiicipate in the Phase Two application process. Of these ten,
four will be recommended to the Board for approval.
o The results of the selection process will be shared with the Regents and a resolution will
be submitted empowering the Charter Schools Office to oversee granting of these new
chaiiers. This will be presented in final form at the October meeting of the Regents.
o The proposed new charter schools will:
• be located in southeast Michigan.
• serve at-risk and underserved populations.
• will be either K-5 or K-8 schools.
• have significant working relationships with EMU's College of Education,
along with other colleges and departments.
o Dr. Winborne is requesting approval to approach the four successful applicants. Via the
process approved at the June meeting, full approval for granting the charters will be
sought from the Board at the October meeting.
In response to Regent Sidlik's inquiry regarding why No1thern Michigan University had opened a
Charter School in our area, Dr. Winborne replied that EMU had reached its cap on chaiters at the time
the school was authorized, while NMU had not.

Special Topic Discussion "Tuition Differentiation"
Kevin Kucera, Associate Vice President, Enrollment Management, discussed the growing trend in higher
education of tuition differentiation:
o An approach to tuition where charges vary depending on such factors as field of study at
the graduate level or junior/senior standing at the undergraduate level.
o He argued for EMU undertaking a study as part of the effort to apply more rigor in tuition
related decisions. Such a study would not only determine how this approach would
impact market share/net revenues and maximize student enrollment, but shine light on
perceptions in the market place regarding EMU's value compared to competing
institutions and on reaction of specific student segments to various pricing scenarios.
o This approach is not without obstacles in terms of obtaining and analyzing information
from the applicant pool, applying this new pricing strategy at the both the graduate and
undergraduate levels, and handling the somewhat controversial aspects of charging by
cost of program.
o Both Regents Sidlik and Parker advocated moving forward with an action plan. They
would like to see follow-up in a subsequent meeting regarding implementation of this
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strategy. Regent Parker stated that, in terms of obstacles, students are more concerned
with the specific program rather than differential cost within the tuition structure.
o Provost Schatzel stressed the value of the model of tuition differentiation, moving from a
cost-based to a market-based approach.
Committee Assignments and Follow-Up

Rhonda:
• Report back to the committee on past retention plans and proposals at the October BOR meeting.
Kim:
• Start discussion of BOR meeting schedule to eliminate overlap so Provost can attend EPC, FAC and
SAC meetings, since all these areas report to her.
Kim/Kevin:
• Follow-up, in a subsequent committee meeting with implementation of tuition differentiation
strategy.

Regent Sidlik thanked those in attendance, and adjourned the meeting at 9:45 a.m.
Respectfully submitted,

Debbie Clearwater
Executive Assistant
Academic Affairs
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October 30, 2012

RECOMMENDATION

COMMENCEMENT SPEAKER AND HONORARY DEGREE RECIPIENTS:
ACTION REQUESTED
It is recommended that the Board of Regents approve Mr. Howdy S. Holmes, former driver in
the CART Championship Car series and President of Chelsea Milling Company, as
Commencement Speaker at the Sunday, December 16, 2012 commencement ceremony. In
addition, it is recommended that the Board award an honorary Bachelor of Science and honorary
Doctor of Business Administration to Mr. Holmes.
It is also recommended that the Board of Regents award an honorary Doctor of Education to Mr.
Phillip Jenkins, philanthropist and founder of Sweepster, Inc. at the Sunday, December 1 6, 2012
commencement ceremony.
SUMMARY

Mr. Holmes' and Mr. Jenkins' biographies follow on the next page.
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS
None
ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION
The proposed Board action has been reviewed and it is recommended for Board approval.

Unive�sity Executive Officer
Provost and Vice President

Date

Howard S. "Howdy' Holmes

Howard S. "Howdy" Holmes III, president and CEO of Chelsea Milling Company, is the eighth
generation Holmes in the business of flour milling, the fourth generation in Chelsea, Michigan,
and the third generation to market the company's Jiffy mixes, the first of which was created by
his grandmother in 1930.
Holmes delayed entry into the family business while pursuing a 20-year-long racing career that
saw him compete six times in the Indianapolis 500, where he was rookie of the year in 1979. He
raced in the CART series for 7 seasons (1979-1980, 1982-1985, and 1988), with
72[1] career starts, including the Indianapolis 500 each of those years except 1980. He finished
in the top ten 26 times, with his best finish in 2nd position in 1984 at Phoenix. In 1978, he was
the Formula Atlantic champion.

Holmes retired from racing after the 1 988 season. He revamped the business, which had been a
sole proprietorship, and brought in modem management practices emphasizing teamwork,
equality, and an open-door policy. During our hour-long interview, he was interrupted by a sales
staff member and later by the company's technical di.rector, who had one bag of devil's food
cake mix with shortening and another evidently without for Holmes's inspection. They discussed
the volume, color, and texture of the mixes.
Despite being a modem business executive, Holmes made the decision to eschew the use of a
personal computer, and he says many have expressed envy at the amount of free time he must
have today.

Besides his business career, racing also caused him to delay marriage, and he wed late, in 1 986,
before becoming the father of one son, Howard S. Holmes II, also known as Howdy. Howdy II
will be a senior in college in the fall and is working at the company for the fifth summer.

Phil Jenkins

Phil Jenkins is from Dexter, Michigan where he took over the family farm equipment business in
1 949. Soon after he collaborated on the preliminary design of the current attachable, walk
behind, self-propelled and airport runway sweepers for all types of equipment used in airports,
municipalities, agriculture and construction around the globe, and thus his company Sweepster,
Inc. was born.
He is a long standing member of the Depression Center's National Advisory Board and has
donated numerous large gifts to EMU and the University of Michigan toward treatment and
prevention of depression, including $2 million to support the research of a Depression Center
scientist, $2 million for a new building to house the Center (due to open this fall), and an
endowed professorship at the Center.
Part of his motivation for giving a gift for a professorship bearing his name, says Jenkins, is to
encourage others whose lives have been touched by depression to give to the U-M Depression
Center as well. "I used to give anonymously, but now give under my name," he says. "I want
others to say, 'lfhe does it I'll do it."'
In addition to his gifts to the Depression Center, Mr. Jenkins has also supported several other
areas of the University of Michigan's Health System, including the Department of Urology, as
well as non-profit organizations such as the Neutral Zone teen center and the Ann Arbor Hands
On Museum.
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EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
RECOMMENDATION

EDUCATIONAL POLICIES COMMITTEE
ACTION REQUESTED
It is requested that the Board of Regents approve a modification to Board of Regents policy 6. 1 . 1
Academic Programs and Requirements, Degrees, Certificates and Requirements for Graduation.
SUMMARY
The proposed policy revision updates the summary listing of all degree awards to reflect degree
and certificate awards approved by the Board of Regents since the last revision of the policy. It
also updates information regarding teacher certification to reflect cmTent certification processes
and requirements. The revision also clarifies details surrounding degree audit and graduation.
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS
There are no fiscal implications to these revisions.
ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION
The proposed action has been reviewed and is recommended for Board approval.

Univers\ty Executive Officer
Provost and Vice President

Date

Policies, Rules and Regulations
Chapter Name: Academic Programs and Requirements
Chapter No. 6.1.1
Issue: Degrees, Certificates and Requirements for Graduation
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The Board of Regents of Eastern Michigan University, on recommendation of the president and the faculty, confers the
following degrees:
Dnctomte in Education. Doctor of Philosophv

Specialist in Arts
Master of Arts, Master of Science, Master of Business Administration, Master of Business Education,.;'>laster ofArts
Teacbin'!, Master of Fine Arts, and Master of Public Administration. Master of Health Administratinn Haster of Liberar
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Bachelor of Fine Arts

Bachelor of Business Education
Bachelor of Business Administration
Bachelor of Music Education
Bachelor of Art Education

Bachelor of Music
Bachelor of Music Therapy
Bachelor of Science in Nursing
Bachelor of Social Work

Unclerrraduate Ce11ificate in African Studies

TEACHING CERTIFICATES

Teaching certificates are,i,ssu� the State Board of Education upon recommendation of Eastern Michigan University.
The University will recommend for provisional certification only those individuals who have satisfied the curricular
requirements in one of the many teacher education degree programs and successfnllv passed the appropriate State of
\lichigan Board of Education subject competencv tests {:vITTC).
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The Michigan State Board of Education issues six-year provisional certificates which always expire on June 30,
Certificates issued in January are valid for only five and one-half years.
Following are the certificates issued:
State Elementary Provisional Certificate*
Qualifies the holder to teach in elementary grades (KindergarteD,::;;,.'i and !llajors and minor�,through �e ;;l) in any I1Ubli�
school in Michigan. Also qualifies the holder to teach in a self-containl'd classroom KinJprgartcn through grade 8.
State Secondary Provisional Certificate*
Qualifies the holder to teach their major and minor in grndP.s 6-12,

'\'\\''.;--arm11mmDlliE!i!il
·······
Deleted: --

, , '�Im----

"·1rmtmlm!JfJIJlll!IIJ���l

\\
\\ Deleted: s

. sional
n____�����
rkal.l·e..
ro"'VJ
n,.
te�i,,,nc.,O
ec"'o"'n"'d"'a"al1..:C
tin
tautl<.
ry
ert
n..
ati�o..
oca
�ti,,.o,,
a..,
· d..,u.,c=
.::g�E�
-·___ \
L"P.,,,
..
e-"
S"'
•l�a�
d,.,
/o..,r_.},;.i
""ffi
'-""'c"e-"a,,
1·fi"'c"'
•..
sll
'-'-"'
,.,"'
,,,,,.,_V
'-'""
"""
- -�\
Deleted: in
\\ 1
Qualifies the holder to teach office and/or distributive subjects in schools offering programs that are reimbursed by
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federal and state funds allocated for that purpose.
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State Secondary Provisional Vocational Certificate in Trade and Industrial Education
\ \ Deleted: all subjects in grades 7 and 8 and
\ major and minor in grades 9-12.
Qualifies the holder to teach trade and industrial subjects in schools offering programs which are reimbursed by federal
and state funds allocated for that purpose.
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*A holder of this certificate who has completed Eastern's curricular requirements in art,�cchnojogv and design education,
selc•ct foreign lauguagc•s. music, physical educatiou,�ecial education is eligible to teach in the area of his or her
specialty in grades K-12, providing student teaching experience includes both elementary and secondary grades.
CERTIFICATE OF ADVANCED STUDIES IN CURRICULUM AND INSTRUCTION
GENERAL INFORMATION CONCERNING CERTIFICATION

Teaching certificates will be granted only to persons who are 18 years of age or older.
Continuing teaching certificates will be granted only to individuals who are citizens of the United States.
PROCEDURE FOR CONTINUING CERTIFICATION

The holder of an elementary or secondary provisional certificate who wishes to obtain a continuing certificate must meet
the following qualifications:
1. Be a United States citizen.
2. Teach successfully for three years subsequent to the issuance of the Michigan provisional certificate within the
validity of the individual's Michigan provisional certificate.
3. Earn 18 semester hours credit subsequent to the issuance of the Michigan provisional certificate in a planned course
of study. The first 18 semester hours on a master's program following the issuance of the provisional certificate is
acceptable, as are other planned programs with an approved teacher training institution. A person with an earned
master's or higher degree has met the academic requirements. The planned program should be approved in advance
by the Office of Academic Records and Teacher Certification.
The procedure after three years of successful teaching and the earning of 18 semester hours credit in an approved planned
program subsequent to the issuance of the provisional certificate is as follows;
The applicant will:
1. Obtain an application blank from the Office of Academic Records and Teacher Certification
2. Fill out the application as required and return it to the Office of Academic Records and Teacher Certification.
The office will
1.

Evaluate the credits earned and contact the school district of the candidate for recommendations concerning the
teaching experience to ascertain if the requirements for the continuing certificate have been met.

2. Recommend the candidate to the State Board of Education for continuing certification if the candidate's
qualifications are found satisfactory. The Michigan State Department ofEducation will mail the continuing
certificate to the candidate.
OTHER PROFESSIONAL CERTIFICATES
Certificate in Medical Technology
The American Society of Clinical Pathologists awards a certificate for registration as a medical technologist upon
successful completion of the medical technology curricurnm and the national examination conducted by the Board of
Registry of Medical Technologists.
Certificate in Occupational Therapy
The American Occupational Therapy Association issues a certificate in occupational therapy upon successful completion
of the Occupational Therapy curriculum and the board examinations administered by the American Occupational Therapy
Association. This certificate qualifies the holder for professional registration with the American Occupational Therapy
Association .
Certificate in Dietetics
The American Dietetic Association issues a certificate in dietetics upon successful completion of the coordinated dietetics
curriculum. Successful completion of the national examination administered by the American Dietetic Association results
in professional registration status with the American Dietetics Association.
Certificate in Speech Pathology
The American Speech and Hearing Association issues Certificates of Clinical Competence to individuals who present
satisfactory evidence of their ability to provide independent clinical services to persons who have disorders of
communication (speech, language, and/or hearing). An individual who meets these requirements may be awarded a
Certificate in Speech Pathology or in Audio logy. depending upon the emphasis of his preparation. Note: The program at
Eastern Michigan prepares individuals to meet the requirements in Speech Pathology only. Specific requirements may be
obtained from the advisers in Speech Pathology.
Licensure in Nursing
Graduates of the nursing program receive a bachelor of science degree and are eligible to qualify as registered nurses
through the Michigan State Board of Nursing Licensure Examination. This examination is given at times and places
specified by the State Board of Nursing, usually three times a year. Candidates should file application immediately after
official completion date of degree requirements. Upon receipt of application and all credentials, a temporary permit to
practice will be issued and examination date assigned. Licensure is granted upon successful completion of the State Board
ofLicensure Examination.
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REQUIREMENTS FOR GRADUATION
Each student will be responsible for the fulfillment of the requirements or their equivalents of the Eastern Michigan
University catalog in force at the time of his or her initial registration at a college or university or a subsequent catalog
including the one in effect at the time of his or her graduation.
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Policies, Rules and Regulations
Chapter Name: Academic Programs and Requirements
Chapter No. 6.1.1
Issue: Degrees, Certificates and Requirements for Graduation
Effective Date: 6-9-1960
Revision Date: 10-30-2012
DEGREES

The Board of Regents of Eastern Michigan University, on recommendation of the president and the faculty, confers the
following degrees:
Doctorate in Education, Doctor of Philosophy
Specialist in Arts
Master of Arts, Master of Science, Master of Business Administration, Master of Business Education, Master of Arts
Teaching, Master of Fine Arts, and Master of Public Administration, Master of Health Administration, Master of Liberal
Studies, Master of Music, Master of Occupational Therapy, Master of Science in Nursing, Master of Social Work
Graduate Certificates
Post-baccalaureate Certificates
Bachelor of Science
Bachelor of Arts
Bachelor of Fine Arts
Bachelor of Business Education
Bachelor of Business Administration
Bachelor of Music Education
Bachelor of Art Education
Bachelor of Music
Bachelor of Music Therapy
Bachelor of Science in Nursing
Bachelor of Social Wark
Undergraduate Certificate in African Studies
TEACHING CERTIFICATES

Teaching certificates are issued by the State Board of Education upon recommendation of Eastern Michigan University.
The University will recommend for provisional certification only those individuals who have satisfied the curricular
requirements in one of the many teacher education degree programs and successfully passed the appropriate State of
Michigan Board of Education subject competency tests (MTTC).

The Michigan State Board of Education issues six-year provisional certificates which always expire on June 3 0.
Certificates issued in January are valid for only five and one-half years.
Following are the certificates issued:
State Elementary Provisional Certificate*
Qualifies the holder to teach in elementary grades (Kindergarten-5 and majors and minors through grade 8) in any public
school in Michigan. Also qualifies the holder to teach in a self-contained classroom Kindergarten through grade 8.
State Secondary Provisional Certificate*
Qualifies the holder to teach their major and minor in grades 6-12.
State Secondary Provisional Vocational Certificate in Office and/or Marketing Education
Qualifies the holder to teach office and/or distributive subjects in schools offering programs that are reimbursed by
federal and state funds allocated for that purpose.
State Secondary Provisional Vocational Certificate in Trade and Industrial Education
Qualifies the holder to teach trade and industrial subjects in schools offering programs which are reimbursed by federal
and state funds allocated for that purpose.
*A holder of this certificate who has completed Eastern's curricular requirements in art, technology and design education,
select foreign languages, music, physical education, or special education is eligible to teach in the area of his or her
specialty in grades K-12, providing student teaching experience includes both elementary and secondary grades.

CERTIFICATE OF ADVANCED STUDIES IN CURRICULUM AND INSTRUCTION
GENERAL INFORMATION CONCERNING CERTIFICATION
Teaching certificates will be granted only to persons who are 18 years of age or older.
Continuing teaching certificates will be granted only to individuals who are citizens of the United States .

PROCEDURE FOR CONTINUING CERTIFICATION
The holder of an elementary or secondary provisional certificate who wishes to obtain a continuing certificate must meet
the following qualifications:
1 . B e a United States citizen.
2. Teach successfully for three years subsequent to the issuance of the Michigan provisional certificate within the
validity of the individual's Michigan provisional certificate.
3. Earn 18 semester hours credit subsequent to the issuance of the Michigan provisional certificate in a planned course
of study. The first 18 semester hours on a master's program following the issuance of the provisional certificate is
acceptable, as are other planned programs with an approved teacher training institution. A person with an earned
master's or higher degree has met the academic requirements. The planned program should be approved in advance
by the Office of Academic Records and Teacher Certification.
The procedure after three years of successful teaching and the earning of 18 semester hours credit in an approved planned
program subsequent to the issuance of the provisional certificate is as follows;
The applicant will:
1. Obtain an application blank from the Office of Academic Records and Teacher Certification
2. Fill out the application as required and return it to the Office of Academic Records and Teacher Certification.
The office will
1.

Evaluate the credits earned and contact the school district of the candidate for recommendations concerning the
teaching experience to ascertain if the requirements for the continuing certificate have been met.

2. Recommend the candidate to the State Board of Education for continuing certification if the candidate's
qualifications are found satisfactory. The Michigan State Department of Education will mail the continuing
certificate to the candidate.

OTHER PROFESSIONAL CERTIFICATES
Certificate in Medical Technology
The American Society of Clinical Pathologists awards a certificate for registration as a medical technologist upon
successful completion of the medical technology curricumm and the national examination conducted by the Board of
Registry of Medical Technologists.
Certificate in Occupational Therapy
The American Occupational Therapy Association issues a certificate in occupational therapy upon successful completion
of the Occupational Therapy curriculum and the board examinations administered by the American Occupational Therapy
Association. This certificate qualifies the holder for professional registration with the American Occupational Therapy
Association.
Certificate in Dietetics
The American Dietetic Association issues a certificate in dietetics upon successful completion of the coordinated dietetics
curriculum. Successful completion of the national examination administered by the American Dietetic Association results
in professional registration status with the American Dietetics Association.
Certificate in Speech Pathology
The American Speech and Hearing Association issues Certificates of Clinical Competence to individuals who present
satisfactory evidence of their ability to provide independent clinical services to persons who have disorders of
communication (speech, language, and/ or hearing). An individual who meets these requirements may be awarded a
Certificate in Speech Pathology or in Audio logy. depending upon the emphasis of his preparation. Note: The program at
Eastern Michigan prepares individuals to meet the requirements in Speech Pathology only. Specific requirements may be
obtained from the advisers in Speech Pathology.
Licensure in Nursing
Graduates of the nursing program receive a bachelor of science degree and are eligible to qualify as registered nurses
through the Michigan State Board of Nursing Licensure Examination. This examination is given at times and places
specified by the State Board of Nursing, usually three times a year. Candidates should file application immediately after
official completion date of degree requirements. Upon receipt of application and all credentials, a temporary permit to
practice will be issued and examination date assigned. Licensure is granted upon successful completion of the State Board
of Licensure Examination.

REQUIREMENTS FOR GRADUATION
Each student will be responsible for the fulfillment of the requirements or their equivalents of the Eastern Michigan
University catalog in force at the time of his or her initial registration at a college or university or a subsequent catalog
including the one in effect at the time of his or her graduation.
In the event the student does not complete the degree requirements within seven years of the date of his or her original
registration at a college or university, the student may be required to have his or her credits re-evaluated by the academic
department(s) of his or her major/minor in keeping with catalog requirements in force during the year of his or her
graduation.

APPLICATION FOR GRADUATION -FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS
A formal application for graduation must be filed by candidates for graduation and/or certification during their final
semester. The application should be filed after final registration is complete but as near the beginning of the final semester
as possible.
Failure to meet an application deadline could result in the candidate's graduation being delayed until the following
graduation period.
Applications must be submitted with the graduation fee.

Students are eligible for diplomas and final academic transcripts only after all of their financial obligations to the
University have been met.
A candidate for graduation who enrolls at another college or university for credit to be transferred to Eastern Michigan
University and applied toward meeting degree requirements must submit an official transcript of such credit prior to the
closing date of the semester in which the degree is to be awarded. Delay of at least one enrollment period in granting the
degree will result if transfer credit has not been received by that time. Grade reports and/ or letters from instructors will
not be accepted in lieu of official transcripts.

Authority for Creation or Revision:
Minutes of the State Board of Education, June 9, 1960.
Minutes of the Board of Regents, March 19, 1969, para . . 763M.
Minutes of the Board of Regents, March 19, 1980, para. . 2214M.
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EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
RECOMMENDATION

EDUCATIONAL POLICIES COMMITTEE
ACTION REQUESTED
It is requested that the Board of Regents approve a modification to Board of Regents policy
6 . 2 . 1 . 3 Academic Programs and Requirements, Undergraduate Grades and Academic Progress.

SUMMARY
The proposed policy revision would add letter grades at each level of award to reflect when a
grade was awarded in an honors secti.o n of a course . The revision also incorporates the changes
of 'E' grades to ' F ' grades approved last year in a separate action of the Regents. Finally, the
revision clarifies the letter grade designations avai lable and printed on transcripts for audit
grades, pass/fail awards as they relate to teacher certification course sections, and grades under
the academ ic forgiveness policy .

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS
There are no fiscal impl ications to these revisions.

ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION
The proposed ac.ti,G.t:i_b as been reviewed and i s recommended for Board approval .

University Executive Ott1cer
Provost' and Vice President
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WITHDRAWALS

The grade of "W" will be assigned only when an official withdrawal has been completed. If a
student discontinues attending a class without officially withdrawing from a class, the grade of
".[" will be assigccn..:..
ed
.c.·'---------- - - - -IN COMPLETES

An "I" is awarded only when a student's work has been of acceptable quality ("C" or better), but
the required amount has not been completed because of illness, necessary absence or other
satisfactory reasons. It is never applied to poor work or to nonattendance of class by the student.
It is the responsibility of the student to request an incomplete from the instructor prior to
submission of grades for the course, and to provide the reason and, if requested, supporting
documentation for the request. If the instructor is satisfied that the reason and documentation
provided are sufficient and that the conditions above are met, he/she should provide a description
in writing of the work to be completed and the deadline for completion; copies should be
provided to the student and to the department head. The deadline for completion can be no later
than one year from the end of the semester in which the course was taught.
An "IP" ("In Progress") is assigned to all students in a course or section that continues past the
end of the semester. This grade does not apply to independent/directed studies courses or to
individual students seeking an incomplete (I) grade. Once assigned, the "IP" has the same effect
an d is subject to the same rules and deadlines as the "I".
An "I" grade must be removed within one calendar year from the en d of the semester or session
in which that grade was given. The time for removal of an "I" may be extended upon written
recommendation of the instructor and approval by the dean of the college. Such extension will
be granted only under unusual circumstances. The initiative for con version of an "I' to a letter
grade rests with the student. However, the instructor may submit a change of grade without
further notification if the student had not completed the required work by the deadline specified
by the instructor.

---r®ICitt
MHHIW&ri
Deleted:
E

J

When a letter grade (excluding "!" for incomplete or "IP" for in progress) is posted to a student's
transcript it will be considered final unless an error in calculating the grade is discovered.
Permitting a student to submit missing work or extra credit to improve a grade is not an
acceptable reason for changing a grade.
Change from "I" or "IP" do not require department head or dean signatures if submitted within
one year of the end of the course. After one year the student must provide an explanation of why
the course work could not be completed within one year as required by university policy; the
extension will be granted only if both the instructor and the dean approve, and both signatures
are required to change an "!" or "IP" beyond one year.
PROCESS AND DEADLINES FOR CHANGING GRADES
If a calculation or grading error is identified, the instructor must file a grade change form
explaining the error. This form requires approval of the department head, and the appropriate
dean will review and approve grade changes to ensure consistency with academic policies. All
changes in letter grades (excluding "I" or "IP" that are converted within one year) will require the
signature of the dean of the college.
Any attempt to change an individual grade or to convert an "!" must be initiated no later than one
year following the semester or session in which the grade was given. An extension beyond this
limitation may be permitted only by the dean of the college in which the course was taken. Such
extensions will be granted only on verifiable evidence of emergency circumstances, such as
serious illness or military obligation, which prevented the petitioner from acting during the
prescribed period.
All grades are final three years following the end of the close of the term or at time of degree
conferral. \\'hichever is lirst; no grade changes will be made, and "!" and "IP" grades cannot be
converted past that point without the approval of the Provost or his/her designee.
GRADE POINT AVERAGE
The EMU Grade Point Average is determined by taking the total number of grade point values
acquired and dividing by the total number of semester hours taken which carry grade point
values. The University may establish rules allowing students to repeat a limited number of
courses to exclude earlier grades from the calculation of the EMU grade point average. If
students repeat courses outside the limitations of that policy, each attempt and each grade for the
course will be included in the calculation.
The Academic Division may establish a policy of grade forgiveness (or "academic bankruptcy")
in some courses for students who return to Eastern Michigan University after an absence of two
or more years. The affected courses will remain on the student's transcript with a designation
indicating that this policy has been applied and the grade has been removed from the calculation
of the EMU Grade Point Average.

PASS-FAIL OPTION
A student may elect to take a course under the Pass/Fail Option for various reasons (e.g. if he/she
wishes to experiment in an unfamiliar field without jeopardizing his/her grade point average.)
Under these circumstances, the limiting features of the option are as follows:
1 . It may be exercised only by juniors and seniors in good standing.
2. It may be applied only to free electives, that is, to courses that are outside the student's
major, minor, curriculum or general education requirements.
3. A maximum of six such courses may be applied toward graduation.
4. The student shall indicate his/her intention to take a course under the Pass/Fail Option at
the time of registration.
5. Students who elect a course on Pass/Fail may cancel the option and accept a letter grade
up to the last day of class before the official University scheduled final examinations.
6. The instructor will not be notified of the student's election of this option. The regular
letter grade reported by the instructor will be recorded on grade reports and transcripts as
follows:
a. Grades of A, A-. 8 -'-. B, B-. C+, C, C-. D+. .Q,_yr D will be converted to S, and shall
count as credit toward graduation (if it is at the 100 level or higher).
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AUDITING OF COURSES
A student may be permitted to enroll in a course as an auditor, that is, one who merely attends
class to "hear" or visit. No credit is awarded for an audit.
Subject to the approval of the head of the department offering the course, students wishing to
audit a course must register for it just as for any other class, and then also tum in at registration a
"permission to audit" card with the required approval.
The student's intention to audit a course rather than to take it for credit must be established at the
time of registration. Shifting from credit to audit or from audit to credit is not permitted after the
last day that classes may be added or sections changed.
Tuition and fees for enrolling in courses for audit are the same as for enrolling in courses for
credit.

-

1
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Under provisions of the University staffbenefits program, full-time staff, faculty, and faculty
spouses may "audit" classes without regular registration by completing an approval process
initiated at the Staff Benefits office.
Except for a staff benefits audit, no person is allowed to attend class unless officially registered
on a credit or audit basis with appropriate fees paid.
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Instructors should submit officially requested student
progress reports in a timely manner to facilitate
student support services and compliance with
regulations.
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Failing grade in Pass/Fail and student teaching elections

Policies, Rules and Regulations
Chapter Name: Academic Programs and Requirements

Chapter No. 6.2.1.3

Issue: Undergraduate Grades and Academic Progress
Effective Date: 1 0-18-1978

Revision Date: 10-30-2012
CLASSIFICATION

For purposes of determining class levels, the following hours classifications are used:
Semester Credit Hours
Class
Freshman
O - 24

Sophomore
Junior
Senior

GRADES

25 - 54

55 - 84

85 or over

The grades used by the University with their corresponding values in points are as follows:
Letter
Grades

Grade
Point
Values

AH

4.0

A with Honors Credit

3.7

A- with Honors Credit

A

A-

A-H

4.0

3.7

B+
B+H
B
BH
BB-H

3.3
3.3
3.0
3.0
2.7
2.7

C+
C-

2.3
2.0
1 .7

D+
D
D-

1 .3
1 .0
0.7

E

0

Replaced with "F" effective fall 201 2

F

0

Effective fall 2012

N

0

No grade submitted

AUD

0

Grade in audit elections

CR

0

Passing grade in Credit/No Credit courses ("C" or better)

NC

0

No credit awarded in Credit/No Credit courses

s

0

Passing grade in Pass/Fail elections

u

0

Failing grade in Pass/Fail elections

SC

0

Passing grade in student teaching with certification

PN

0

Passing grade in student teaching but not sufficient for certification

UN

0

Failing grade in student teaching course

B+ with Honors Credit
B with Honors Credit
B- with Honors Credit

2YR

0

Academic forgiveness; no credit

Credits earned by student teaching, credit/no credit classes or pass-fail options are not accorded
grade point values.

Credit for a course in which the grades of "E", "F" or "U" have been received can be earned only
by repeating the course.

WITHDRAWALS
The grade of "W" will be assigned only when an official withdrawal has been completed. If a
student discontinues attending a class without officially withdrawing from a class, the grade of
"F" will be assigned.

INCOMPLETES
An "I" is awarded only when a student's work has been of acceptable quality ("C" or better), but
the required amount has not been completed because of illness, necessary absence or other
satisfactory reasons. It is never applied to poor work or to nonattendance of class by the student.
It is the responsibility of the student to request an incomplete from the instructor prior to
submission of grades for the course, and to provide the reason and, if requested, supporting
documentation for the request. If the instructor is satisfied that the reason and documentation
provided are sufficient and that the conditions above are met, he/she should provide a description
in writing of the work to be completed and the deadline for completion; copies should be
provided to the student and to the department head. The deadline for completion can be no later
than one year from the end of the semester in which the course was taught.
An "IP" ("In Progress") is assigned to all students in a course or section that continues past the
end of the semester. This grade does not apply to independent/directed studies courses or to
individual students seeking an incomplete (I) grade. Once assigned, the "IP" has the same effect
and is subject to the same rules and deadlines as the "I".

An "I" grade must be removed within one calendar year from the end of the semester or session
in which that grade was given. The time for removal of an "I" may be extended upon written
recommendation of the instructor and approval by the dean of the college. Such extension will
be granted only under unusual circumstances. The initiative for conversion of an "I' to a letter
grade rests with the student. However, the instructor may submit a change of grade without
further notification if the student had not completed the required work by the deadline specified
by the instructor.

When a letter grade (excluding "I" for incomplete or "IP" for in progress) is posted to a student's
transcript it will be considered final unless an error in calculating the grade is discovered.
Permitting a student to submit missing work or extra credit to improve a grade is not an
acceptable reason for changing a grade.
Change from "I" or "IP" do not require department head or dean signatures if submitted within
one year of the end of the course. After one year the student must provide an explanation of why
the course work could not be completed within one year as required by university policy; the
extension will be granted only if both the instructor and the dean approve, and both signatures
are required to change an "I" or "IP" beyond one year.
PROCESS AND DEADLINES FOR CHANGING GRADES
If a calculation or grading error is identified, the instructor must file a grade change form
explaining the error. This form requires approval of the department head, and the appropriate
dean will review and approve grade changes to ensure consistency with academic policies. All
changes in letter grades (excluding "I" or "IP" that are converted within one year) will require the
signature of the dean of the college.
Any attempt to change an individual grade or to convert an "I" must be initiated no later than one
year following the semester or session in which the grade was given. An extension beyond this
limitation may be permitted only by the dean of the college in which the course was taken. Such
extensions will be granted only on verifiable evidence of emergency circumstances, such as
serious illness or military obligation, which prevented the petitioner from acting during the
prescribed period.
All grades are final three years following the end of the close of the term or at time of degree
conferral, whichever is first; no grade changes will be made, and "I" and "IP" grades cannot be
converted past that point without the approval of the Provost or his/her designee.
GRADE POINT AVERAGE
The EMU Grade Point Average is determined by taking the total number of grade point values
acquired and dividing by the total number of semester hours taken which carry grade point
values. The University may establish rules allowing students to repeat a limited number of
courses to exclude earlier grades from the calculation of the EMU grade point average. If
students repeat courses outside the limitations of that policy, each attempt and each grade for the
course will be included in the calculation.
The Academic Division may establish a policy of grade forgiveness (or "academic bankruptcy")
in some courses for students who return to Eastern Michigan University after an absence of two
or more years. The affected courses will remain on the student's transcript with a designation
indicating that this policy has been applied and the grade has been removed from the calculation
of the EMU Grade Point Average.

PASS-FAIL OPTION
A student may elect to take a course under the Pass/Fail Option for various reasons (e.g. if he/she
wishes to experiment in an unfamiliar field without jeopardizing his/her grade point average.)
Under these circumstances, the limiting features of the option are as follows:
1 . It may be exercised only by juniors and seniors in good standing.
2. It may be applied only to free electives, that is, to courses that are outside the student's
major, minor, curriculum or general education requirements.
3 . A maximum of six such courses may be applied toward graduation.
4. The student shall indicate his/her intention to take a course under the Pass/Fail Option at
the time of registration.
5. Students who elect a course on Pass/Fail may cancel the option and accept a letter grade
up to the last day of class before the official University scheduled final examinations.
6. The instructor will not be notified of the student's election ofthis option. The regular
letter grade reported by the instructor will be recorded on grade reports and transcripts as
follows:
a. Grades of A, A-, B+, B, B-, C+, C, C-, D+, D or D will be converted to S, and shall
count as credit toward graduation (if it is at the 1 00 level or higher).
b. The grade of F will be converted to U and shall not count toward graduation.
7. A course taken under this option shall not be used in any way in the computation of the
student's grade point average. Thus a Pass/Fail-election shall not be approved for a course
in which the student previously received a letter grade.
AUDITING OF COURSES
A student may be permitted to enroll in a course as an auditor, that is, one who merely attends
class to "hear" or visit. No credit is awarded for an audit.
Subject to the approval of the head of the department offering the course, students wishing to
audit a course must register for it just as for any other class, and then also tum in at registration a
"permission to audit" card with the required approval.
The student's intention to audit a course rather than to take it for credit must be established at the
time of registration. Shifting from credit to audit or from audit to credit is not permitted after the
last day that classes may be added or sections changed.
Tuition and fees for enrolling in courses for audit are the same as for enrolling in courses for
credit.

Under provisions of the University staff benefits program, full-time staff, faculty, and faculty
spouses may "audit" classes without regular registration by completing an approval process
initiated at the Staff Benefits office.

Except for a staff benefits audit, no person is allowed to attend class unless officially registered
on a credit or audit basis with appropriate fees paid.
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SECTION: 13

BOARD OF REGENTS

EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY

DATE:

Oct. 30, 2012

RECOMMENDATION

APPROVAL TO NEGOTIATE THE ISSUANCE OF A CONTRACT TO CHARTER A PUBLIC
SCHOOL ACADEMY- BOGGS EDUCATIONAL CENTER
APPROVAL TO NEGOTIATE THE ISSUANCE OF A CONTRACT TO CHARTER A PUBLIC
SCHOOL ACADEMY- DETROIT PUBLIC SAFETY ACADEMY
APPROVAL TO NEGOTIATE THE ISSUANCE OF A CONTRACT TO CHARTER A PUBLIC
SCHOOL ACADEMY - GLOBAL TECH ACADEMY

ACTION REQUESTED

It is recommended that the University Board of Regents approves and authorizes the execution of
a contract to charter a public school academy to Boggs Educational Center, Detroit Public Safety
Academy and Global Tech Academy. In addition, it authorizes the university president to
execute a contract to charter as a public school academy and related documents between these
entities and the Eastern Michigan University Board of Regents.
Before the execution of the contract, the university president or designee will affirm that all
terms of the contract have been agreed upon and each of these entities is able to comply with all
terms and conditions of the contract.
It is anticipated that these charter contracts will be effective July 1 , 2013 and these schools will
open in Fall 2013.
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSED CHARTER SCHOOLS

Boggs Educational Center
The mission of the Boggs Educational Center is to nurture creative, critical thinkers who
contribute to the well-being of their communities. BEC will implement "Place-Based
Education," a nationally renowned and research-based model, which immerses students in local
heritage, cultures, landscapes, opportunities and experiences, using these as a foundation for the
study of academic subjects.
•
•
•
•
•

Grades: K-3 (opening); K- 1 2 (at capacity)
Enrollment: 88 (opening); 304 (at capacity)
School Location/Address: 150 I Canton St., Detroit, MI
Local School District in which school will be located: Detroit Public Schools
Intermediate School District in which school will be located: Wayne County

Detroit Public Safety Academy
Detroit Public Safety Academy is focused on educating and training students who are interested
in police and firefighter technology, specifically addressing under-represented populations in
these careers. Local and state federal police agencies and municipal firefighters will assist with
tutoring, mentoring and life skills development. The academy will provide school-to-university
to career readiness as well as teach the essential pillars of character education.
•
•
•
•
•

Grades: 9 & 10 (First Year); 9-12 (at capacity)
Enrollment: 250 (opening); 500 (at capacity)
School Location/Address: 1250 Rosa Parks Blvd., Detroit MI, 4821 6
Local School District in which school will be located: Detroit Public Schools
Intermediate School District in which school will be located: Wayne County

Global Tech Academy
Global Tech Academy will be a K-5 Charter School Academy located in the Willow Run School
District. Global Tech Academy serves the community by providing a high quality education, to
include a 21st century after school program. In addition, Global Tech Academy will meet the
basic needs of students and families with a universal breakfast and lunch program. With Eastern
Michigan University's Office of Urban Education Educational Equity (OUEEE) as a partner,
Global Tech Academy will become a professional development school for the preparation of
urban teachers.
•
•
•
•
•

Grades: K-5
Enrollment: 250 students
School Location/Address: 1 7 1 5 Forest St., Ypsilanti MI 48198
Local School District in which school will be located: Willow Run Public Schools
Intermediate School District in which school will be located: Washtenaw County

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS

None.

ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION

The orooos a Board,action has been reviewed and is recommended for Board approval.

Unive}sity Executive Officer
Provost and Vice President

Date
2

AUTHORIZATION OF PUBLIC SCHOOL ACADEMY
Boggs Educational Center

Recitals:

1 . The Michigan legislature has provided for the establishment of public school academies as part of the
Michigan public school system by enacting Act No. 362 of the Public Acts of 1 993.

2. The Michigan legislature has mandated that public school academy contracts be issued on a competitive basis
taking into consideration the resources available for the proposed public school academy, the population to be
served by the proposed public school academy, and the educational goals to be achieved by the proposed
public school academy.
3 . The Michigan legislature has mandated that public school academies organized under Act No. 362 of the
Public Acts of 1993 achieve certain specific educational purposes.
4. The Michigan legislature has mandated that authorizing bodies establish by resolution the method of
selection, length of term, and number of members of the board of directors of Boggs Educational Center.
5 . According to this legislation, the Eastern Michigan University Board of Regents, as the governing body of a
state public university, is an authorizing body empowered to issue contracts to organize and operate public
school academies.
6. The Eastern Michigan University Board of Regents has requested applications for organizing public school
academies and has reviewed the applications according to the provisions set forth by the Michigan legislature.
7. The Eastern Michigan University Board of Regents has established chartering policies in addition to the
policy titled Public School Academies: Method of Selection, Appointment, and Removal as required by the
Michigan legislature.
8 . The university president or designee has recommended the issuance of a contract to charter as a public school
academy to Boggs Educational Center for a term not to exceed five (5) years.
9. Boggs Educational Center's application has been submitted under Act 362 of the Public Acts of 1993, being
part 6A of the Revised School Code, being sections 380.501 to 380.507 of the Michigan Compiled Laws.
BE 1T RESOLVED, That the University Board of Regents approves and authorizes the execution of a
contract to charter a public school academy to Boggs Educational Center and authorizes the university
president to execute a contract to charter as a public school academy and related documents between Boggs
Educational Center and the Eastern Michigan University Board of Regents, provided that, before execution of
the contract, the university president or designee affirms that all terms of the contract have been agreed upon
and Boggs Educational Center is able to comply with all terms and conditions of the contract.
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AUTHORIZATION OF PUBLIC SCHOOL ACADEMY

Detroit Public Safety Academy

Recitals:

1 0. The Michigan legislature has provided for the establishment of public school academies as part of the
Michigan public school system by enacting Act No. 362 of the Public Acts of 1 993.
1 1 . The Michigan legislature has mandated that public school academy contracts be issued on a competitive basis
taking into consideration the resources available for the proposed public school academy, the population to be
served by the proposed public school academy, and the educational goals to be achieved by the proposed
public school academy.
1 2. The Michigan legislature has mandated that public school academies organized under Act No. 362 of the
Public Acts of 1 993 achieve certain specific educational purposes.
1 3 . The Michigan legislature has mandated that authorizing bodies establish by resolution the method of
selection, length of term, and number of members of the board of directors of Detroit Public Safety Academy.
1 4 . According to this legislation, the Eastern Michigan University Board of Regents, as the governing body of a
state public university, is an authorizing body empowered to issue contracts to organize and operate public
school academies.
1 5 . The Eastern Michigan University Board of Regents has requested applications for organizing public school
academies and has reviewed the applications according to the provisions set forth by the Michigan legislature.
1 6. The Eastern Michigan University Board of Regents has established chartering policies in addition to the
policy titled Public School Academies: Method of Selection, Appointment, and Removal as required by the
Michigan legislature.
1 7. The university president or designee has recommended the issuance of a contract to charter as a public school
academy to Detroit Public Safety Academy for a term not to exceed five (5) years.
18. Detroit Public Safety Academy's application has been submitted under Act 362 of the Public Acts of 1 993,
being part 6A of the Revised School Code, being sections 380.50 1 to 380.507 of the Michigan Compiled
Laws.
BE IT RESOLVED, That the University Board of Regents approves and authorizes the execution of a
contract to charter a public school academy to Detroit Public Safety Academy and authorizes the university
president to execute a contract to charter as a public school academy and related documents between Detroit
Public Safety Academy and the Eastern Michigan University Board of Regents, provided that, before
execution of the contract, the university president or designee affirms that all terms of the contract have been
agreed upon and Detroit Public Safety Academy is able to comply with all terms and conditions of the
contract.
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AUTHORIZATION OF PUBLIC SCHOOL ACADEMY
Global Tech Academy

Recitals:

19. The Michigan legislature has provided for the establishment of public school academies as part of the
Michigan public school system by enacting Act No. 362 of the Public Acts of 1 993.
20. The Michigan legislature has mandated that public school academy contracts be issued on a competitive basis
taking into consideration the resources available for the proposed public school academy, the population to be
served by the proposed public school academy, and the educational goals to be achieved by the proposed
public school academy.
2 1 . The Michigan legislature has mandated that public school academies organized under Act No. 362 of the
Public Acts of 1 993 achieve certain specific educational purposes.
22. The Michigan legislature has mandated that authorizing bodies establish by resolution the method of
selection, length of term, and number of members of the board of directors of Global Tech Academy.
23. According to this legislation, the Eastern Michigan University Board of Regents, as the governing body of a
state public university, is an authorizing body empowered to issue contracts to organize and operate public
school academies.
24. The Eastern Michigan University Board of Regents has requested applications for organizing public school
academies and has reviewed the applications according to the provisions set forth by the Michigan legislature.
25. The Eastern Michigan U niversity Board of Regents has established chartering policies in addition to the
policy titled Public School Academies: Method of Selection, Appointment, and Removal as required by the
Michigan legislature.
26. The university president or designee has recommended the issuance of a contract to charter as a public school
academy to Global Tech Academy for a term not to exceed five (5) years.
27. Global Tech Academy's application has been submitted under Act 362 of the Public Acts of 1 993, being part
6A of the Revised School Code, being sections 380.501 to 380.507 of the Michigan Compiled Laws.
BE IT RESOLVED, That the University Board of Regents approves and authorizes the execution of a
contract to charter a public school academy to Global Tech Academy and authorizes the university president
to execute a contract to charter as a public school academy and related documents between Global Tech
Academy and the Eastern Michigan University Board of Regents, provided that, before execution of the
contract, the university president or designee affirms that all terms of the contract have been agreed upon and
Global Tech Academy is able to comply with all terms and conditions of the contract.
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SECTION: 14

BOARD OF REGENTS
EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY

DATE:
October 30, 20 1 2

RECOMMENDATION
APPOINTMENT OF CHARTER SCHOOLS BOARD MEMBERS
ACTION REQUESTED
It is recommended that the Board of Regents appoint Felicia Calvo to a three-year term on the
Board of Directors of the Academy for Business and Technology; Rupert S. Cannonier to a
three-year term on the Board of Directors of Commonwealth Community Development
Academy; Karl D' Abreu and William Guess to two-year terms and Stathia McNally to a three
year term on the Board of Directors of Gaudior Academy; Denise Bennett and Floyd Jean Webb
to three-year terms on the Board of Directors of Dr. Joseph F. Pollack Academic Center of
Excellence. These board appointments are ratifications of recent exigent appointments made by
the Charter Schools Office and approved by Chairman Roy Wilbanks on, October 1 1 , 20 12.

STAFF SUMMARY
According to the resolutions which establish these public school academies (charter schools),
vacancies on the Boards of Directors shall be filled by the Eastern Michigan University Board of
Regents.
Academy for Business and Technology
Felicia Calvo is a retired Secretary. She graduated from Western High School in Detroit, MI.
She served on the Board of Directors for the local chapter of the Autism Society and is an active
member of her church's ladies guild, "Women of St. Clement" where she has previously served
as both Vice-President and Secretary.

Commonwealth Community Development Academy
Rupert S. Cannonier is a Licensed Financial Consultant who works as a Branch Manager at PNC
Bank in Detroit, MI. He obtained a Bachelor of Business Administration and Marketing degree
from Eastern Michigan University in Ypsilanti, MI in 2004 and a Financial Graduate Certificate
in 2010. He is presently the Treasurer for Motor City Youth Federation.
Gaudior Academy
Karl D' Abreu is an Assistant Program Coordinator for City of Detroit Youth Division in Detroit,
MI. He is currently studying for a Master of Public Administration at the University of
Michigan-Dearborn in Dearborn, MI. He has a Bachelor of Science degree in Human Services
from the University of Phoenix, in Detroit, MI in 201 1 and Associates in Business
Administration in Management and Leadership from Davenport University in Dearborn, MI in
2000.

William Guess presently works for the Judson Center in Royal Oak, MI as a Direct Care Worker
and is an Intern at Detroit Receiving Hospital in Detroit, MI. He is currently studying Pre-Med
and Wayne State University in Detroit, MI and has obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in
Psychology from Wayne State University in Detroit, MI in 2010.
Stathia McNally currently works for UAW Retiree Medical Benefits Trust in Detroit, MI as an
Administrative Assistant to Legal and Human Resources. She has a Teacher Certification from
Wayne State University in Detroit, MI as of 2006, a Bachelors of Administration degree in
Political Science/Pre-law from Michigan State University in East Lansing, MI in 1 984 and an
Administrative Associates degree in Liberal Arts from Oakland Community College in Auburn
Hills, MI in 1 982.
Dr. Joseph F. Pollack Academic Center of Excellence
Denise Bennett is the President/CEO of Bennett & Associates LLC in Detroit, MI since 2002.
She holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Accounting from Mercy College of Detroit in Detroit,
MI in 1 987. Ms. Bennett has previously served as an executive board member for The Academy
of Westland Charter School. She has also served on the board of the Lawton Career Institute. In
addition, Ms. Bennett has served as a volunteer with the Volunteer Income Tax Association
(VITA) program, Accounting Aide Society and Association of Women Accountants.
Floyd Jean Webb is a retired Curriculum Leader-Department Head from Frederick Douglass
High School & Academy. She has a Master of Art degree in Family and Consumer Resources
from Wayne State University in Detroit, MI in 1 976, a Post degree in Child Development from
Wayne State University in Detroit, MI in 1 964 and a Bachelor of Science degree in Home
Economics from Miles College in Birmingham, Alabama in 1961. She is a member of Phi Beta
Kappa from Wayne State University in Detroit, MI.
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS
None.
ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION
The pro�6sed Boar�ction has been revfwed and is recommended for Board approval.

Univetsity Executive Office1
Provost and Vice President

Date

2

My name is Felicia Fay Calvo, but everyone knows me by "Fay". I was born and raised in

Detroit, attended both Parochial and Public schools in the city and graduated from Western High
School in June, 1 960. In the summer of 1960, I began working as a Secretary and 'retired'

November, 1 972. I'm married and the mother of two adult children.

I first became involved with the Dearborn Public School system when !11Y daughter, Felicia

Anne, was selected by lottery to attend the first pre-school/parenting class held at Ten Eyck

School. During her Elementary school years, I was a highly active member of the Parent

Teacher Association. After High School, Felicia attended Wayne State University.

She was

admitted through the Center for Chicano Boricua Studies in the Fall of 1 99 1 . While she was in

the program, I got involved at the University to help organize 'Partners for CBS' which held
fundraisers that provided scholarships for the students.

In December 1982, at the· age of three, my son, Matthew, was diagnosed with Autism. After a
series of evaluations, he began classes for the Pre-primary Impaired in Dearborn and also

received in-home services. Since his diagnosis and all through his school years at the Burger

School for the Autistic in Garden City. I was actively involved.. I served on the Board of

Directors for the local chapter of the Autism Society during his earlier years at Burger and also

hosted an annual "Cinco de Mayo" fundraiser at the school for over 15 years. Outside of
Matthew's formal education, my husband. Jaime, and I participated in extra curricular classes
that included gym and swimming. I am his advocate and share guardianship with my: husband.
: I'm presently an active

member of our church's ladies Guild, 'Women of St. Clement' and have

served as Vire-President. and Secretary.

Aug 06 1 2 03 : 1 2p
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SAMU1E1 CANNONIER

OBJECT{VE: To obtain a challen,gir.g position with grcwti, and sales oppor. ':unities in the fi.1r.r.cia.l or sdes
industry as a Branch Manager.
PROFESSIO:JAL EXPERIENCE
More t.\.ian 7 years of Finance tr.msaction manag::mer.t, finance consultc,ncy and ma:keting ,.,�.i::. a rec::,rd of
inncvation, team success and development in difiicult sectors.
Sector advisory and marketing skiUs
• Cor:trolled over$ 1 million of custor..ers iillvestment.
• Con..siste;itly reached in.ves::ment gcals.
• Demons�rated the abiUty to ham:le all as;iects of the sa�es process in banking. [ led thf. dis tr.ct in
inves:rnem 53Jes 3 cor.secutive years.
• Received accolades fo, cross-sale in market Helped to increase compa.,y sales by sug[estively
offering varie:::,' of p,od ucts.
Wide ranging transaction record
• Accumulated clients from refe:-rals and maintained an excellent relationship with th�·r:1. Managed
and served over 200.
• Displayed great customer service and crea:cd rnlutions- for c�tomer problems.
• Developed rapportv,:ith clients interested in investment opportunities in emergi':lg markets,
Managerial and team building experience
Led a team cf 4 people in conductir,g financial industry.
Trained new employees and assigned wJrk tasks to them.
Worked as a tea.'11 player to benefit the ccmpany.
Led entire district in revenue credit thirc: .qt:arter of 2010.
Computer Skills
Microsoft Operating Systems - XP, Vista,
Sofuqare - MS Office - 07, JAVA, Outloot 07 -PC Anywl::.ere, Adobe, MS Ac:ess, MS E.xcel, MS
PowerPointand WordPerfect.
• Professionally trained in the areas of software, hardware and web navigation.
CAREER SUMMARY
Licensed Financial Consultant, PNC Bank. Oak Pad<, Ml
12/2Ci05 - Present
Financial Service Representative, Pirst [nvesto:s Corµ, Uvonfa, MI
05;"04 - 10/2005
EDUCATION & DEVELOPMENT
EASERN MICHIGAN UN£VERSITY, Ypsilanti, Ml
• Major in Bachelor of Business Adrninisl-ration and Marketing. 1998 - 2004,
*Dean's List: 'w'bter 1999
• Financial Graduate Certificate, 2009-20 10,
LI CENSURE: 6, 63 and Life License
AFFILIATIONS: Treasurer, MOTOR CITY YOUTH F"EDERATJON, 09/2010 - Present
Responsible for cr.;,ating a budget and se:iding out invoices to a group of churches
including contacting church Le3ders to insure tbeir cornmitroents .m� fuliilld
Reference!> an, available upon requ.�st

KARL EDWIN D' ABREU SR.
1. EDUCATION
Present
2011
2000

M.P.A.-Master of Public Administration
UNIVERSITY OF MICHIGAN-DEARBORN, Dearborn, Ml
B.S.-Human Services (High Honors; Summa Cum Laude)
UNIVERSITY OF PHOENIX, Detroit, Ml
A.B.A.-Management and Leadership (Magna Cum Laude)
DAVENPORT UNIVERSITY, Dearborn, M]

2. KMPLOYMENT (highlights)
08/ 1 1 - Present

City of Detroit
Department of Health and Wellness Promotion (Youth Programs)
SAFETY PROGRAM, DETROIT, MI

06/ l 1 - Present

D' Abreu & Associates, Site Coordinator/Community Liaison
KETIERING WEST W[NG, Detroit, MI.

09/06 - 06/1 I

Communities In Schools, Site Coordinator/Community Liaison
KETIERING WEST WING, Detroit, MI.

06/03 - 08/06

Detroit Public Schools, Professional Teaching Assistant
Special Needs Population - Emotionally Impaired
WEBBER MIDDLE SCHOOL, Detroit, MI.

09/96 - 06/03

Electronic Data Systems (EDS)
General Motors Global Service Delivery Manager (GMGSD)
GENERAL MOTORS CORPORATION, SOUTHEAST, ML

06/94 - 09/96

Bad Records Music ofinkster
Retail Store Manager/Regional Dance Music Buyer
BAD RECORDS CORPORATION, SOUTHEAST, MI.

3. COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT
- 48207 Community Initiative - Bunche Academy; Detroit, Ml - Coats for Kids Drive
- Community Representative - State of Michigan Department of Human Services
- Dequindre Cut Greenway - 1 2 School Participant Organizer - Grand Opening
- NBC Television - School Pride; Episode 3 (Don't Shut Us Down) - Volunteered & Appeared in
- Prince Hall Masons - CHIP: Child Health Identification Program - Chairman
- Prince Hall Masons - Big Brothers Big Sisters Partnership - Organizational Liaison
- Prince Hall Masons - American Cancer Society - Relay for Life - Team Leader

Karl Edll'in D 'Abreu Sr.

4. AFFILIATIONS
- B lack Caucus Foundation of Michigan - Board of Directors
- Joseph Tireman Community Council - Vice President
- NAACP - Life Member
- Prince Hall Masons - Worshipful Master, Unity Lodge #28 (Three Term)
- Prince Hall Masons - 32nd Degree, Wolverine Consistory #6
- Prince Hall Masons - Order of the Eastern Star; Chaplain, Tyre Chapter #39
5. AWARDS AND HONORS
- C ity of Detroit - Spirit of Detroit Award (Three time recipient)
- City of Detroit - Mayor's Award
- Prince Hall Masons - Unity Lodge #28 - Master Mason of the Year - 2007
- Prince Hall Masons - Grand Lodge of Mr - Worshipful Master of the Year - 2 0 1 0
6 . REFERENCES
- J\vailable upon request
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WILLIAM P. GUESS
Professional Objective: To obtain a career with a quality driven organization that promotes continued education,
offers a challenge, and trains potential personnel to strive for professional growth.
Personal Profile: I am team player with a positive attitude, great communication skills, and highly motivated. I
am organized; goal/result oriented and works well under pressure. I'm computer literate, and have also served as a
Volunteer Intern at Detroit Receiving Hospital, and the Trauma Orthopedic Clinic.
Education:

Wayne State University
Field of Study: Pre-Med

Detroit, MI
September 201 0-Present

Wayne State University
Bachelor of Arts Degree, Psychology

Detroit, Ml
Degree obtained- May 2010

Langston University
Field of Study: Business Administration

Langston, Oklahoma
September 2004-Dcccmbcr 2006

Experience
Detroit Receiving Hospital
Detroit, MI
JOI 20/0-Present
Intern
• Student volunteer at Orthopedic clinic and operating room.
Volunteer - Provide medical services to patients in the emergency wing.
• Assisted residents with wrapping casts and removing staples.
Detroit, MI
John D. Dingell Veterans Hospital
2/2010-10/ 2010
Pharmacy Technician
• Volunteer - Provide medication for the in-patient care unit of the hospital.
Sou thfield, MI
Rainbow Group Home
Direct Care Worker
/ 0/2009-Present
Provide direct care for mentally impaired adults.
Judson Center
Royal Oak, MI
512009 - 812009
Job Coach
Coached special needs and emotionally impaired adults.
Transported special needs employees to their jobs and provided coaching and counseling.
Judson Center
Royal Oak, MI
5/2008 -912008
Job Coach
Coached special needs and emotionally impaired adults.
Transported special needs employees to their jobs and provided coaching and counseling.
Judson Center
Royal Oak, MI
Assistant job Coach
7/2007 - 9/2007
Assisted job coach and provided job coaching and counseling.
Honors & Activities: Counsel at-risk Youth at Life Worship and Training Center
Independent Educational Cognitive Psychological Research
Campus Crusade for Christ Student Leader
Baptist Student Ministry Student Leader
Alpha Christianity Student Leader
Students for Israel
lntervarsity Christian Fellowship
Anchorage Ministry Evangelist
Dwight Pate Ministries Worship Support Leader
Dean's Honor Roll, National Dean's Honor Roll
Invitation to International Baccalaureate Dean's Honor Classes in Australia, Europe and Asia
Received an award from Oklahoma for outstanding academic performance in Political Science.
TRIO award for Outstanding Freshman in Student Support Services
References:

Available Upon Request

STATHIA V. MCNALLY
PROFILE

>

>

>

>
>
>
>

Charter school teaching experience including serving as science department leader and science fair coordinator
Degreed and Certified paralegal with experience in contract negotiations and benefit plan legal compliance including handling
issues involving ERISA, COBR.-\ , flv!LA.."HIPAA, ADA, UL-\, EEOC
Facilitation and negotiation skills including serving as company representative at administrative hearings which included
negoriaring settlements with union representatives, attorneys and claimants before a mediator or administrative law judge
Analytical thinker with demonstrated strength in streamlining work processes and procedures
Strong customer service, presentation and project management skills
Innovative problem-solver with experience creating workable solutions and resolving complaints
Accustomed to handling sensitive and confidential information

EXPERIENCE
_-\pril 2011 - present Administrative Assistant (Legal/HR)

•
•
•
•
•
•

•
•

November 2006 - },pril 2011

•
•
•
•
•
•

•
•

•
•

.-\dvanced Technology .--\cademv

Training Coordinator

Lighthouse Consulting Partners

Detroit 1JI

administration

Dearborn i'vII

St. Clair Shores

Researched, authored and edited course materials for business analysis and project management courses
Created brochures and other advertising materials resulting in increased sales
Resolved billing and payment issues in a professional and positive manner
Reviewed and suggested revisions to business contracts and proposals, reducing risk and increasing profit
Established positive and mutually beneficial rdationships with vendors, customers and rrainersRcsearched, authored and edited course materials
for Business Analysis and Project Management courses

September 1 998 - September 2004

•
•

Science and Social Swdies Facultv

7,11 and 8•h grade science and 8•h grade C.S. history teacber
Michigan Science Teacher 1\ssociation member and volunteer
Science department leader and science fair coordinator with involvement in interviewing, hiring and mentoring peers
Use of advanced technologies and well developed facilitation skills
Creation and maintenance of personal website and onlinc grade system
Excellent evaluations, citing positive attitude and team orientation

September 2004 - November 2006
•
•
•
•
•

U,-\\'</ Retiree Medical Benefits Trust

lnvolved in organizing and scheduling open enrollment sessions and serving as "go-to" person for enrollme,Jt guestions
Organized and streamlined contract filing system
Updated employee handbook with new policy and benefit information
Created, edited and proofread documents including presentations, g:r:iphs, charts, and pboros for various te.im members
Planned and prepared for "1\II Employee" meetings
Assisted Communication/Legal departments in preparation of board materials, trustee orientation materials and plan
subcommittee materials
t\rrangcd travel and prepared travel itinera1ies for ivL•\ meetings, retiree outreach meetings and conferences
Scheduled interviews and concluctcd the orienration/onboarding of new employees
Emergency re,ponse captain - trained to respond to emergency situations and train employees on emergency procedures

Bene.it Representative

Detroit Diesel Cor_poration

Detroit MI

Designed plan changes to create integrated disability program-analyzed processes, recommended ch1nges ro contract language, and made
recommendations to management
'.l.!anaged all aspects of intcgrnrcd disability program inclu<ling investigating, monitoring, and ,malyzing claims
Ensured corporate compliance with laws related to benefit plan design and administration
[nvolved in joint administration of U:\W programs such as employee wellness, light duty work programs and illness and injury education
Member of F.mployee Wellness Committee and Sakry Committee
Analyzed data and produced financial reports regarding injuries, illnesses, benefit costs and projections
Worked on compliance issues regarding FMLI\, Pension, EEOC, AD,\, HIPAA, and unemployment
Investigated and pursued 3n1 party liens to recoup benefits and other subrogation claims
Worked witb Ut\\V benefit representatives to resolve disability and medical care issues, including payment of claims, medical benefits and rerurn
to work
Manager for light duty department Goint program with U;\\V) which placed medically restricted employees, monitored work performance issues
and worked with management to increase the number of light duty positions
Assisted in open enrollment for medical benefit plans

Mav 1995 - September 1998
•
•

April 1988**- �fav 1 994

•
•
•
•
•

•
•
•

Sr. Claims Repre8entative

Insurance Overload Svstems

Southfield 1\lI

Investigated claims, ncgoti,1ted settlements, analyzed medical records
Reviewed and ;ipproved medical trcatmt·nr/bills and worked with oursidc coumcl ro resolve litigated claims

StaffManager

i\lichigan Bell Telephone Company

Detroit, ;\,fl

Attended Benefit Committee meetings and presenred information ro upper management for determinations on benefit appeal issues
Made dcterminarion on worker's compensation claims including medical treatment and bills
Flagged, rese:u:chcd, investigated and pursued third party liens and Second Injury Fund reimbursements
i\fanaged benefit pbn litigation including representing company position at worker's compensation mediation hearings and negotiating settlement
Served as consultant to managers with regard to crnploycc bcncfirs and cmploymcnr law issues
Assisted Senior 1\ttorney, Bt'llefir Plans, with legal research and writing of briefs, trial preparations and scttkmcnt conferences regarding bcnefir
issues such as ER!St\
Served on committee to ensure compliance with ,\mericans with Disabilities Act
Handled catastrophic cl:iims, including determinations on medical coverage issues
Identified and pursued 3,J party liens, calculated and negotiated recoupment of benefits with plaintiff attorney, and nude recommcndarioos to
upper management for settlcmrnt of lien

Detroit i\!I
Legal Specialist
Dykema Gossett
1',pril 1985 - .-\pril 1988
• Served as lead paralegal on several complex litigation cases including management and training of document handlers, temporary
employees and other paralegals to prepare case for lengthy out of stare trial

EDUCATION
2000-2006 Wayne State University Detroit, MI

Niasters Level Coursework and Teacher Certification GPA 3.95

1997-2005 Macomb Community College Fraser, MI

Prerequisite coursesfor lJ7qyne Sfate CPA 3.8

1984-1985 The Institute for Paralegal Studies
Philadelphia, PA

Ce1tifl,¥1te, Lifi.gation Management Completed requirements succmfully
(pass/failprogram)

1982-1984 Michigan State University
East Lansing, MI
1980-1982 Oakland Community College
Auburn Hills, MI

BA. Political Sciem'I?/ Pre-laJJJ GP,-\ 3.3

A.A. Libera/Arts GP.A 3,6

VOLUNTEER ACTIVITIES
Junior Achievement-Project Business
Campaign Manager for Harper Woods City Councilman
Brownie leader
Fundraising Chair, Harper Woods Homeowners Group
Cornerstone Schools Mentor
Habitat for Humanity - Women's Build
Lego Robotics Coach

Denise Greenwood Bennett

Experience
Sole Proprietor - Bennett & Associates, LLC
Nov 2002 - present
Accountant
• Full service Accounting and Bookkeeping Services including payroll utilizing
Accountants Relief, QuickBooks and Microsoft office software. Individual and small
business tax returns with Ultra Tax, Pro Series and Turbo Tax software. Notary
Services. Experienced with all Micro Soft Applications.
Lear Corp - through Dickson Associates Nov 2005 - Dec 2005
• Trade Sales Division . Audited and analyzed trade sales transactions. Reviewed and
Audited third party billings and payments.
LDMI- Talk America through Dickson Associates June 2005 - Sept 2005
Reviewed and analyzed customer accounts for discrepancies and refunds.
DTE Energy - through Dickson Associates. Nov 2004 - March 2005
Auditor
• Audited, reviewed and updated DTE and M ich Con Gas vendor's accounts and
history to meet Sarbanes Oxley tax requirements.
Accounting & Tax Counselors Aug 2003 -2005
Jan 2006 - Present - special assign ments only
Senior Accountant
• Prepared general ledger, financials and reconciliations for clients of a small CPA firm
• Prepared business and individual tax returns and quarterly reporting with
QuickBooks, Accountants Relief and Ultra Tax software packages.
Feb 2003 - Aug 2003 (Special project)
Franklin Wright Settlement
Accountant/ Auditor
• Audited and reconciled funding and disbursement accounts for several units of a
non-profit center
Ford Motor Company, through Kelly Automotive, Dearborn, Ml
Intercompany Analyst March 200 1 -Nov 2002
• Reconciliation of over 50 inter- company payable accounts.
• Prepared monthly settlement payments by wire, netting, CCAPS and MICS transactions.
• Prepared journal entries to balance payable and receivable accounts.
• Confirm payable balance at month end prepare unaudited entries for out of balances
and currency corrections.
Lear Corporation, through Robert Half Associates, Southfield, M I
Payroll Accountant September 2000 - March 200 1
• Prepared year-end tax statements. Adjusted federal, state and local tax statements
• Calculated employee moving expense gross-ups and corrected W-2's.
• Reconciled weekly payroll journal entries for multiple manufacturing plants in multiple states
American Communications Network, through Dickson Associates, Troy. MI
Accounts Payable Manager:
April 2000 - September 2000
• Directed and supervised 3 accounts payable analysts.

Denise Greenwood Bennett,
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• Processed disbursements for multiple operations. Reviewed and approved all
disbursements. Reconciled all disbursements for banking operation.
• Reconciled and balanced Accounts Payable sub accounts to ledger for multiple operations.
Harada Industry of America, Inc., Novi, MI (lay-offs)
Assistant Accounting Manager
November 1998 - February 2000
• Produced financial reports and budgets.
• Consolidated statements, various reports related to; internal meetings, inter-company
management request and tax returns.
• Responsible for the closing of month/year end operations.
• Supervised the daily operations of the financial department;
• Accounts payable, reviewed and approved invoice, E/R for reconciliation and vouchers.
• Supervised Cash/ Banking and loans, approved J/ E/ for input,
• Prepared cost analysis for accounting, inventory reports and J /E.
• Managed balance Sheet Analyst; reviewed general ledger reconciliation.
TRW Transportation Electronics Division, Farmington Hills, MI

October 1980 -September 1998
Accounting/ Payroll Supervisor March 1 987- September, 1 998
•

Responsibilities included General Ledger maintenance, coordination of all journal entries
for month end closing; maintained Chart of Accounts; analysis of month end reports and
forecasts with Division Controller and Project Managers.
• Prepared and balanced month end Trial balance reports for on-line transmission to
the corporale office.
• Prepared payroll for three (3) operating units in excess of 700 employees.
• Project planning for the implementation of system conversion to SAP for a shared
service center; cost reporting for upgrades and conversion forecast, variance analysis,
parallel testing of conversion material.
Payroll Accountant November 1982 - March 1987
• Prepared annual, quarterly and monthly reports.
• Performed salary and fringe inter-division transfers, forecasting and 401K processing.
• Prepared fringe and withholding reports for corporate staff, in preparation of
employees' (W-2) tax forms.
Accounts Payable Clerk October 1980 - November 1982
• Administered and processed all accounts payable functions.
• Performed Monthly reconciliation of accounts payable and un-audited liabilities, and
account analysis as required.

Education

Mercv College of Detroit. Bachelor of Science Degree (Accounting) 1 987
Additional, Accounting and Business writing courses.
Annual Tax seminars - Michigan State University and University of Michigan
Walsh College - Additional Business Classes
References available upon request

FLOYD JEAN NELSON WEBB

1998-2001
2002-2005
1 986-2002

1 979 -1986

1 965-1979

1963-1964
1961 -1963

1957-1961
1 963-1964
1 973-1976

WORK HISTORY AND EXPERIENCE

Gifted & Talented Coordinator
Summer School Program
Henry Ford High School Detroit Mi.

Frederick Douglass High School& Academy
Department Chairperson& Curriculum Leader
Detroit Board of Education
Vocational & Fine Arts Chairperson
@ Henry Ford High School Detroit, Mi.

Teacher
Detroit Board of Education Detroit, Mi.
Home Economics
@ Henry Ford High School
Teacher
Detroit Board of Education Detroit, Mi
Home Economics
@ Kettering High School

Sales Manager
J .L. Hudson Northland ,Southfield Mi.

Substitute Teacher
Fairfield, Bessemer, Birmingham Alabama School Districts
EDUCATION

Miles College
Birmingham, Alabama
(BS) Home Economics

Wayne State University Detroit, Michigan
Post Degree Child Development

Wayne State University

1 991-1993

Detroit, Michigan
(M.A)-Family and Consumer Resources

Wayne State University
Detroit, Mich.
Secondary Administration &Supervision , Education Specialist

PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIP
Phi Beta Kappa-Wayne State University
Zeta Phi Beta Sorority Inc
American Vocational Association
Michigan Vocational Association
MLME Michigan Life Management Education
Vocational Certified-Life Management Education ,Family and
Consumer Services
Southeastern Oakland County NAACP
PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Chairperson Program Status Inquiry. Michigan Department of
Career Development

Chairperson- Civil Rights compliance for Henry Ford High School

Chairperson Instructional Material Workshop for Detroit Public
Schools

Member

NCA (Transition Model) Workshop

INTEREST(S)
Computers, Clothing &Design ,Sewing ,Singing ,Traveling and
Reading.

BOARD OF REGENTS

E A S T E RN M I C H I GA N U N I V E R S I TY

SECTION: 1 5
DATE:
October 30, 20 1 2

RECOMMENDATION
FINANCE, AUDIT & INVESTMENT COMMITTEE
ACTION REQUESTED
It is recommended that the Board of Regents receive and place on file the minutes from the
September 1 8, 20 1 2 Finance, Audit, and Investment Committee meeting, the Working Agenda for the
October 30, 20 1 2 meeting, and the Informational Reports and Financial Updates.

STAFF SUMMARY
September 1 8, 20 1 2
Agenda items discussed at the September 1 8, 2 0 1 2 Finance, Audit, and Investment Committee meeting
included an Informational Report and Financial Updates as of August 3 1 , 2 0 1 2, Fall Enrollment and
Housing Updates, recommendation for creation of a task force for investigating the refunding of the
Series 2009 A&B variable rate bonds we well as a recommendation to fund up to $ 1 0 million i n new
capital projects on campus and Emeritus Staff Awards.
October 30. 20 1 2 Meeting Agenda
Agenda items will include an Informational Repott and Financial Updates as of September 30, 20 1 2,
Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Information as of June 30, 2 0 1 2, FY 1 3/ 1 4 State
Capital Outlay Requtlsl, F Y 1 3 / 1 4 General Fund Scholarships, Awards and Grants Requests, Livonia
and Detroit Lease Agreements, Refunding Portions of Current Debt and New Borrowing and Emeritus
Staff recommendations.

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS
None

ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION
The proposed Board action has b�n reviewed and is recommended for Board approval.

Univ{rsi\y Executive Officer

Date

Eastern Michigan University
Finance, Audit, and Investment Committee
Meeting Minutes
September 1 8, 2012
The meeting was called to order by Regent Morris at 1 1 :00 AM.
Section 16

Recommendation

Monthly Reports - Finance, Audit, and Investment
Committee, Informational Reports and Financial Updates

A motion was made and seconded to accept the minutes from the June 1 9, 2 0 1 2 Board of Regents
meeting.
John Lumm presented the financial updates in a power-point presentation format.
F Y I 2 General Fund Revenues and Expenditures (Slide 1)
The F Y 1 2 total general fund revenue and expense budgets were $283.3 million. We finished the year
at $279.7 million in both expenses and revenues with a draw down on our reserves of $2 million. To
help mitigate the impact on reserves, we implemented a mid-year cost savings plan which resulted in
expenses being $3.6 million under budget while revenues were $5.6 million under budget. The goal i s
to end the fiscal year with a slight surplus (increase to reserves) and that has been the case the last three
years ($ 1 .6M in FY09, $ I .3M in F Y I O, and $0.4M in F Y I I ). F Y 1 2's use of reserves of $2M
represents less than I % of the FY 1 2 General Fund Budget.
F Y I 3 General Fund Revenues and Expenditures (Slide 2)
The F Y 1 3 budget is balanced at $290.6 million. For the first two months we are tracking exactly
where we should be. Thru August 3 1 5\ Revenues are at $97.5 million and expenses are at $57.2
million. Tuition and fee revenue will spike at the end of August and early September so it i s not
unusual to have our revenues $40 million in excess of our expenses at this time.
Grants and Contracts Awarded (Slide 3)
F Y 1 2 we finished the year with $ 1 0.4 million which was down $2. 1 million from F Y l 1 . This was
more than accounted for by lower federal awards in earmarks down $3. 1 million and the state, local,
foundation, etc. were up $ 1 million. The target for the year is $ 1 0.8 million with a stretch goal of
$ 1 1 .3 million. The month of July 20 1 1 was $230K and July 20 1 2 was $307K. Regent Parker asked
that we compare data for WMU, CMU, and GVSU in future reports.
Fundraising (Slide 4)
F Y 1 2 was a banner year in terms of fundraising. We finished with $ 1 1 .5 million which was an
increase of $6.4 million (more than double of F Y I ] ) and $2 million more than the target. The Board
approved fundraising target established in June 20 1 1 for the Foundation was $20 million for FY 1 2 and
F Y 1 3 . $ 1 1 .5 million was actually achieved in FY 1 2 leaving the FY 1 3 goal of $8.5 million. As of
August 28, 20 1 2, we have reached $769K or 9% of the FY 1 3 goal. Per Regent Parker's request to
track the number of actual donors, the numbers through August 28, 20 1 2 were: 902 in 20 1 1 and 8 1 9 in
2 0 1 2.
Cash and Investments (excl. Bond Proceeds) (Slide 5)
As of September 1 5, 20 1 2, EMU has $7 1 million in cash and investments which represents 75 days of

cash on hand. This includes - $ 1 5 . 1 million or 2 1 % in cash & short-term investments, $ 1 5 . 1 million or
2 1 % in intermediate-term investments, and $40.8 million or 58% in long-term investments. Jn
addition, the long-term pool is dispersed into - $28.3 million or 69.2% in fixed income, $ 1 0.4 million
or 25 .6% in domestic equities, and $2.1 million or 5.2% in international equities. This is all consistent
with the University's investment policy.
The portfolio return as of September 1 5 , 20 1 2 was budgeted to earn $700K and has actually earned
$ 1 .5 million.
Information Technology Report (Slide 6)
The I T Division now reports to Academic and Student Affairs with CIO Carl Powell reporting to
Provost Schatzel. The Wireless Upgrades and Voice over I P (VoIP) Telephone Conversions are
proceeding on schedule. The capital plan has $900K budgeted for the Wireless Upgrades and $750K
for the VoIP.
Enrollment and Housing Review
Kevin Kucera, Associate VP for Enrollment and Brian Kulpa, Associate VP for Business Operations/
Student Services gave a PowerPoint presentation on Enrollment and Housing Review.
FTIAC Comparison (Slide 1)
Fall 20 1 2 has 2,595 freshmen compared to 2, 1 30 in 2 0 1 1 , a 23% increase. From a retention standpoint
we are pleased with the increase of the ACT composite of 2 1 .50.
EMU Credit Hour Comparison (Slide 2)
With 1 0 days into the fall 2 0 1 2 term we have 246,059 semester credit hours with 245, 1 70 budgeted.
20 1 2 : The Year of Record Enrollment (Slide 3)
The record for new undergraduate starts has been broken with 5,076 today compared to 4,750 in 201 1 .
This is the sum of FTIAC, Transfer, dual, 2 11d bachelor, UG continuing ed and post bachelor. The
academic preparedness has increased 44% for 3.50 - 4.0 high school GPA from last year and 37% for
3.0 - 3.49 GPA. The FTIAC of color increased 45% with the total undergraduate population
representing 43 states and 79 countries.
Enrollment Initiatives (SI ide 4)
A variety of factors led to the success this year. We had a great team and we are very appreciative of
their efforts.
• Geo demographic research, search purchase
• Affordability/value proposition
• TRUEMU Campaign
• Print Materials
Viewbook
- Admit letter
- Financial Aid letter
• Technology
Text messaging
Phone campaign
Application Process Re-engineering

Regents voiced their concern on the decline in graduate school enrollment. We need to review the
Grant Thornton audit, look at initiatives, strengths and weaknesses, and the process for applications
and give a report full on declines and strategies to address them at the October 30 meeting.
Fall 20 1 2 Housing Occupancy YTD Comparison (Slide 5)
There was an increase in all areas of housing for fall 20 1 2 . There has been an 1 8.64% increase in
FTIAC housing since 2 0 1 1 ( 1 ,833 vs. 1 ,545), a 2.87% increase of returning students ( 1 ,503 vs. 1 ,46 1 )
with a total of 3,336 or overall increase of I 0.98% as of September 1 4, 20 1 2.
Fall 20 1 2 Housing Occupancy Budget Comparison (Slide 6)
The fall 20 1 2 FTIAC budget of 1 ,690 was surpassed with an actual count of 1 ,833, or 1 08.46% of the
budget on September 1 4, 201 2 . Returning students actual count was 1 ,503 ( 1 ,460 budgeted) or
1 02.95% of the budget for a total of 3,336 actual (3, 1 50 budgeted) or 1 05 .90% of budget.
Fall 2 01 2 Apartment YTD Occupancy (Slide 7)
The apartment occupancy is down 2.28% as of September 1 4, 2 0 1 2 with 428 units rented versus 438 in
20 1 1 .
Housing/Apartment Occupancy Projection (Slide 8)
The residence hall occupancy projection for 20 1 2 is 3,336 in the halls and 428 in the apartments for a
total occupancy of 3,764. That number will increase to 4,230 by 201 6 with 3,755 (by converting
single rooms to doubles) in the halls and 475 in the apartments.
Fall 201 2 Housing Occupancy (Slide 9)
The housing occupancy initiatives include:
• Theme/Living Learning Communities
• Fast track
• Pilot Communities
• Greeks, ROTC, International
• Reconfigurations
• Hoyt & Village
• Pricing
• Hoyt & Village Doubles
• Marketing
• Incentivize early sign up, Show rooms
The Board received a recommendation for the creation of a task force consisting of Regent Mike
Morris, President Susan Martin and CFO John Lumm for the purpose of investigating and
recommending to the Board the refunding of the Series 2009 A&B variable rate bonds as well as
recommendations to fund up to $ 1 0 million in new capital projects on campus.
Emeritus Staff Status was awarded to six (6) staff members: Ada Barrett, Supervisor of the
Audit Support Team in Records and Registration, who retired June 9, 20 1 1 with 1 8 years;
Henry Braunz, Heating Plant foreperson for the Physical Plant, retired on March 1 , 2 0 1 2 with
3 0 years; Veda Jenkins, Associate Director, Budget Management, who retired March 30, 20 1 2
with 27 years; Loretta Newman, Administrative Secretary to the Assistant Vice President for

Academic Affairs, who retired February 3 , 20 1 2 with 22 years; Teri Papp, Administrative
Associate to the Vice President for Student Affairs, who retired on January 1 3 , 2 0 1 2 with 26.5
years; and Art Timko, Executive Director of WEMU, who retired on December 23, 20 I O with
42 years of service.
Meeting was adjourned at 1 1 :45 a.m.
Respectfully submitted,
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•

Minutes from September 18, 1012

•

October 30, 2012 Finance, Audit, and I nvestment Committee Agenda
o

Informational Reports and Financial Updates

o Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Information as of 6.30.12
o FY13-14 State Capital Outlay Request
o

FY13-14 General Fund Scholarships, Awards and Grants Requests

o

Livonia Site Lease Agreement

o Detroit Lease Agreement
o

Refunding Portions of Current Debt and New Borrowing

o

Emeritus Staff Recommendations (Consent)

B OARD OF REGENTS
E A S T ERN M I C H I G A N U N I V E R S I T Y

SECTION: 16
DATE:

October 30, 20 1 2

RECOMMENDATION
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY
INFORMATION AS OF .JUNE 30, 2012
ACTION REQUESTED

It is recommended that the Board of Regents receive and place on file the University's audited
fiscal year 20 1 1 - 1 2 financial statements and auditor's report.
STAFF SUMMARY

The Financial Statements and Supplementary I nformation as of June 30, 2 0 1 2 together with the
Auditor's report are attached. Plante & Moran has issued its opinion indicating that the
statements present fairly, and in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, the
financial position, results of operations, and cash flows for Eastern and the Foundation.
Financial Statement highlights include:
• Total Net Assets at June 30, 20 1 2 of $224.7 million including $ 1 85.8 million in Capital
Assets (net of debt), $9.6 million in Restricted-Expendable Net Assets, and $29.3 million in
Unrestricted Net Assets
• A decline in Net Assets for the year ending June 30, 2 0 1 2 of $3 1 . l million reflecting a $30.8
million decrease in the fair value of Eastern's interest rate swap agreements (non-cash,
accounting adjustment) and a small all-funds operating deficit for the year ($300,000).
• Unrestricted and Restricted-Expendable Net Assets of $38.9 million, down $ 1 1 .6 million
year-to-year reflecting the planned investment of the University's accumulated capital tuition
earmark in capital asset projects and improvements.
During their audit, Plante & Moran did not identify any significant deficiencies or material
weaknesses related to the University's controls, accounting practices, accounting estimates, or
financial statement disclosures.
Representatives of Plante & Moran will be attending the Board's Finance, Audit and Investment
Committee meeting to present a summary of the results of their audit including benchmark
comparisons with other universities and to discuss any comments or questions the Board may
have regarding the financial statements or audit.
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS

None
ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION

The proposed Board action has)Jeen reviewed and is recommended for Board approval.
Uniye'rs'ip, Executive Officer
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We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Eastern Michigan University (a component unit of
the State of Michigan) (the "University") and its discretely presented component unit as of June 30, 2012
and 20 1 1 and the related statements of revenue, expenses, and changes in net assets and cash flows for the
years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the University's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In addition, the basic financial statements were audited in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. The financial statements of
the discretely presented component unit were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Eastern Michigan University and its discretely presented component unit as of
June 30, 20 1 2 and 201 1 and the results of its operations and cash flows, if applicable, for the years then
ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
In accordance with Government Auditing Stanclarcls, we have also issued our report dated Opinion Date
on our consideration of Eastern Michigan University's internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with ce1iain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide opinions on the internal control�r
financial repo1iing or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government A uditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that management's
discussion and analysis, as identified on pages 2 through 10, be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information, although not a pa1t of the basic financial statements, is required
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted
of inquires of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquires, the basic financial statements,
and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Opinion Date

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following discussion and analysis of Eastern Michigan University's ("University") financial
statements provides an overview of the University's financial activities for the years ended June 30, 2012,
201 1 , and 2010. Management has prepared the financial statements and the related footnote disclosures
along with the discussion and analysis. Responsibility for the completeness and fairness of this
information rests with University management.
The University's financial statements were prepared in accordance with criteria established by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) for determining the various governmental
organizations to be included in the reporting entity (GASB Statement No. 39). These criteria include
significant operational or financial relationships. Based on the application of the criteria, the University
has one component unit -- the Eastern Michigan University Foundation. The Foundation's statements are
discretely presented as part of the University's reporting entity in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles as prescribed by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB).
Eastern Michigan University offers a supportive, accessible, affordable, and quality learning and living
environment. The University's distinct mix of comprehensive academic resources, strong community
initiatives, focus on education first, and nationally recognized undergraduate research achievements set it
apart.
Founded in historic Ypsilanti i n 1 849, the University occupies 880 acres on the main campus with 122
buildings. In addition, there are seven convenient off-campus locations in Brighton, Detroit, Flint,
Jackson, Livonia, Monroe, and Traverse City for a student body of almost 23,000 students.
Financial Highlights

The University's financial position remained strong at June 30, 2012, with assets of $572 million and
liabilities of$347 million.
In 2 0 1 2 the University received $ 1 0.5 million from a capital outlay allocation to replenish operating funds
for expenses incurred on the Pray-Harrold renovation, the first State Building Authority funding received
since 1 996. The $42 million project was placed in service in September 201 1 and includes $20.98 million
provided by the State in 201 1 .
Due t o fluctuation in interest rates, the fair value o f the derivative liability increased b y $30.8 million i n
2012, followed by a decrease o f $6.7 million i n 201 1 , and a n increase o f $ 7 . 1 million i n 2010.
Net assets have decreased $2.2 million, increased $0.4 million and increased $ 1 .3 million in the General
fund for the years ended June 30, 2012, 201 1 and 2010, respectively, before factoring i n the capital
appropriation, accounting rule change, and operations in other funds:
2012

Net Assets as of June 30 (In millions)
Increase (decrease) in net assets from operations:
General Fund
Other Funds
Derivatives fair value (increase) decrease
Overall increase (decrease) in net assets

$
$

2

(2.2) $
1.9
(30.8)
(3 1 . 1 ) $

20 1 1
0.4
17.6
6.7
24.7

2010
$

$

1.3
4.4
(7. 1 )

( 1 .4)
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The following chart provides a graphical breakdown of net assets by category for the fiscal years ended
June 30, 2012, 201 1 , and 20 1 0.
$300
$250
$200
.2 $150

$100
$50
$-

201 1

2012

Years

201 0

O Unrestricted
1£1 Restricted - Expendable
D Invested in capital assets, net of debt D Total Net Assets

The University has committed the unrestricted net assets to provide for identified future needs. These
needs include contractual obligations, debt service, student loans, capital outlay, insurance reserves,
future retirement costs, and academic programming needs.

3

EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets

The University's financial report includes tlu-ee financial statements: the statement of net assets, the
statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets, and the statement of cash flows.
These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to
the accounting used by most private sector institutions. All of the current year's revenues and expenses
are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid.
Following is a summary of the major components of the net assets and operating results of the University
for the years ended June 30, 2012, 201 1 , and 2010:
Net Assets as of June 30 (In millions)
Assets
Cll!Ten t assets
Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets - Net of depreciation
Other
Total assets
Liabilit ies
ClnTen t I iab ii it ies
Long-tenn liabilities

2012

2010

$

43.6 $

6 1.9 $

90.5

$

460.9
67.6
572.1 $

433.4
91.5
586.8 $

379.2
97.0
566.7

54.7 $
292.7

65.8 $
265.2

60.2
275.4

185.8
9.6
29.3
224.7

205.3
1 0.0
40.5
255.8

166.l
8.9
56.1
231 . 1

586.8 $

566.7

$

Net Assets
Invested in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestiicted
Total net assets
Total liabilities and net assets

201 1

$

572. l
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Operating Results for the Years Ended June 30 (in Millions)

20 1 1

2012
Operating Revenues
Tutition and fees - Net
Grants and contracts
Auxiliary activities - Net
Other
Total operating revenues

$

167.4
1 2.9
35.3
9.5
225 . 1

$

2010

1 62.7
1 6.4
33.4
8.9
221 .4

$

160.0
16.1
32.6
9.1
2 1 7.8

Operating Expenses
Instruction
Research
Public service
Academic support
Student services
Institutional support
Operations and maintenance of plant
Scholarships and fellowships
Auxiliary activities - Net
Depreciation
Other expenditures
Total operating expenses

1 25.3
5.0
1 1 .4
26.5
30.2
3 1 .3
25.9
34.3
28.2
14.1
0.4
332.6

1 22.3
6.3
1 2.4
23.8
3 1. 1
32.6
28.3
34.1
25.6
15.8
0.4
332.7

Net Operating Loss

(107.5)

(1 1 1 .3)

(99.0)

64.6
3.9
(30.8)
34.6
(7.4)

76.0
4.3
6.7
35.3
(7.7)

76.0
4.5
(7. 1 )
29.9
(5.8)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
State appropriations
Gifts
Change in value of derivative instruments
Pell grants
Other nonoperating expenses

1 1 4.5
5.6
14.3
23.9
29.7
32.4
26.7
28.5
25.'1
15.3
0.5
3 1 6.8

Net Nonoperating Revenues

64.9

1 1 4.6

97.5

Other Revenues
Capital appropriations
Capital gifts
Total other revenues

1 0.5
1 .0

2 1 .0
0.4

1 1.5

21.4

0.0
0.1
0.1

Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets
Net Assets - Beginning of year
Net Assets - End of year

$

5

(31.1)
255.8
224.7 $

24.7

23 1 . 1
255.8

(1.4)

$

232.5
231.1

========
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Operating Revenues

Operating revenues include all transactions that result from the sales and/or receipts of goods and services
such as tuition and fees, housing, and other auxiliary units. In addition, certain federal, state and private
grants are considered operating if they are a contract for services and not for capital purposes.
Student tuition and fees revenue increased as a result of a Board of Regents approved tuition and
mandatory fee weighted average increase of 4.25 percent effective Fall 201 1 , partially offset by additional
scholarships.
The following is a graphic illustration of operating revenues by source:

Operating Revenues by Source

D
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Operating Expenses

Operating expenses are all costs necessary to perform and conduct the programs and primary purposes of
the University. Operating expenses were up modestly, reflecting increases in the costs of compensation,
utilities, student financial aid, l ibrary acquisitions, and academic programming.
The University is committed to providing financial support to students. The University has long
sponsored its prestigious National Scholars program which attracts some of the brightest and most
promising students.
The following is a graphic illustration of operating expenses by source:

Operati n g Expenses
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Nonoperating Revenues

Nonoperating revenues are all revenue sources that are primarily non-exchange in nature. They consist
primarily of state appropriations, Pell grant reimbursements, investment income (including realized and
unrealized gains and losses), and restricted development funds that do not require any services to be
performed.
Nonoperating revenue was significantly impacted by the following factors:
•
•
•
•
•

State operating appropriations decreased $ 1 1 .4 million in 2012 to $64.6 million due to the State's
economy.
Investment income decreased $3.6 million to $3.1 million in 2012 due to market conditions.
The fair market value of derivative liability increased $30.8 million in 2012, following a $6.7
million decrease in 201 1 , also due to market conditions.
In 20 1 1 , the University retired $7.5 million of expired library subscriptions with accumulated
depreciation of $4.1 million purchased between 2003 and 201 1 .
Pell grants decreased $0.7 million to $34.6 million in 2012.

Other Revenues

Other revenues consist of items that are typically nonrecurring, extraordinary, or unusual to the
Univt:rsily. Examples would be capital gifts, capital appropriations from the state or federal government,
and transfers from related entities. Capital appropriations for the Pray-Harrold renovation amounted to
$ 1 0.50 million and $20.98 million in 2012 and 201 1 , respectively, for the first State Building Authority
capital outlay from the State of Michigan since 1 996. Capital gifts amounted to $ 1 .0 million in 2012, $0.4
million in 201 1 , and $0.1 million in 2010.
Statement of Cash Flows

Another way to assess the financial health of the University is to look at the statement of cash flows. Its
primary purpose is to provide relevant information about the cash receipts and cash payments of an entity
during a period. The statement of cash flows also helps users assess:
• An entity's ability to generate future net cash flows
• Its ability to meet obligations as they come due
• Its needs for external financing
Cash Flows for the Years Ended June 30 (in millions)
2012

Cash Provided by (Used in):
Operating activities
Noncapital financing activities
Capital and related financing activities
Investing activities

$

2010

2011

(102.6) $ (87 6) S
102.0
1 16.6
( 1 1 1 .6)
(2 5.4)
30.2
53.1

(71.4)
1 1 3. 2
(86.2)
49. 1

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash

4.2

(29.5 )

4. 7

Cash - Beginning of y ear

4.0

33.5

28. 8

s

Cash - End of year

8

8.2

s

4.0

s

33.5

Cash and Investments

Cash and investments, collectively, decreased by $ 1 8.6 million to $62.5 million as of June 30, 2012
primarily due to spending bond proceeds on capital projects.
The most significant components of cash flows provided from operating activities are tuition and fees,
auxiliary activities, grants, and contracts. Net cash used in operating activities was $ 1 08.9 million. To
offset this, the net cash provided from noncapital financing activities, which consisted primarily of State
appropriations, was $ 1 02.0 million. This is compared to net cash used in operating activities in the
amount of $87.6 million and $7 1 .4 million for the years ended June 30, 20 1 1 and 2010, respectively. Net
cash provided by non-capital financing activities was $ 1 1 6.6 million and $1 1 3.2 million for the years
ended June 30, 201 1 and 2010, respectively.
Cash used by capital and related financing activities amounted to $25.4 million in 2012, $ 1 1 1 .6 million in
201 1 , and $86.2 million in 2010, primarily on capital additions.
Capital Assets

At June 30, 2012, the University had $460.9 million invested in capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation of $287.5 million. Depreciation charges totaled $1 4.0 million for 2012 compared to $15.8
million in 201 1 . In 2012 the University completed the Science Complex and Pray-Harrold renovations
and projects to improve auxiliary building energy efficiency, security, and classrooms. Capital projects in
progress at June 30, 20 1 2 primarily include the Rackham renovation, Information Technology
infrastructure replacements, and improvements to the Hoyt residence hall.
At June 30, 201 1 , the University had $433.4 million invested in capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation of $274.9 million. Depreciation charges totaled $15.8 million for 201 1 compared to $ 1 5.3
million in 2010. In 201 1 the University completed the Science Complex addition and projects to improve
auxiliary building energy efficiency, security, and classrooms. Capital projects in progress at June 30,
201 1 primarily include the Science Complex renovation, Pray-Harrold renovation, and additional
improvements to Sherzer, residence halls, and energy efficiencies.
Debt

At June 30, 2012, the University had $234.1 million in obligations outstanding, versus $237.35 million in
201 1 and $241 .0 million in 2010. All of the outstanding debt instruments are general revenue obligations
of the University. Principal payments of $3.2 million, $3.6 million and $3.8 million were made in 2012,
201 1 and 2010, respectively. Included in the outstanding obligations are three interest rate swap
agreements with notional amounts of $ 1 26.9 million, $ 1 25.8 million, and $ 1 25.8 million as of June 30,
2012, 20 1 1 and 2010, respectively. The terms of the swap agreements call for the University to post
collateral to the counterparty under certain conditions tied to the prevailing rating of the University and
the mark to market valuations of the swaps. The University posted collateral of $5 million to the
counterparty as of June 30, 2012. The collateral is reflected in long-term restricted investments. No
collateral was required to be posted as of June 30, 20 1 1 and 2010, respectively.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the University's $1 25,795,000 of enhanced variable rate debt refinanced in 2009, the credit ratings
assigned by Moody ' s Investor Services (Aaa/VMIG- 1 ) were unchanged in 20 1 2 from 20 1 1 and 2010.
Standard and Poor's ratings were AAA/A-1 for 2012 and 201 1 , and AAA/A l -+ for 201 0. For the
University's $ 1 02,380,000 of fixed rate debt, separate ratings ,vere assigned by each agency for the
insured portion of the debt and the uninsured portion. Moody's ratings were Aa2 (insured) and A2
(uninsured); Standard and Poor's ratings were AAA/A-1 (insured) and A- (uninsured). The highest
achievable ratings are "Aaa" and "AAA", respectively. The University's capacity to meet its financial
obligations is considered to be strong by the rating agency and reflects limited additional borrowing
capacity as of June 30, 2012.
Funding for a Successful Future

Eastern Michigan University's focus remains on investing in its students, in academic quality, and in
maintaining and improving facilities that help educate students. Through diligent effo1is at fiscal
stewardship and cost containment, Eastern has set a national standard for tuition restraint in recent years
while still continuing to invest i n facilities and programs that help EMU students succeed in today's
economy.
For the fourth consecutive year, the University has taken a statewide leadership position in keeping higher
education affordable for Michigan students and their families while still focusing on the strengths and
growth of the institution. The Board of Regents approved a tuition and mandatory fee increase of 3.95
percent for fall 2012.
The University's $290.6 million budget for fiscal 2013 reflects a $2 million increase in University
sponsored financial aid. Over the last five years, financial aid has grown by more than 65 percent.
Eastern remains strongly committed to helping students and their families cope with the costs of attending
college. The budget also includes $ 1 .5 million in funding for new academic programs and initiatives to
support continued enrollment growth.
As an initiative to help supp01i enrollment growth, Eastern has instituted the Come Home to Eastern Come Home to Michigan Award. It is designed to welcome home Eastern alumni and their children
by providing a tuition differential award for the difference between in-state and out-of-state tuition. This
initiative builds upon the efforts of the Governor and the Michigan Economic Development Corporation
to bring Michigan's legacy of talent back to the state.
Even during its period of significant tuition restraint, Eastern Michigan has continued to reinvest
in academics and facilities. The university's $2 1 0 million, five-year capital plan includes this fall's
scheduled completion of the next phase of the $90-million, self-funded Science Complex, which is the
complete reopening of Jefferson Hall. The breakdown for that total is 67 percent for enhancing academic
facilities; 8 percent for housing improvements; 5 percent for IT infrastructure; 4 percent for athletic
facilities, with the balance of 16 percent for safety and security, energy savings, parking and infrastructure
projects.
Eastern Michigan University's successful future depends on the collective efforts of its stakeholders.
These efforts build on a solid foundation of exceptional academic programs that prepare students for real
world experience.

JO

2011

2012
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents - unrestricted (Note 2)
Accounts receivable - net (Note 3)
Appropriation receivable
Inventories
Deposits and prepaid expenses
Accrued interest receivable
Total current assets
Noncurrent assets:
Student ,loans receivable - net (Note 3)
Long-term investments - unrestricted (Note 2)
Long-term investments - restricted (Note 2)
Capital assets - net (Note 4)
Capitalized bond expenses - net (Note 5)
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

$

$

1 1 , 1 57,0 1 0

1 2, 1 25,323
52, 170,4 84
24,932,0 84
4 33, 437,7 8 1
2,24 1 ,37 8
5 24 ,907 050
$ ===58=6=.7=6=3.=29=1=

43,3 4 1,83 4

$

LIABILITIES
Cu1Tent liabilities:
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 5)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Accrued payroll, taxes, and fringe benefits
Unearned fees and deposits
Insurance and other claims payable (Note 7)
Total current liabilities

$

10,974,43 9
460, 870, 1 0 8
2 , 1 59,099
52 8 ,502,490
572 .079.020

2,965,000

23,694,24 6

$

46,521,031

$

10,796,24 0
292,713,747
34 7 ,4 1 8 ,272

3,205,000
30,192 ,7 17
2 1 ,540,030
8 ,955,537
1,924,4 75
65, 8 17,759
4,504,0 8 6

4 ,2 16,476

23 1 , 1 8 0,000

2 0,353,35 4

34, 8 0 1 ,332
949,7 1 1
1 ,5 25,660
206,563
6 1 , 8 56,24 1

1 8 ,665,43 8
7,4 8 6,339
1 , 8 93,502
54,704,525

Noncurrent liabilities:
Accrued compensated absences (Note 6)
Long-tenn debt (Note 5)
Fair value of derivative instruments (Notes 5 and 8)
Federal Perkins
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

4,019,621

8 ,2 12,735
1 8 ,712,762
12,61 2 ,3 82
1,21 8 , 107
2,703,779
1 1 6,765
43,576,530

2 34,145,000

15,734,165
1 0,796,240
265, 1 79,49 1
$ ===
7'=
9=
33
25=0=
, 9=
=0=

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets - Net of related debt
Restricted- University development and Perkins loans
Unrestricted
Total net assets

$
$

185,757,7 87
9,5 88 ,044
29,3 14, 9 1 7
224,660,748

205,293,222
10,001,4 86
40,4 7 1 ,333
$ ====
41=
2=
5 5=,7=6 6=
,0=

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION
BALANCE SHEET
As of June 30, 2012 and 2 0 1 1

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2)
A ccrued interest and dividends
A ccounts receivable
Contributions receivable (Note 3)
L ife insurance cash surrender value
Prope1iy and equipment - Net
I nvestments (Note 1 )
I nvestments held lll1der split-interest agreements (Note 1 )
Total assets
LIABILITIES
A ccounts payable
A ccrued l iabilities
L iabilities under split-interest agreements
Total liabilities

$

55,1 1 4, 1 87

$

54,360,621

$

588,088
9, 1 0 6
557,825
1 , 1 55,0 1 9

$

799,886
8,926
794,927
1 ,603,739

$

$

299,0 1 0
1 4,353,588
39,306,570
53,959,168

$

55,1 14, 187

54,360,621
$ ==::::::::::::
===

$

Total liabilities and net assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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$

2011
2, 147,902
46,020
1 5,489
3,506,263
276,780
2,020,223
45,242,754
1 , 1 05,1 90

$

$

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted
Temporarily res1ricted
Pennanently restricted
Total net assets

2012
2,1 88,573
49,932
9,0 1 3
907,081
283,070
1 ,9 5 1 ,001
48,874,5 6 1
850,956

$

$

999,309
1 6, 3 1 8,848
35,43 8,725
52,756,882

201 1

2012

OPERATING REVENUES
Student tuition and fees
Scholarship allowances
Net student tuition and fees
federal grants and contracts
Federal financial aid
State grants and contracts
State financial aid
Nongovernmental grants and contracts
Departmental activities
Auxiliary activities revenue - Net (Note I)
Other
Total operating revenues

$

OPERATING EXPENSES
Instruction
Research
Public service
Academic support
Student services
Institutional support
Scholarships and fellowships
Operation and maintenance of plant
Auxiliary activities expenses - Net (Note 1)
Depreciation
Other
Total operating expenses
Operating loss

205,261,228
(37,907, l 77)
167,354,051
7,245,487
2,274,675
292,917
658, 130
2,500,058
7, 1 6 1 ,685
35,333,355
2,296,425
225, 1 1 6,783

$

199,208,625
(36,460,589)
162,748,036
9,550,088
2,669,020
452,447
428,532
3,230,617
7, 178,278
33,433, 1 1 5
1,691,934
22 1,382,067

1 25,299,662
5,032,390
1 1 ,441,475
26,543,859
30,212,938
3 1,350,414
34,275,204
25,891 , 160
28,222,868
14,0 10,2 1 1
344,893
332,625,074
(1 07,508,291)

122,248,658
6,253,890
1 2,400,042
23,785,560
3 1 , 108,399
32,585,530
34, 124,549
28,282, 1 8 8
25,646,781
15,827,688
423,132
332,686,4 1 7
(1 1 1 ,304,350)

64,61 9,095

160,532
64,942,670

76,026,203
332,368
4,285,059
6,716,471
6,705,791
(1 3,540,544)
1,880,893
35,345,729
(3,391,299)
276,138
1 1 4,636,809

10,509,153
951,175

20,978,386
382,940

Total net nonoperating revenues

76,402,998

135,998,135

(Decrease) increase in net assets

(3 l, 105,293)

24,693,785

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
State appropriations
Federal stabilization funds (ARRA)
Gifts
Investment Income
Change in value of derivative instruments
Interest expense
Interest ARRA subsidy
Pell grants
Writeoff of library subscriptions
Other
Net nonoperating revenues before capital items

3,895,174
3,098,096
(30,786,866)
( 12,551,502)
1,880,893
34,627,248

Capital Appropriations
Capital gifts

NET ASSETS - Beginning of year
NET ASSETS - End of year

$

255,766,041
224,6 60.7.t8

231 ,072,256
$ =====2==5=
5=
. 7=
66
�.0=4�·=

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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2012

REVENUE, GAINS, AND OTHER SUPPORT
Contributions
Investment income
Net realized and unrealized gains (losses)
Adminisb·ative and management fee
Other revenue
Total revenue, gains and other support
EXPENSES
Conttibutions to EMU:
Expendable contributions
Contributions from endowment income
General and administrative - Foundation management
Fundraising
Total expenses

$

7 ,2 1 5,434
779,139
( 1 , 034,13 8)
1 ,903,000
78,737
8,942,172

$

3,025,963
1,456,024
564,592
3,034,639
8,0 8 1 , 2 1 8
$ ---'----'--

$

$

Increase in Net Assets Before Other Changes in Net Assets

860,954

OTHER CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
Funds transferred from EMU
Change in value of split-interest agreements

126,150
2 1 5,182

In crease in Net Assets
NET ASSETS - Beginning of year
NET ASSETS - End of year

$

6,876, 1 1 7
750,687
8,533,396
I, 1 75,000
86,394
17,42 1 ,594

3 , 1 79,090
1 , 3 83,425
559,552
3,056,136
3_
,20
l_
78;_
8 ,_
$ __....;.
_
9,243,391

2,659
(141,109)

1 ,202,286

9,104,941

52,756,882

43,651,941

53,959,168

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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201 1

$

52,756,882

For the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from students for tuition and fees
Cash received from auxiliary activities
Cash received from other sources
Grants and contracts
Student loans granted - Net of repayments
Scholarship allowances
Cash paid to suppliers and employees
Cash paid for financial aid
Net cash used in operating activities

20 1 1

2012

$

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from State appropriations
Cash received from Federal stabilization funds (ARRA)
Pell grants
Gifts received from EMU Foundation
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

203, 1 28,493 $
39,688,272
1 0,3 1 7,684
1 5,076,998
870,287
(42,908,72 1 )
(256,580,423)
(72, 1 82,3 8 1 )
( 1 02,589,7 9 1 )

76,347,555
332,368
35,345,729
4,530,658

63,488, 1 1 5
34,627,248
3,895, 1 74

1 1 6,556,3 1 0

102,0 1 0,537

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
(3,205,000)
Principal payments/defeasance under debt obligations
30,624,083
Cash received from State Building Authority
( 1 2,551 ,502)
Interest paid
(40,257,1
97)
Purchases of capital assets
(25,389,6 1 6)
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of investments
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments
Interest received
Net cash provided by investing activities

(3,6 10,000)
(20,978,3'
( 1 3,540,5'> . ,
(73,462,728)
(1 1 1 ,591 ,658)
(88,772,658)
1 3 5,065,5 1 9
6,865,914
5 3 , 1 58,775

( 1 06,203,4 1 7)
1 33 , 1 95,0 1 3
3 , 1 70,388
3 0 , 1 6 1 ,984

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - Beginning of year

198,990,858
37,1 77,820
1 4,702,995
1 6,298,8 15
3 1 9,566
(4 1 ,061,867)
(240,956,285)
(73,047,008)
(87,575, 1 06)

4, 1 93 , 1 1 4

(29,45 1 ,679)

4,0 1 9,62 1

33,471 ,300

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - End of year

$

8,21 2,735

$

4,01 9,62 1

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH ITEMS
Disposal of fixed assets, net of depreciation

$

83, 1 03

$

3,420,289

95 1 , 1 75

$

Capital gifts received in kind

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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382,940

2011

2012
Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash from
operating activities:
Operating loss
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash
from operating activities:
Depreciation expense
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable - Net
Inventories
Deposits and prepaid expenses
Student Joans receivable - Net
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Accrued payroll
Payroll taxes and accrued fringe benefits
Unearned fees and deposits
Insurance and other claims payable
Accrued compensated absences
Total change in assets and liabilities
Net cash used in operating activities

$

( 1 07,508,29 1 )

60,7 1 7
(40,906)
(83,980)
407,466
4, 135, 1 05
784,838
2,395 , 1 49
599,558
(97, 1 94)
(259, 1 97)
7,90 1,556

1,641 , 1 68
(268,3 1 2)
( 1 , 1 74,404)
968,3 1 3
(6,499,049)
373,958
(3,248,550)
(528,753)
(68,474)
(287,608)
(9,09 1 ,7 1 1)
( 1 02,589,79 1 )

The accompanying notes are a n integral part o f this statement

(1 1 1 ,304,350)

1 5,827,688

1 4, 0 1 0,2 1 1

$
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$

$

(87,575,106)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Years ended June 30, 2 0 1 1 and 2010
20 1 1

2012
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Increase in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile increase (decrease) in net assets
to net cash from operating activities:
Depreciation
Net realized and unrealized (gain) loss on i nvestments
Change i n value o f split-interest agreements
Change in cash su1Tender value of life insurance
Contributions restricted for long-term purposes
Contribution received - land held for investment
Changes i n assets and liabilities:
Contributions receivable
Accrued interest and dividends
Other assets
Accounts payable
Accrued and other liabilities
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchases of equipment
Purchases of investments
Proceeds from the sale of investments
Net cash used in investing activities

$

$

$

1 10,8 1 1
(8,533,396)
1 4 1, 109
(6,784)
(3,046,543)
( 3 1 ,000)

2,599, 1 82
(3,912)
6,476
(21 1,798)
1 80
647,5 1 1

(2,502,043)
12,623
84,962
(54 ,625 )
291
(4,71 9,654)

$

$

(9 1 ,695)
69,775
3,867,845
3,845,925

$

$

( 1 53,8 17)
(1 6,894,638)
16,795,5 15
(252,940)

$

( 1 62,025)
32, 1 6 1
3,046,543
2,91 6,679

$

(2,055,915)

40,671

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

4,203,8 1 7

2,147,902

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of year

9,1 04,941

1 1 0,276
1,034,1 3 8
(2 15, 1 82)
(6,290)
(3,867,845)

(41 ,054)
(24,066,592)
1 9,654, 8 8 1
(4,452, 765)

$

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Payments on split-interest agreements
Proceeds from new split-interest agreements
Proceeds from contributions restricted for Jong-term purposes
Net cash provided by financing activities

1 ,202,286

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of year

$

2,1 88,573

$

2,147,902

Supplemental Cash Flow Information - Cash paid for:
lnterest

$

1 1 3,075

$

1 1 5,382

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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EASTERN l\!IICHIGAN UNIVERSITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 1 - Basis of Presentation and Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation
The financial statements of Eastern Michigan University (the "University") have been prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB). The University follows all GASB pronouncements as well as Financial
Accounting Standards Board (F ASB) Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles (APB)
Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins of the Committee on Accounting Procedures issued on or
before November 30, 1989 unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB
pronouncements. The University has elected not to apply F ASB Statements and Interpretations issued
after November 30, 1989.
The University follows the "business-type" activities reporting requirements of GASB Statement No. 34.
GASB 34 establishes standards for external financial reporting for public colleges and universities and
requires that resources be classified for accounting and reporting purposes into the following categories:
•
•

•

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt - Capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation and outstanding principal balances of debt attributable to the acquisition,
construction, or improvement in those assets.
Restricted, expendable - Net assets subject to externally imposed constraints that they may be
maintained permanently by the University, or net assets whose use by the University is subject to
externally imposed constraints that can be fulfilled by actions of the University pursuant to those
constraints or that expire by the passage of time.
Unrestricted - Net assets that are not subject to externally imposed constraints. Unrestricted net
assets may be designated for specific purposes by action of management or the Board of Regents
(the "Board") or may otherwise be limited by contractual agreements with outside parties. The
University has committed the unrestricted net assets to provide for identified future needs, such as
debt service, contractual obligations, capital outlay, academic programming, and postemployment
benefits.

These statements have also been prepared in accordance with criteria established by GASB for
determining the various govenunental organizations to be included in the reporting entity (GASB
Statement No. 39). These criteria include significant operational or financial relationships with the
University. Based on application of the criteria, the University has one component unit.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Component Unit - The University is an institution of higher education located in Ypsilanti, Michigan,
and is considered to be a component unit of the State of Michigan (the "State") because its Board of
Regents is appointed by the governor of the state of Michigan. Accordingly, the University is included in
the State's financial statements as a discrete component unit. Transactions with the State of Michigan
relate primarily to appropriations for operations, grants from various state agencies, and payments to state
retirement programs for the benefit of University employees.
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Note 1 - Basis of Presentation and Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Component Units of the University - The Eastern Michigan University Foundation financial statements
are discretely presented as part of the University's repo1ting entity. These statements are prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles as prescribed by the Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB). The officers of Eastern Michigan University Foundation include ce11ain
University administrative officials, but the University does have controlling interest in the Foundation's
board. The Internal Revenue Service has determined that the Foundation is tax exempt under Section
50 l (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.
The Eastern Michigan University Foundation exists for the sole purpose of soliciting, collecting, and
investing donations for the benefit of Eastern Michigan University. A complete copy of the audited
financial statements of Eastern Michigan University Foundation is available at the Foundation offices
located near the campus of the University.
Cash and Investments - As a matter of cash management, the University invests substantially all of its
cash in interest-bearing instruments. Investments are reported at fair value, based on quoted market
prices, with changes in fair value reported as investment income in the statement of revenue, expenses,
and changes in net assets. Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments with an original
maturity of three months or less.
Inventories - Inventories consist primarily of supplies, food, pharmaceuticals, and bookstore items, and
are stated at the lower of cost or market, with cost determined by the retail method.
Capital Assets - Capital assets are stated at cost if purchased or at appraised value at the date of the gift
for donated property. Certain net assets have been designated to provide for significant repair and
maintenance costs to residence facilities. Physical prope11ies, with the exception of land, are depreciated
on the straight-line method over the estimated useful service lives of the respective assets. Estimated
service lives are as follows:
1 2 to 60 years
1 2 to 20 years
40 to 60 years
5 to 1 0 years
5 to 1 0 years

Land improvements
Leasehold improvements
Buildings
Equipment
Library holdings

Bond Issuance Costs - Bond issuance costs are amortized over the life of the bonds based on the
outstanding balance of the related debt using the straight-line method.
Unearned Fees and Deposits - Unearned fees and deposits primarily include deferred tuition and fee
revenue for future semesters, exclusivity contract deferred revenue, and agency fund balances held in
custody for others. Retirement benefit costs are funded as accrued.

Accrued Compensated Absences - Accrued compensated absences are comprised of the portion of
unused sick leave accrued as of June 30 but not expected to be paid within one year. The portion of sick
leave expected to be paid within one year and all accrued vacation leave are included in accrued payroll,
taxes, and fringe benefits. The current portions of accrued sick leave and vacation leave were
approximately $400,000 and $3,468,000 as of June 30, 2012, respectively.
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Note 1 - Basis of Presentation and Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

The current portions of accrued sick leave and vacation leave were approximately $400,000 and
$3,7 8 1 ,000 as of June 30, 201 1 , respectively.
Reclassifications - Certain prior year balances have been reclassified to conform with the current year
presentation. In 20 1 1 , approximately $4.8 million of restricted cash and cash equivalents and
approximately $20.1 million of restricted short-term investments were reclassified as long-term restricted
investments. The preparation of the accompanying financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.
Auxiliary Activities - Auxiliary activities consist of the following as of June 30, 2 0 1 2 and 201 1 :

2012
012erating Revenues:
Auxi liary Activities, Gross
Less: Internal Sales
Less: Scholarship Allowances
Auxiliary Activities Revenue - Net

Operating E xpenses:
Auxiliary Activities, Gross
Less: Internal Sales
Less: Scholarship Allowances
Auxiliary Activities Expenses - Net

40,688, 1 2 1
(353,222)
(5,00 1 ,544)
35,333,355

$

$

33,577,634
(353,222)
(5,001 , 544)
28,222,868

$

$

201 1
$
$

$

$

38,529,346
(494,953)
( 4,601 ,278)
33,433, 1 1 5

30,743,0 1 2
(494,953)
( 4,601 ,278)
25,646,781

Operating and Nonoperating Revenues - The University's policy for defining operating activities as
repo1ied on the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets is to report those activities that
generally result from exchange transactions, such as payments received for providing services and
payments made for services or goods received. Nearly all the University's expenses are from exchange
transactions. Certain significant revenue streams relied upon for operations are recorded as nonoperating
revenues as defined by GASB Statement No. 34, including State appropriations and investment income.
Restricted and unrestricted resources are spent and tracked at the discretion of the University's
department within the guidelines of donor restrictions, if any. Pell grant revenue is classified as
nonoperating due to its nonexchange nature. The amounts received for 2012, 20 1 1 , and 2010 are $34.6
m illion, $35.3 million, and $29.9 million, respectively.
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EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2 - Cash and Investments
The University utilizes the pooled cash method of accounting for substantially all of its cash and cash
equivalents. The University's investment policy, as set forth by the Board of Regents, authorizes
investment in securities of the U.S. Treasury and agencies, corporate bonds and notes, commercial paper,
time savings deposits, Eurodollars and certain external mutual funds, separate managed funds and other
pooled funds. Restricted cash and investments represent unspent bond proceeds utilized for capital
projects.
Cash and investments consisted of the following as of June 30, 2012:
Cash and cash equivalents:
Unrestricted:
Time deposits
Money market funds
Total unrestricted cash and cash equivalents
Long-term investments:
Unrestricted:
Corporate bond mutual fund
Government bonds
Domestic equities
Foreign equities
Total long-term unrestricted investments
Restricted:
Certificates of deposit
Time deposits
Government bonds
Total long-term restricted investments
Total cash and investments

Fair Market
Value
$

$

$

$

Less than l
year

7,393,950 $
81 8,785
8,212,735 $

7,393,950
818,785
8,212, 735

$

.

$

. $

30,438,297 $
8 1 ,458
10,756,905
2,065,174
43,341,834 $

-

$

30,438,297 $

-

$

4,833,959 $ 4,833,959
5,000,058
5,000,058
1,140,422
1 ,140,422
1 0,974,439 $ 1 0,974,439

$

62,529,008 $ 19,187,174

$
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More than 10
years

6-10 years

1-5 years
$

.

$

-

$

- $

$

10,756,905
2,065,174
1 2,822,079 $

$

- $

- $

$

. $

-

$

1 2,822,079

$

$

$

30,438,297

30,438,297

$

8 1 ,458
8 1 ,458

8 1 ,458

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2 - Cash and Investments (continued)
Cash and investments consisted of the following as of June 30, 201 1 :
Cash and cash equivalents:
Unrestricted:
Time deposits
Money market funds
Total unrestricted cash and cash equivalents
Long-term investments:
Unrestricted:
Corporate bond mutual fund
Government bonds
Domestic equities
Foreign equities
Total long-term unrestricted investments
Restricted:
Certificates of deposit
Government bonds
Corporate bond mutual fund
Total long-term restricted investments
Total cash and investments

Fair Market
Value
$
$

$

$

Less than 1
year

3,780,6 19 $
239,002
4,019,621 $

3,780,619
239,002
4,019,621

38,264,997 $
63,949
1 1 ,535,3 1 1
2,306,227
52,1 70,484 $

-

$
$

$

$

38,264,997

38,264,997

$

-

$

$

-

$

$

1 1,535,3 1 1
2,306,227
13,841,538

$

$

4,510,916
8,91 5,848

$

4,857,585 $
9,996,546
1 , 162,104
16,016,235 $

$

8 1 ,122,189 $ 12,935,469

$

54,281,232

4,404,933

$

$

$

9,262,5 1 8 $
9,996,546
5,673,020
24 932 084 $

$

i\lore than 1 0
years

6-10 years

1-5 years

$

-

$

13,841,538

$

Target
70%
15%
7%
4%
4%

The University is also exposed to risk indirectly since its mutual fund investees hold investments such as
futures, options, and collateralized mortgage obligations (generally referred to as "derivatives"). This
risk is minimal.

22

63,949

- $

Interest Rate Risk - As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses due to rising interest rates,
the University ' s operating investment policy provides for a diversified portfolio comprised of short,
intermediate, and Jong-term investments. The investment policy does not specifically limit or restrict asset
allocation except for the long-term investment pool. The asset allocation, as a percentage of the total
market value of the long-term investment pool, is targeted as follows:
Asset Category
Fixed Income Securities
Domestic Large Cap equities
Domestic Mid Cap equities
Domestic Small Cap equities
Global/International equities

63,949

63,949

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2 - Cash and Investments (continued)
Credit Risk - Investment policies for cash and investments as set forth by the Board of Regents shall be
to preserve investment principal while deriving a reasonable return consistent with the prevailing market
and economic conditions. The University is not currently restricted to a minimum rating by Moody's
Investor Service or equivalent rating. At June 30, 2 0 1 2 and 201 1 , the University's debt instruments
(subject to fluctuations in interest rates) and related ratings consisted of the following:
2011

2012

Bond Mutual Funds:
Corporate Bonds
U.S. Government Agency Bonds
Total

NRSRO

Rating

Market Value
$
$

30,438,297
8 1 ,458
30,5 1 9,755

AA

Market Value
$
$

43,938,0 1 7
10,060,495
53,998,S 12

NRSRO

Rating
AA
Aaa

The nationally recognized statistical rating organizations (NRSRO) utilized were Moody's Investors
Services or Morningstar. The corporate bonds NRSRO rating is based on a weighted average of the
individual investment ratings.
Custodial Credit Risk - Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of the failure of the hank or
counterparty, the University will not be able to recover the value of its deposits or investments that are in
the possession of an outside party. The University's cash investment policy does not limit the value of
deposits or investments that may be held by an outside party. Investments in external investment pools
and in open-ended mutual funds are not exposed to custodial credit risks because their existence is not
evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form. All cash and cash equivalents are held
in the University's name as of June 30, 2 0 1 2 and 201 1 . As of June 30, 2012, the banks reported balances
i n the disbursement accounts at $8,228,042. Of these balances, $500,058 was covered by federal
depository insurance and $7,727,984 was uninsured and uncollateralized. As of June 30, 201 1 , the banks
reported balances in the disbursement accounts at $6,889,882. Of these balances, $474,066 was covered
by federal depository insurance and $6,415,816 was uninsured and uncollateralized.
Concentration of Credit Risk - Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude
of i nvestment i n a single issuer. The University's investment policy provides that investments will be
diversified within equity and fixed income securities so as to provide a balance that will enhance total
return while avoiding undue risk concentrations in any single asset class or investment category. The
diversification does not necessarily depend upon the number of industries or companies in a portfolio or
their particular location, but rather upon the broad nature of such investments and of the factors that may
influence them.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 2 - Cash and Investments (continued)
The following investments comprise more than 5% of the total investments portfolio as of June 3 0, 201 2
and 2 0 1 1 :
June 30. 2012:
Fair Market Value
4,599,304
$
1 8,075,918
4,623,427
5,000,000
8,55 1 ,855
40,850,504
$

Instrument
JPMorgan Core Bond Select
PIMCO Total Return Bond Fund
Loomis Sales Bond Fund Inst!
Barclay's Capital
Vanguard Inst Index VIND(
Total

June 30. 20 1 1 :
Fair Market Value

Instrument
JPMorgan Core Bond Select
PIMCO Total Return Bond Fund
Loomis Sales Bond Fund Inst]
Total

$

5,520,372

$

1 8,586,527
5,2 1 5,038
29,321,937

Foreign Currency Risk - Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely
affect the fair value of an investment. At June 30, 201 2 and 20 1 1, the University had $2,065 , 1 74 and
$2,306,227, respectively, invested in mutual funds that have funds invested in various countries
throughout the world and therefore, exposes the University to foreign currency risk indirectly. The
University did not have any direct investments or deposits denominated in foreign currencies at June 30,
20 1 2 and 20 1 1.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 2 - Cash and Investments (continued)

Investments at the Eastern Michigan University Foundation are as follows:
2012
33,56 1 ,9 1 5 $
3,920,207
4,704,404

$
Corporate stocks
Corporate bonds
Treasury/Federal securities
Venture capital
Certificates of Deposit (Long Term)
Real estate
Mutual funds
$
Total

603,01 8
55,000
6,268,639
49, 1 1 3 , 1 83

$

2011
30,733,874
3,765,624
4,475,8 1 4
9, 107
55,000
6,665 , 1 9 1
45,704,61 0

Net gains/losses from security transactions for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 201 1 are as follows:

Unrealized gain (loss)
Realized income
Total

$
$

2012
(2,038,265) $
1 ,783,266
(254,999) $

201 1
6,259,8 1 7
3,024,266
9,284,083

Trustee and brokerage fees associated with the maintenance of the endowment securities portfolio were
$405,760 and $326,959 for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 201 1 , respectively, for Eastern Michigan
University Foundation. For recording purposes, these fees have been netted with investment income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 3 - Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consist of the following as of June 30, 201 1 and 201 0 :
Sponsor accounts
Student accounts
01arter school appmpriation
1l1ird pa1ty tuition
Other
Subtotal
Less allowances for possible collection losses

2012
$ 3,571,8 1 5
6,531,595
4,072,428
660,228
5,354,594
20, 1 90,660
(1,477,898)

Accounts receivable -Net

$ 1 8,712,762

$

$

201 1
5,535,242
6,389,252
4,422,607
741,569
4,672,949
2 1 ,761 ,619
( 1 , 408,265)
20,353,354

In addition, the University has student loans receivable of $ 1 1, 1 57,01 0 and $ 12,532,789, net of the related
allowance of $358,666 for both June 30, 201 2 and 20 1 1 . Included in contributions receivable for the
Foundation are the following unconditional promises to give at June 30, 201 2 and 201 1 :
2012

Contributions receivable:
Gross contributions promised
Less allowance for uncollectibles
Subtotal
Less unaimrtized discount
Net unconditional promises to give

$

$

Amounts due in:
Less than one year
One to five years
:tvbre than fi 'Ye years
Total

$
$

26

201 1

1,655,1 2 1
(740,365)
914,756
( 7,675)
907,08 1

$

1 , 266,978
333,143
55,000
1,655,121

$

$

$

4,5 1 3,735
( 980,767)
3,532,968
(26,705 )
3,506,263
4,227,469
2 19,766
66,500
4,5 1 3,735

EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 4 - Capital Assets

The following table presents the changes in various fixed asset class categories for the year ended June
30, 2012:
Additions/
Transfers

20 1 1
Non-depreciable:
Land
Construction in progress
Total non-depreciable

$

1 1,653,978 $
42,927,407
54,581,385

Depreciable:
Infrastructure
Leasehold improvements
Buildings
Libra1y holdings
Equipment
Total depreciable
Total capital assets

34,726,276
3,408,874
491, 127,675
45,03 8, 194
79,457,927
653,758,946
708,340, 3 3 1

Less: Accumulated depreciation:
Infrastructure
Leasehold improvements
Buildings
Library holdings
Equipment
Total accumulated depreciation

25,261,869
3,408,874
142,071,590
39,553,391
64,606,826
274,902,550

Capital assets - Net

$ 433,437,781

20 1 2

Retirements/ Transfers

5,489,522
5,489,522

$

(42,927,407)
( 42,927,407)

$

( 1 ,507,538)
( 1,507,538)
( 44,434,945)

3 7,387,443
3,408,874
564,357,221
46,496,097
79,565,299
731,214,934
748,358,434

( 1,424,436)
( 1 ,424,436)

26,238,680
3,408,874
149,333,433
41,300,394
67,206,945
287,488,326

2,661,167
73,229,546
1,457,903
1,614,9 1 0
78,963,526
84,453,048

976, 8 1 1
7,261,843
1 ,747,003
4,024,555
14,010,212
$

27

70,442,836

$

1 1,653,978
5,489,522
17, 143,500

( 43,0 I 0,509) $

460,870, I 08

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 4 - Capital Assets (continued)
The following table presents the changes in various fixed asset class categories for the year ended
June 30, 201 1 :

Non-depreciable:
Land
Construction in progress
Total non-depreciable

Additions/
Transfers

2010
$

1 1 ,654,068 $
48,414,516
60,068,584

- $
42,927,407
42,927,407

Depreciable:
Infrastructure
Leasehold improvements
Buildings
Library holdings
Equipment
Total depreciable
Total capital assets

33,926,663
3,408,874
41 8,588,800
50,177,585
78,160,606
584,262,528
644,3 3 1 , 1 1 2

72,538,875
2,320,038
3,291,401
78,949,927
121 ,877,334

Less: Accumulated depreciation:
Infrastructure
Leasehold improvements
Buildings
Library holdings
Equipment
Total accumulated depreciation

24,247,077
3,408,592
134, 753,533
40,700,558
6 1 ,998,232
265,1 07,992

1,0 14,792
282
7,31 8,057
2,920,963
4,573,594
1 5,827,688

$ 379,223,120

$ 106,049,646

Capital assets - Net

Retirements/ Transfers
(90) $
(48,414,516)
( 48,41 4,606)

799,613

$

201 1
1 1 ,653,978
42,927,407
54,581,385

(7,459,429)
(1 ,994,080)
(9,453,509)
(57,868, 1 1 5)

34,726,276
3,408,874
491 ,1 27,675
45,03 8,194
79,457,927
653,758,946
708,340,33 1

(4,068,130)
(1 ,965,000)
( 6,033, 1 30)

25,261,869
3,408,874
142,071,590
39,553,391
64,606,826
274,902,550

( 5 1 ,834,985) $

433 ,437,781

The University has encumbrances of $6, 1 08,742 on various construction projects in progress as of
June 30, 2012.
Certain University facilities, including the Bruce T. Halle Library, John W. Porter College of Education,
Boone Hall, Everett L. Marshall College of Health and Human Services Building, the William H. Smart
Physical Plant, the Student Center, and the Pray-Harrold Building have been or are scheduled to be
financed in whole or in pa1t by State Building Authority ("SBA") bond issues which are secured by a
pledge of rentals to be received from the State of Michigan pursuant to lease agreements between the
SBA, the State of Michigan, and the University. During the lease terms, the SBA will hold title to the
respective buildings, the State of Michigan will make all lease payments to the SBA, and the University
will pay all operating and maintenance costs. At the expiration of the individual leases, the SBA has
agreed to sell each building to the University for one dollar.
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Note 5 - Long-term Debt

Long-term debt consists of the following as of June 30, 201 2 and 201 1 :
Outstandin2: Princigal
Retirements/

Interest

Current Portion

Maturity

4.2 1 - 7.21

2014-2038

4.00 - 5.00

2022-2027

23, 160,000

23, 160,000

variable

2038-2049

50,795,000

50,795,000

variable

2038-2049

75,000,000

75,000,000

2.00 - 5.00

2012-2014

3,01 5,000

975,000

2,040,000

1,000,000

3.00-5.00

2012-2013

490,000

240,000

250,000

250,000

5.8

2012-2014

3,785,000

1 ,790,000

1,995,000

1,530,000

5.00-6.00

2012-2024

1,885,000

200,000

1,685,000

I 85,000

Build America
Bonds of2009D

2012

Defeasance

Additions

2011

Rates

$

79,220,000

$

$

- $

79,220,000

$

General Revenue
Bonds of2009C
Refunding Bonds
of2009B
Refi.mding Bonds
of2009A
Refi.mding Bonds
of2003A
General Revenue
Bonds of2002B
General Revenue
Bonds of2002A
General Revenue
Bonds of2000

Less current portion long-term debt
Long-term debt

$

237,350,000 $
3,205,000
234, 145,000
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$

3,205,000

234, 145,000 $
2,965,000
$ 2 3 1 , 180,000

2,965,000

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 5 - Long-term Debt (continued)

Long-term debt consists of the following as of June 30, 201 1 and 2010:
Interest

Retirements/

2011

Defeasance

Additions

2010

Current Portion

Rates

Maturity

4.21 - 7.21

2 0 1 4-2038

4.00 - 5.00

2022-2027

2 3 , 1 60,000

23, 1 60,000

variable

2038-2049

50,795,000

50,795,000

of2009A

variable

2038-2049

75,000,000

75,000,000

of2003A

2.00 - 5.00

20 1 1- 2 0 1 4

3,940,000

925,000

3,015,000

975,000

Bonds of2002B

3.00-5.00

201 1-2013

720,000

230,000

490,000

240,000

Bonds of2002A

5.8

201 1 -2014

5,480,000

1,695,000

3,785,000

1,790,000

Bonds of2000B

4.50-5.875

201 1

3 1 5,000

3 1 5,000

Bonds of2000

5.00-6.00

2 0 1 1 -2024

Build America

Bonds of2009D

General Revenue

Bonds of2009C

Refunding Bonds
of2009B

Refi.mding Bonds
Refi.mding Bonds
General Revenue

General Revenue
General Revenue

General Revenue

Less current portion long-term debt
Long-term debt

$

79,220,000

2,330,000

240,960,000
3,610,000
$ 237,350,000

$

$

$

-

445,000

$

3,61 0,000

$

79,220,000

1 ,885,000

$

237,350,000 $
3,205,000
$ 234, 145,000

On May 5, 2009, the University issued $75,000,000 of General Revenue Variable Rate Demand
Refunding Bonds, Series 2009A, and $50,795,000 of General Revenue Variable Rate Demand Refunding
Bonds, Series 2009B. These bonds refunded $ 1 25,795,000 General Revenue Variable Rate Demand
Refunding Bonds, Series 2009. 2009 Series A&B bonds amortize over 40 years with principal payments
beginning June 30, 2038.
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200,000

3,205,000

Note 5 - Long-term Debt (continued)

On June 1 0, 2009, the University issued $ 1 02,380,000 of General Revenue Bonds, Series 2009C and
2009D, to fund capital projects. Series 2009C for $23 , 1 60,000 are tax-exempt bonds. Series 2009D for
$79,220,000 are taxable issuer Build America Bonds authorized by Section 1 53 1 of the American
Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009. The University will receive payments from the Federal
Treasury equal to 35% of the total coupon interest paid by the University.
On April 1 0, 2008, the University issued $ 1 25,795,000 of General Revenue Variable Rate Demand
Refunding Bonds, Series 200 8. These were issued to refund the $ 4 1 ,395,000 General Revenue and
Refunding Bonds 2001 and the $85,680,000 General Revenue and Refunding Bonds Series 2006A bonds.
The Series 2008 bonds were refunded during fiscal year 2009 as indicated above due to market
conditions.
As bonds are defeased, certain funds that will be paid to bondholders are deposited in trust and
distributions are made by the trustee accordingly. The trust account assets and the liability for the
defeased bonds are not recorded as assets or liabilities in the financial statements of the University. At
June 30, 20 1 2 and 20 1 1 , the aggregate amount of outstanding principal on all bonds which have been
defeased is $4 1 ,20 1,930 and $46,446,330, respectively.
Certain debt agreements require student fees to equal or exceed 200% of the related debt service. The
University is in compliance with these covenants.
Principal and interest on long-term debt are payable from operating revenues, allocated student fees and
the excess of revenues over expenditures of specific auxiliary activities. The obligations are generally
callable. The future amounts of principal and interest payments required by the debt agreements are as
follows:

2013
20 1 4
2015
2016
2017
2018 - 2022
2023 - 2027
2028 - 2032
2033 - 2037
2038 - 2042
2043 - 2047
2048 - 2049
Total

$

Principal
2,965,000
2,460,000
2,580,000
2,670,000
2,780,000
1 5,875,000
20,1 85,000
25,660,000
32,020,000
43,040,000
56,665,000
27.245.000

Interest
13,985,126
13,827,765
1 3,678,301
1 3,5 19,580
13,333,852
63,304,206
57,364,004
49,800,994
39,588,742
27,704,290
1 5, 1 78,773
1.752.702

234.145.000

$ 323.038.335
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Total
1 6,950, 1 26
16,287,765
1 6,258,301
1 6, 1 89,580
1 6,1 13 ,852
79,1 79,206
77,549,004
75,460,994
7 1 ,608,742
70,744,290
71 ,843,773
28.997.702
$

557, 1 83,335

Note 5 - Long-term Debt (continued)
Interest Rate Swaps:

The University currently holds three interest rate swap instruments. The University entered into three of
the agreements at the same time and for the same amount as the issuance of certain variable rate debt with
the intent of creating a synthetic fixed rate debt, at an interest rate that is lower than if fixed rate debt were
to have been issued directly.
The University entered into a single mini-swap while refunding
$ 1 25,795,000 in variable rate debt for a notional amount of $2,490,000 to replace, over time, the
amortizing notional amounts of the 2001 swap and the 2006 swap. The intention of the 2009 swap was
to retain an effective synthetic fixed rate for the 2009A and 2009B bonds. All of the swap agreements are
deemed ineffective hedges at June 30, 2012 and 201 1 . The i neffective swap agreements did not utilize
consistent critical terms as the underlying variable rate debt and a calculation of the actual cash flows
demonstrates a difference from fixed rate cash flows.
As of June 30, 2012 and 20 1 1 , the swap agreements can be summarized as follows:
Changes in Fair Value of derivative
instruments at June 30:
Cash flow hedges: Pay
fixed interest rate swap
(receive variable)

Fair Value of derivative instruments
at June 30:

Outstanding Notional
Amount at June 30:

2012

$

(30, 786,866)

2012

$

(46,521,03 1) $ 126,855,000

201 1

$

6,705,791

20 1 1

$

(15,734,165) $ 1 25,795,000

Due to the swaps being considered ineffective hedges, the change in fair value annually is recorded as a
component of nonoperating revenue in the statement of revenues, expenses and changes i n net assets.
The fair values of the interest rate swaps were estimated on midmarket values and do not include bid/offer
spread that would be reflected in an actual price quotation. Such mid-market values attempt to
approximate the current economic value of a given position using prices and rates at the average of the
estimated bid and offer for respective underlying asset(s) or reference rate(s) and/or mathematical models,
as we have deemed appropriate. In absence of sufficient or meaningful market information available to
us, such valuations, or the components thereof, may be theoretical in whole or in pa1i. Discussions of the
trade values in general, and indicative or firm price quotations and actual trade prices in particular, may
vary significantly from these written estimated values as a result of various factors, which may include
(but not limited to) prevailing credit spreads, market liquidity, position size, transaction and financing
costs.
Effective
Date

Tvpe

Objective

Notional Amount

Pav terms

6/1/2026

Counterpartv credit
rating
Aa3 (Moody's)
A+ (Standard &
Poor's)

62% LIBOR +
20 bps

5/lf2036

Baa I (Moody's)
A- (Standard & Poor's)

68% LIBOR

3/1/2049

A2 (Moody's) A+
(Standard & Poor's)

8/29(200 I

Pay-fixed, Receive variable

Cash flow hedge for
Series 2001

S16,136,000
$24,204,000

4.72%

Receive terms
40% - SIFMA
60%- 68% of
LIBOR

2/22/2006

Pay-fixed, Receive variable

Cash flow hedge for
Series 2006

$80,445,000

3.317%

6/2/2009

Pay-fixed, Receive variable

Cash flow hedge for
Series 2009

$6,070,000

3.096%
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Note 5 - Long-term Debt (continued)
The terms of the swap contracts call for the University to post collateral to the counterparty under certain
conditions tied to the prevailing rating of the University and the mark to market valuations of the swaps.
As of June 30, 2012 the University posted collateral of $5 million to the counterparty. No collateral was
required to be posted as of June 30, 201 1 and 2010, respectively.

In June 201 1 , GASB issued Statement No. 64 Derivative Instruments: Application of Hedge Accounting
Termination Provisions- an amendment ofGASE Statement No. 53. This Statement clarifies whether an
effective hedging relationship continues after the replacement of a swap counterpatty or a swap
counterparty's credit suppott provider and sets fotth criteria that establish when the effective hedging
relationship continues and hedge accounting should continue to be applied. The University has not
replaced the swap counterparty or the swap counterparty's credit suppo1t provider.
Credit Risk The University is not exposed to credit risk on the hedging derivative instruments because
they are in a liability position.
Interest Rate Risk The University is exposed to interest rate risk on its interest rate swaps. On its pay
fixed, receive-variable interest rate swaps, as LIBOR or the Securities Industry and Financial Markets
Association (SIFMA) swap decreases, the University's net payment on the swap increases.
Basis Risk The University is exposed to basis risk on its LIBOR- based swaps due to variable-rate
payments received by the University on these instruments based on a rate of index other than interest rates
the University pays on its variable-rate debt, which is remarketed every 30 days. As of June 30, 2012,
the weighted average interest rate on the University's hedged variable-rate debt is 0.16 percent, while the
SIFMA swap index rate is 0 . 1 8 percent and 68 percent of LIBOR is 0.17 percent. As of June 30, 201 1,
the weighted average interest rate on the University's hedged variable-rate debt was 0 . 1 0 percent, while
the SIFMA swap index rate was 0.09 percent and 68 percent of LIBOR was 0.126 percent.
Termination Risk The University may terminate a derivative instrument on any business day and
terminate and cash settle the instrument by providing prior written notice to the counterpa1ty. Additional
termination events will apply if either pa1ty fails to maintain the appropriate long-term senior debt credit
ratings; or if the University fails to post collateral in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in
the ISDA Credit Support Annex.

Using rates as of June 30, 2012, debt service requirements of the variable rate debt associated with the
2001 swap agreement, 2006 swap agreement, and the 2009 swap agreement and net swap payments,
assuming current interest rates remain the same for term, were as follows. As rates vary, variable rate
bond interest payments and net swap payments will vary.
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Note 5 - Long-term Debt (continued)
Variable Rate Bonds Associated with
2009 Bonds Swap Agreement

Fiscal Year
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
201 8-2022
2023-2027
2028-2032
2033-2037
2038-2042
2043-2047
2048-2049
Total

Fixed Interest
Paid

Principal

$

4 1 ,885,000
56,665,000
27,245,000
125,795,000 $

Variable Interest Net Counterparty
Paid
Interest Exchanged

4,710,304
4,703,408
4,675,446
4,634,649
4,591,969
22,240,935
20,838,424
19,572,588
1 8,92 1 ,640
1 7, 1 17,165
9,666,950
1,276,481
132,949,959 $

201,272
201 ,272
201 ,272
201,272
201 ,272
1,006,360
1,006,360
998,888
976,472
884,609
499,584
65,968
6,444,601

Total Paid

(352,179)
(349,739)
(346,908)
(341,987)
(336,925)
(1,598,702)
( 1 ,452,83 7)
(1 ,249,092)
(] ,058, 199)
(939,896)
(530,808)
(70,091)
(8,627,363) $

$

Capitalized Bond Expenses, Net as ofJune 30, 2 0 1 2 include:
Series
2009C&D
2009A&B
2003
2002A
20028
20008
Total

Capitalized
Amount

$

$

1 ,453,5 1 6
5 3 6,076
24 1 ,385
285,61 6
1 85,556
1 45,867
2,848,01 6

Accumulated
Amortization

$

$
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Capitalized Bond
Expenses, Net

- $

1 8 8,079
224,923
1 63,024
1 1 2,891
688,9 1 7

$

1 ,453, 5 1 6
536,076
53,306
60,693
22,532
32,976
2 , 1 59,099

4,559,397
4,554,941
4,529,8 1 0
4,493,934
4,456,3 1 6
2 1 ,648,593
20,391,947
19,322,384
1 8,839,9 13
58,946,878
66,300,726
28,517,358
256,562,197

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 5 - Long-term Debt (continued)

Capitalized Bond Expenses, Net as of June 30, 20 1 1 include:

Series
2009C&D
2009A&B
2003
2002A
20028
2000A
20008
Total

Capitalized
Accumulated
Capitalized Bond
Amortization
Amount
Expenses, Net
1 ,453,5 1 6 $
1 ,453,5 1 6
$
$
536,076
536,076
1 59,533
8 1 ,852
24 1 ,3 85
1 94,576
9 1 ,040
285,6 1 6
1 40,492
45,064
1 85,556
63, 145
63,145
145,867
1 1 2,037
33,830
2,9 1 1 , 1 6 1 $
669,783 $
2,241 ,378
$

Note 6 - Retirement Benefits

Through December 3 1 , 1 995, the University offered participation in one of two retirement plans for all
qualified employees: the Michigan Public School Employee;,' Retirement System ("MPSERS") and the
Teachers Insurance and Amrnities Association - College Retirement Equities Fund ("TIAA-CREF"). As
of January 1 , 1 996, the University no longer offered pariicipation in MPSERS to new employees due to
the Michigan Public Act 272 of 1 995 which enabled the University to withdraw from MPSERS.
MPSERS is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer noncontributory defined benefit retirement plan through
the Michigan State Employees' Retirement System. The University's costs for the MPSERS plan include
1 ) contributions based on member payroll to fund normal pension costs, 2) contributions to fund a portion
of the plan's unfunded actuarial accrued liability, and 3) contributions for retiree health insurance, at a
fixed dollar amount determined annually by MPSERS.
The cost of the MPSERS plan allocated to the University, all of which was contributed in the applicable
year, was approximately $5,634,000, $6,1 28,000, and $5,945,000 for the years ended June 30, 2012,
201 1 , and 20 1 0, respectively. Further pension data audited by the Office of the Auditor General of the
State of Michigan, for the Michigan State Employees' Retirement System is included in the State of
Michigan's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.
TIAA-CREF is a defined contribution retirement plan. Substantially all full-time employees of the
University are eligible to participate in the TIAA-CREF plan. Employee benefits generally vest
immediately. The University contributes a specified percentage of employee wages, as defined by the
appropriate labor contract. For the years ended June 30, 2012, 20 1 1 , and 2010, the University contributed
approximately $ 13, 1 32,000, $ 12,480,000, and $ 1 2, 1 84,000, respectively, to the TIAA-CREF plan. The
University has no liability beyond its own contribution under the TIAA-CREF plan.
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Note 6 - Retirement Benefits (continued)
The University provides termination benefits upon retirement resulting from unused sick days. The
University calculates its sick pay liability in accordance with the provisions of GASB Statement No. I 6,
Accounting/or Compensated Absences. The liability is approximately $4,616,000 and $4,904,000 as of
June 30, 2012 and 201 1 , respectively. Approximately $400,000 is included in accrued payroll, taxes,
and fringe benefits for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 201 1 . The remaining portion is included in
accrued compensated absences.
Note 7 - Contingencies and Commitments
ln the normal course of its activities, the University is a party to various legal actions. The University
intends to vigorously defend itself against any and all claims and is of the opinion that the outcome of
current legal actions will not have a material effect on the University's financial position.
The University participates in the Michigan Universities Self-Insurance Corporation ("MUSIC"), which
provides indemnity to members against comprehensive general liability, errors and omissions, and
property losses commonly covered by insurance. MUSIC also provides risk management and loss control
services and programs.
Loss coverages are structured on a tlu·ee-layer basis with each member retaining a portion of its losses,
MUSIC covering the second layer and commercial carriers covering the third. Comprehensive general
liability coverage is provided on an occurrence basis. Errors and omissions and prope1iy coverage are
provided on a claims-made basis.
The University is also self-insured for workers' compensation, unemployment compensation and
substantially all employee health benefits. Liabilities for estimates of losses retained by the University
under MUSIC and reserves for claims incuITed but not reported under self-insurance programs have been
established.
Under current accounting standards, the University is required to estimate expected pollution remediation
outlays, when specified obligating events occur, and to determine whether these outlays should be
accrued for as a liability. As a result, the University has accrued an abatement liability for approximately
$426,000 and $43,000 for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 20 1 1 , respectively.
Note 8 - Issued but not adopted accounting pronouncements
The Governmental Accounting Standings Board (GASB) has issued the following Statements for future
implementation:
Service concession arrangements: In December 2010 the GASB issued statement number 60,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Service Concession Arrangements (SCA). An SCA is an
agreement between a University and another legally-separate University or private sector entity in which
two things happen. First, the University transfers to the other entity the right and related obligation to
provide public services through the use of a public asset (such as using a part of a university facility as a
bookstore) in exchange for significant consideration from the other entity. In the context of these
agreements the University that transfers rights and obligations is referred to as the transferor. The entity to
which these rights and obligations are transferred is referred to as the operator. Second, this operator-
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Note 8 - Issued but not adopted accounting pronouncements (continued)
whether it is in the public or private sector- collects fees from the users or customers of the public asset
(for example, students at the university). Finally, the transferor maintains control over the services
provided. For example, the University has the ability to modify or approve the rates that can be charged
for the services and the type of services that are provided.
For an SCA that involves an existing facility, the transferor should continue to report the capital asset. For
a new facility or an improvement to an existing facility, the transferor should report the new facility or the
improvement as a capital asset at fair value when the facility is placed in operation. The transferor should
also report any related contractual obligations as liabilities. Finally, the transferor should report the
difference between those two amounts as a deferred inflow of resources. The provisions of this Statement
are effective for financial statements for the year ended June 30, 20 1 3 .
Reporting Entity Standards: In December 2010, the GASB issued statement number 6 1 , Financial
Reporting Entity: Omnibus. This standard is intended to improve the information presented about the
financial repo1ting entity, which is made up of the University financial reporting entity and related entities
(component units). The statement modifies certain requirements for inclusion of component units in the
financial reporting entity. For organizations that previously were required to be included as component
units by meeting the fiscal dependency criteria, a financial benefit or burden relationship is also needed
between the University and that organization for it to be included in the reporting entity as a component
unit. The statement also modifies the criteria for reporting component units as if they were part of the
University (ie: blending). Blending should be used when the University and the component unit have a
financial benefit or burden relationship, or management has operational responsibility for the component
units. Additionally, for equity interests in legally separate organizations, the entity is required to report its
interest as "restricted net assets - nonspendable." The provisions of this Statement are effective for
financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2013.
Private sector accounting rules: In December 2010, the GASB issued Statement No. 62, Codification of
Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA
Pronouncements. This changes the requirement for the University to apply any private sector accounting
guidance that existed as of November 30, 1 989 and instead incorporates all such guidance in this
statement. The University will no longer have the ability to choose to continue to follow FASB statements
written after that date, although such guidance still qualifies as "other accounting literature" in the GAAP
hierarchy. The provisions of this Statement are effective for financial statements for the year ended June
30, 201 3 .
Deferred inflows/outflows and Net Position: I n June 201 1 , GASB issued Statement No. 6 3 , Financial
Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position. This
standard provides financial reporting guidance for deferred inflows and outflows of resources. Concepts
Statement No. 4, Elements of Financial Statements, introduced and defined those elements as a
consumption of net assets by the University that is applicable to a future reporting period, and an
acquisition of net assets by the University that is applicable to a future repo1ting period, respectively.
Previous financial repmiing standards do not include guidance for reporting those financial statement
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Note 8 - Issued but not adopted accounting pronouncements (continued)
elements, which are distinct from assets and liabilities. The standard also incorporates deferred outflows
of resources and deferred inflows of resources into the definitions of the required components of the
residual measure and by renaming that measure as net position, rather than net assets. The provisions of
this Statement are effective for financial statements for the year ended June 30, 20 1 3 .
Items Previously Reported a s Assets and Liabilities: I n March 2012, the GASB issued GASB
Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities. Statement No. 65 establishes
accounting and financial reporting standards that reclassify, as deferred outflows and inflows of
resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities. This Statement also
provides other financial reporting guidance related to the impact of the financial statement elements
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources. The provisions of this Statement are
effective for financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2014.
Pensions: In June 2012, the GASB issued GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Pensions. Statement No. 68 requires governments providing defined benefit pensions to recognize
their unfunded pension benefit obligation as a liability for the first time, and to more comprehensively and
comparably measure the annual costs of pension benefits. The Statement also enhances accountability and
transparency through revised note disclosures and required supplementary information (RSI). The
university is crnTently evaluating the impact this standard will have on the financial statements when
adopted. The total pension liability will be computed on a different basis than the current actuarial
accrued liability and the method of allocating this liability to each participating employer has not yet been
determined, so the precise impact is not known. However, if we approximate the liability based on the
actuarial accrued liability and allocate based on covered payroll, this computes to a liability of $55
million. The provisions of this Statement are effective for financial statements for the year ended June 30,
2015.
The University will continue to assess the impact o f these new accounting pronouncements on the
University's financial statements for adoption in fiscal 2013, 2014, or 2015, respectively.
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Report oflndependent Auditors on Supplemental Information

To the Board of Regents
Eastern Michigan University

We have audited the financial statements of Eastern Michigan University as of and for the years ended
June 30, 2012 and 201 1 . Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial
statements as a whole. The Schedule of Net Assets by Fund and Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and
Changes in Net Assets by Fund are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required
part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
financial statements and ce1iain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

September xx, 2012
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BY FUND

as of June 30, 2012
General
Fund

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents - unrestricted
Accounts receivable - Net
Appropriation receivable
Inventories
Deposits and prepaid expenses
Accrued interest receivable
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Student loans receivable - Net
Long-term investments - unrestricted
Long-term investments - restricted
Capital assets - Net
Capitalized bond expenses - Net
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

$

( 14,562,713)
6,104,108
1 1 ,748,926
623,100
2,124,464
1 1 6,386
6,154,271

Auxiliary
Activities
Fund

Designated
Fund
$

5,340,849
589,224

$

5,66 1 ,7 1 1
3,823,724

80
3,799

594,927
2 1 ,306

5,933,952

1 0, 1 0 1 ,668

43,260,376

$

43,260,376
49,414,647

$

5,933,952

$

1 0, 1 0 1 ,668

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
Current portion of long-term debt
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Accrued payroll
Payroll taxes and accrued fringe benefits
Unearned fees and deposits
Insurance and other claims payable
Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities:
Accrued compensated absences
Long-tern1 debt
Fair value of derivative instruments
Federal Perkins
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

$

4,320,605
12,071,268
5,8 1 1 ,753
5,767,270
1,267,575
29,238,471

$

236,750

$

782,41 7
258,351
588,427
5,198,405

92,874
329,624

373,921

3,842,555

$

3,842,555
33,081,026

3,569,2 1 0

$

329,624

$

373,921
5,572,326

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets - Net of related debt
Restricted-University development and Perkins loans
Unrestricted
Designated
Undesignated
Total net assets

$

$

16,333,621

41

4,529,342

5,604,328

16,333,621
$

$

$

5,604,328

$

4,529,342

rr�1) r"r,1f,
,.r. e·
. .:.·.-�1 ! ii
t..r
w;.'..

\�Ji;. "

1!,

...

lL":\

�-

.):,· . _..

l lf'::c:r. Pf"'�- ;P"' �·F�\
r:.:, ,?"] (()
e:r1 �GAN
-UN�� SI'lJXe� f.{
t! (())
-i �if n 1 t' · ,.
F N - ASSETS ··�. ·· _.,,,., a

I

" � ,,,
•· �ic
--� D fi1

2"

.it�·

ell

��· ' .

E�S'H j [lli·;

· ,

BY FUND

as of Ju n e 30, 2 0 1 2
Stu d e n t
Loa n
Fu n d

E:\: p e n d a b l c
Restricted
Fund

$

5,434, l 9 1
7,424,230

$

5 00

$

4,202, 1 07

s
$

$

7,969, 573

6 1 5 , 890

6 1 5,890

8 ,2 1 2,735
1 8,7 1 2,762
1 2,6 1 2,382
1 ,2 1 8, 1 07
2,703,779
1 1 6,765
4 3 , 5 76,530

6 1 5 , 890

1 1 , 1 5 7,0 1 0
43,34 1 ,834
1 0,974,439
460,870, I 08
2, 1 5 9,099
528,502,490
572,079,020

$

553,7 1 0
6,653 ,549

1 1 , 1 5 7,0 1 0
1 2,4 1 5,289

578

$

$

$

$

1 0,796,240
1 0,796,240
1 0,796,8 1 8

1 ,6 1 8,47 1

1 0,974,439
460,870, 1 0 8
2, 1 59,099
4 74,003,646
480,657, 1 9 5

2,965,000
l l ,348,25 1

$

$

$

6 1 5,890

2,965,000
23,694,246
1 2,07 1 ,268
6,5 94, 1 70
7,486,339
1 , 8 93,502
54,704 , 525

6 1 5,890

4,2 1 6,476
23 1 , 1 80 ,000
46,52 1 ,03 1
1 0,796,240
292,7 1 3,747
347,4 1 8 ,272

1 6,74 5

$

599, 1 4 5

3 7,500
1 4,350,75 1

578

4,970,806

4,970,806

$

Con s o l i d ated
Total

863,45 6

768,699

$

5 236,3 83

Agen cy
Fund

1 1 , 1 57,0 1 0

8 1 ,4 5 8

8 1 ,4 5 8
1 2,940,379

$

379
1 ,2 5 8,279

1 2,858,92 l

$

4 8 6 424
77 1 , 476

Pla n t
Fund

23 1 , 1 80,000
46,52 1 ,03 1
$

277,70 1 ,03 1
292,05 1 ,782

$

$

1 85 , 7 5 7,787

$

$

$

2,847,626
$

7,969,573

$

1 ,61 8,471

$

1 8 8,605,413

$

42

s

1 85,757,787
9,5 8 8 ,044
1 2,98 1 ,296
1 6 , 3 3 3 ,62 1
224,660,748
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BY FUND
For June 30, 2012
General
Fund

OPERATING REVENUES
Student tuition and fees
Scholarship allowances
Net student tuition and fees
Federal grants and contracts
Federal financial aid
State grants and contracts
State financial aid
Nongovernmental grants and contracts
Departmental activities
Auxiliary activities - Net
Indirect cost recovery (deduction)
Other
Total operating revenue,

$

OPERA TING EXPENSES
Instruction
Research
PubIic service
Academic support
Student services
Institutional support
Scholarships and fellowships
Operation and maintenance of plant
Auxiliary activities expenses - Ne1
Depreciation
Capital additions - Net
Other
Total operating expense!
Operating income (loss)

203,848,781 $

661,743 $

203,848,781

661,743

4,032,149

3, 129,536

622,7 1 9
1 ,647,388
2 1 0, 1 5 1 ,037

745,740

737,289
45, 1 14
237,757
639,28 l
2,298,027
990,208

1 ,633,697

89,136

64,61 9,095
2,963,237

Net nonoperating revenues (expenses) before
transfers and capital items
TR<\NSFERS IN (OUT)
Mandatory:
Funds for debt service
Matching funds
Non-mandatory:
Other
Total transfers

4,537,0 1 9

123,94 1 ,816
1 , 176,542
3,791,540
25,634,41 3
27,680,432
30,250,095
32,533,252
24,047, 1 5 1

270,688,938
(60,537,90 1 )

1\0NOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
State appropriations
Gifts
Investment income
Change in value of derivative instrumenti
Interest expense
Interest ARRA subsidy
Federal stabilization funds (ARRA)
Pell grants
Other

Designated
Fund

67,582,332

50,4 l 5

5,087,227
(550,208)

Auxiliary
Fund

40,334,899
40,334,899

33,224,4 l 2
1 0 1 , 1 21
33,325,535
7,009,364

(20,0 13)

(20,0 1 3 )

(2,654,1 19)

(6,701 ,247)
(357,092)
(2, 1 84,938)
(9,243,277)

(908,507)
(908,507)

(6,308,353)
(8,962,4 72)

58,339,055

(928,520)

(8,962,472)

(1 ,478,728)

( 1 , 953,108)

Capital Appropriations
Capital grants and gifts

Total net nonoperating revenues (expenses)

(2, 198,846)

Increase (Decrease) in net asset!
NET ASSETS, Beginning of year
NET ASSETS, End of year

$

43

18,532,467
1 6,333,621 $

7,083,056
5,60.t,328 $

6,482,450
4,529,342
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Expendable
Restricted
Fund

$

750,704 $
750,704
7,210,443
2,274,675
292,9 1 7
658,130
2,500,058
( 1,368,459)
608,2 1 9
1 2,926,687

I

1

52, 1 84,556
(39,257,869)

3,880,429
1 7,509

Student
Loan
Fund

Plant
Fund
- $

39,328
74,372

- $

1 ,490
1,490

1,793,594

201,147
201,147
( 126,775)

1 60,886

14,010,2 1 1
( 1,90 I ,1 59)
143,746
1 4,046,392
(14,044,902)

1 60,886

(5,001,544)
(42,908, 72 1 )

2,296,425
225, 1 1 6,783

(37,907, 177)
(5,001,544)

(42,908, 72 1 )

125,299,662
5,032,390
1 1 ,441 ,475
26,543,859
30,212,938
3 1 ,350,414
34,275,204
25,891 , 1 60
28,222,868
14,010,2 1 1
344,893
332,625,074
(I 07,508,291)
64,61 9,095
3,895,174
3,098,096
(30,786,866)
(12,551,502)
1 ,880,893

34,758
(43,536)
(30,786,866)
( 12,55 1,502)
1,880,893

34,627,248
1 60,532

(4 1 ,466,247)

64,942,670

9,355,366

(232,488)
124,604

9,634,286
1 8,989,652
10,509,153
951,175

$

Consolidated
205,261,228
(37,907,177)
1 67,354,051
7,245,487
2,274,675
292,9 1 7
658, I 30
2,500,058
7 , 1 6 1 ,685
35,333,355

- $

(37,907, 177)
(3 7,907, 177)

6

357,092

38,810,316

f) � W t

Eliminations

35,044

34,627,248
160,526
38,685,712

1� �
. �·· ,� �

ES, E PENSES, A D �
NGES N NET ASSETS
BY FUND
For June 30, 2012

620,557
3,810,734
7,412,178
270,165
234,479
1 10, 1 1 1
39,649,129

77,203

..

10,509,153
9 5 1 , 1 75

1 60,886

( 1 1 ,0 1 6,267)

(447,553)

76,402,998

34,1 1 1

(25,061 , I 69)

(3 1 , 105,293)

8,4 1 7, 126
7,969,573 $

1,584,360
1,61 8,471 $

21 3,666,582
188,605,41 3 $

- $

44

255,766,041
224,660,748
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ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents - unrestricted
Accounts receivable - Net
Appropriation receivable
Inventories
Deposits and prepaid expenses
Accmed interest receivable
Total current assets
Noncurrent assets:
Student loans receivable - Net
Long-tenn investments - unrestricted
Long-term investments - restricted
Capital assets - Net
Capitalized bond expenses - Net
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Current po1tion oflong-tenn debt
Accounts payable and accmed liabilities
Accmed payroll
Payroll taxes and accrned fringe benefits
Unearned fees and deposits
Insurance and other claims payable
Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities:
Accmed compensated absences
Long-tem1 debt
Fair value of derivative instmments
Federal Perkins
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets - Net of related debt restated
Restricte d -University development and Perkins loans
Unrestricted
Designated
Undesignated
Total net assets

$

( 1 8 ,507,94 8)
5,8 8 1,852
1 3,822,946
463,240
740,7 8 5
1 44,602
2,54 5,477

Auxiliary
Activities
Fund

Designated
Fund

Gencrnl
Fund
$

6,43 7,822
8 18,884

$

7, 440,388
3 ,2 8 5,197
48 6,475
1 88 ,746

43 1
3 ,79 8
7,260,935

1 1 ,400, 8 06

52,106,5 3 5

$

$

52, 106,5 35
5 4,652,012

2,392,334
1 1,697,3 1 0
8 ,93 5,631
7,66 8 ,777
l , 3 17,967
32,012,019

60=
,9=
3=
)$ ==7e,,;,2
=
=

06==
l ,400=
$ =�Ie,,;
=== ,8=

$

$

60,390

907,0 8 9
366,451
606,50 8
4 ,521,796

1 1 7,489
177, 8 79

396,560

4, 107,526

$

4,1 07,526
36, 1 1 9,545

$

$

1 8 ,532,467
18,532,4 67

45

2,64 1,748

I 77=
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396,560
9 1 8 ,3)
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$
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as of June 30, 2011
Expendable
Restricted
Fund
$

3,339,628
9, 736, 749

Student
Loan
Fund
$

585

$

4,529,081

5,079,859
(2,870)
20,978,386
(2)
595, 1 1 1
57,784
26,708,268

$

$

12, 125,323
12,380,600

$

$

$

24,932,084
433,437,781
2,241,378
460,61 1,243
487,3 19,5 1 1

3,205,000
20,568,764

$

$

23,773,764

4,723,785

$

4,723,785

8,417,126

608,5 1 6

4,019,621
20,353,354
34,801,332
949,713
1,525,658
206,563
6 1 ,856,241

608, 5 1 6

12, 125,323
52, 1 70,484
24,932,084
433,437,781
2,241,378
524,907,050
586,763,291

$

$

608,516

3,205,000
30,192,7 1 7
1 1,697,3 1 0
9,842,720
8,955,537
1,924,475
65,817,759

608,5 1 6

4,504,086
234,145,000
15,734, 165
10,796,240
265, 179,491
330,997,250

400

$

608, 1 16

1 94,704

$

608, 5 1 6

Consolidated
Total

12,125,323

63,949

63,949
13,140,911

$

379
255,277

13,076,962

$

(378,644)
633,542

Agency
Fund

Pinnt
Fund

$

s

234, 145,000
15,734,165

1 0,796,240
1 0,796,240
1 0,796,240

1,584,360

249,879, 165
273,652,929

$

205,293,222

$

$

$

8,373,360
$

8,417,126

$

1,584,360

$

213,666,582

$

46

$

205,293,222
10,001,486
2 1 ,938,866
1 8,532,467
255,766,041
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OPERATING REVENUES
Student tuition and fees
Scholarship allowances
Net student tuition and fees
Federal grants and contracts
Federal financial aid
State grants and contracts
State financial aid
Nongovernmental grants and contracts
Departmental activities
Auxiliary activities revenue, net
Indirect cost recovery (deduction)
Other
Total operating revenues

s

1 98,308,995

OPER\TING EXPENSES
Instruction
Research
Public service
Academic support
Student services
Institutional support
Scholarships and fellowships
Operation and maintenance of plant
Auxiliary activities expenses, net
Depreciation
Capital additions, net
Other
Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)

s

151,386

198,308,995

15 1,386

3,147,505

3,643
4,030,773

38,034,393

869,717
5,055,519

121,295,428
952,016
4,224,703
22,737,386
28,479,677
3 1,887,382
30,678,581
26,461,127

567,862
187,124
213,208
488,412
1,988,972
5 13,350
6,735
19,255

3,618,422

94,066

72,291

4,078,984
976,535

30,320,350
7,714,043

76,026,203

(56,994)

5,759,489

81,785,692

TR'-\NSFERS IN (OUT)
Mandatory:
Funds for debt service
Matching funds
Non-mandatory:
Other
Total transfers

$

674,669
901,553
203,032,722

270,334,722
(67,302,000)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
State appropriations
Gifts
Investment income
Change in value of derivative instruments
Interest expense
Interest ARRA subsidy
Federal stabilization funds (ARRA)
Pell grants
Write off of library subscriptions
Other
Net nonoperating revenues (expenses) before transfers and capital items

Auxiliary
Fund

Designated
Fund

General
Fund

(1 1,768,000)
(374,537)

(56,994)

38,034,393

30,248,059

937,714

937,714

(3, 141,027)
1,150

(1,945,794 )
(14,088,331)

( 1 ,786,713)
( 1,785,563)

447,957
(2,693,070)

67,697,361

( 1,842,557)

(1,755,356)

395,361

(866,022)

5,958,687

Capital Appropriations
Capital grants and gifts
Total net nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Increase (Decrease) in net assets
NET ASSETS, Beginning of year
NET ASSETS, End of year

18,137,106
,4·61
s ===1s
2.;,=
='=s3
=
=
=
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Expendable
Restricted
Fund

s

748,244

Student
Loan
Fund
$

748,244
9,481,572
2,669,020
452,447
428,532
3,226,974

Plant
Fund
$

Eliminations
$

68,516

( 1,544,386)
743,911
16,206,314

44,438
l 12,954

2,032
2,032

385,368
5,1 1 4,750
7,962,131
559,762
639,750
184,798
39,899,822
1 78,087

240,521
240,521
(!27,567)

55,368,851
(39, l 62,537)

4,3 l l,362

332,368
35,345,729

(41,061 ,867)

1,691 ,934
221,382,067
l 22,248,658
6,253,890
1 2,400,042
23,785,560
3 1 , 1 08,399
32,585,530
34, 124,549
28,282,188
25,646,781
1 5,827,688
423, 132
332,686,417
( 1 l l,304,350)

(4 l ,061 ,867)

76,026,203
4,285,059
6,716,471
6,705,791
( l 3,540,544)
l,880,893
332,368
35,345,729
(3,391,299)
276,138
1 14,636,809

(3,391,299)

276,138
40,265,597

168,571

L,�.,;/ �--:r9

(4,601,278)

$

30,691
(149,303)
6,705,791
(13,540,544)
1,880,893

168,571

[

199,208,625
(36,460,589)
162,748,036
9,550,088
2,669,020
452,447
428,532
3,230,61 7
7,178,278
33,433,1 15

(36,460,589)
(36,460,589)

(4,601 ,278)

1 5,827,688
(4,229,162)
1 82,61 l
13,404,856
(13,402,824)

,

Consolidated

(36,460,589)

l ,623,7 1 9

444,383

(8,463,771)

14,909,027

373,387
(394,806)
(21,419)

s

I

,.,
1
[1 J
REVENUES, EXPENSES, X"ND CIIA�pES IN NET ASSETS
BY FUND
For June 30, 201 1

r� ,; -

fr·1/·11 \ )) (}=,� r'

3,679,356
l 8,588,383
20,978,386
382,940

20,978,386
382,940

40,244,178

168,571

31,485,938

l 35,998, 135

1,081,641

4 1 ,004

1 8,083 , 1 1 4

24,693,785

7,335,485
8,417,126

s

l,543,356
1,58-1,360

s

195,583,468
2 13,666,582

s

$

48

231,072,256
255,766,041

(

I

Basis of Presentation:
The University utilizes four current and tlu·ee noncurrent fund groupings for internal operating
purposes, as follows:
Current Fund Groupings:
General Fund is used to account for general operating activities.
Designated Fund is used to account for funds designated by University policy.
Auxiliary Activities Fund is used to account for services and facilities provided to
students, faculty, staff, and the public.
Expendable Restricted Fund is used to account for funds restricted by donor or
supporting agency.
Noncurrent Fund Groupings:
Student Loan Fund is used to account for transactions related to loans to students.
Plant Fund is used to account for transactions relating to investments in physical
prope11ies, indebtedness incurred i n the financing thereof and reserves for maintenance,
replacement, insurance, and debt service.
Agency Fund is used to account for amounts held in custody for students, University
related organizations, and others.
The eliminations on the Schedules of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets by Fund
represent the rec!ass of scholarship allowances as required by Governmental Accounting
Standards Board Statement No. 35, Basic Financial Statements and Management's Discussion
and Analysis for Public Colleges and Universities.
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SECTION: 1 7
DATE: October 30, 20 1 2

BOARD OF REGENTS
Eastern Michigan U n i versity

RECOMMENDATION
201 3-201 4 GEN ERAL FUND SCHOLARSHIPS, AWARDS AND GRANTS
ACTION REQUESTED
It is recommended that the Board of Regents approve the 201 3-2014 General Fund Scholarships,
Awards and Grants proposal for $38,085,000.
STAFF SUMMARY
The General Fund Scholarships, Awards and Grants request is presented to the board for approval
earlier to reflect programmatic and funding changes for the next recruitment cycle, and to meet admission
publication timelines.
This request, which represents a 7.5% increase in student aid over the prior year, supports the goal of
550,000 credit hours for FY1 3-14 and underscores our significant financial investment in our students'
education.
The primary reason for the requested increase is to align the budget with the addition of 2,595 FTIAC
students in 2012, a net gain of 465 students compared to 201 1 . The 2,595 FTIAC total is 1 95 students
higher than the 201 2 budgeted goal of 2,400 students. We are also aligning budget with a FTIAC 2 0 1 3
goal of 2,600 students.
Enrollment goals for 201 3-20 1 4 include attracting more academically skilled FTIAC students. This budget
request is based on 2,600 FTIACS and 550,000 credit hours. We will continue to seek an improved net
revenue position with the growth of our FTIAC population.
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS
The 201 3-2 0 1 4 Scholarships, Awards and Grants proposal of $38,085,000 represents an increase of
$2,657,4 1 1 (7.5%) over the 201 2-201 3 approved budget of $35,427,589.
The total proposal of $38,050,000 includes:
1.
2.
3.
4.

Scholarships, Awards and Grants
Athletic Grants-In-Aid
Federal & State Matches
Graduate Aid

$ 25,963,000
$ 7,097,000
$
650,000
$ 4,375,000

ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION
The proposed Board action IJ._9s been approved and recommended for board approval.

U niv¢'sity,xecutive Otticer

Date

•

EASTERN

MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY

Education First

Genera l Fund Scholarships, Awards and Grants

Proposal for 20 1 3-20 1 4

Division of Academic and Student Affairs
October 30, 20 1 2

TABLE O F CONTENTS

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

C HART A

201 3-20 1 4 Budget Request
Academic Scholarships, Awards and Grants (Athletic, Federal, State)

CHART B

201 3-2014 Athletic Grants-in-Aid Request

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Key highlights 201 3-1 4:

It is recommended that the Board of Regents approve the General Fund Scholarships,
Awards, and Grants proposal for the $38,085,000.
The primary source of funding increase reflects the recruitment of a 2012 FTIAC of 2,595
students, 465 students higher than previous year. The expectation is to continue to recruit a
2013 FTIAC class of 2,600 as reflected in this request.

Summary
I.

Total Academ ic Scholars h i ps, Awards and Grants

$25,963,000

II.

Athletic G ra nts-in-Aid

$ 7,097,000

Ill.

Federa l and State Re q u i red Matches

$

IV.

G rad uate Aid

$ 4,375,000

2013/20 14 Scholarship, Athletic Aid & A wards Proposal

650, 000

$38,085.000

Note: Exceptions are made at the discretion of the Director of Financial Aid or designee. Unless otherwise
noted, funds may be transferred from under-utilized accounts to other areas of need within the above
accounts

CHART A
Fin Aid
12/1 3 A roved

Units

Fin Aid
1 3/ 1 4 Pro osal

50,000
1 , 000,000
484,000
230,000
75.000
3,330,000
584,000
35,000

3
57
50
60
15
300
40
3

50,000
1 ,000,000
484,000
230,000
60,000
4,347,000
0
35,000
1 40,000

3
57
50
60
10
365
0
3
10

0
0
0
0
(1 5,000)
1 ,01 7,000
(584,000)
0
1 40,000

Not Tuition Sensitive
Recognition of Excellence
EMU Success Scholarship
Campus Housing Awards
Leader Award
Regents Scholarship
Transfer Scholarship
Eagle Scholarship
Emerald Scholarship
TRUE MU
Challenge Award

1 ,300,000
1 75,000
600.000
161 ,000
1 ,800,000
800,000
900,000
4 , 1 1 2 ,000
0
400,000

831
50
600
161
700
450
540
1 ,920
0
0

1 ,000,000
1 75,000
375,000
161 ,000
1 ,290,000
400,000
525,000
1 0,000,000
341 ,000
525,000

650
50
350
161
560
225
390
3,775
205
500

(300,000)
0
(225,000)
0
(51 0,000)
(400,000)
(375,000)
5,888,000
341,000
125,000

Need Based
University Grant
Education First Opp Scholarship (EFOS)

3,387,589
600,000

3,600
300

2,000,000
700,000

2,600
400

( 1 ,387,589)
1 00,000

Departmentally Managed
International Partnership Award*
International Partnership Award* Provisional
Michigan National Guard Grant
Honors College Award
Undergraduate Honors Assistantship
Communication and Theatre Arts Award
Music Service Award
ROTC Service Award

1 ,560,000
200,000
120,000
200,000
90,000
65,000
60,000
30,000

1 ,560,000
0
1 20,000
200,000
90,000
65,000
60,000
30,000

1 65
60
76
200
35
59
76
20

Total Scholarships & Awards

22,348,589

0
{200,000)
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
3,614,4 1 1

Out State Tuition Differential*
Men's Athletic Award - Room/Board
Men's Athletic Award - Tuition/Fees
Spring Academic Aid
Women's Athletic Award - Tuition/Fees
Women's Athletic Award - Room/Board
Men's Football Summer
Women's Basketball Fifth Year Aid
Total Athletics

1 ,941 ,000
1 ,239,000
1 ,481 ,000
120,000
1 ,31 0,000
1 ,095,000
30,000
1 5,000
7,231 ,000

122
151
151

(356,000)
60,000
57,000
0
50.000
55,000
0
0
( 1 34,000)

Award Name
Tuition Sensitive
Academic Team Scholarship
Presidential Scholarship
Regents Gold Scholarship
Michigan Indian Tuition Waiver
Wade Mccree Scholarship
National Scholars Program•
National Scholars Program• Provisional
EMU Vet Connect
Come Home to Michigan•

1 65
60
76
200
35
59
76
20

Units

25,963,000

Variance

Athletics
122
151
151
134
1 34

1 ,585,000
1 ,299,000
1 ,538,000
1 20,000
1 ,360,000
1 , 1 50,000
30,000
1 5,000
7,097,000

1 34
1 34

Federal M atching Funds
Federal Work Study
Federal Perkins/NDSL
Federal Supplement Grant
Total Federal Matches

1 ,000,000
23,000
0
1 ,023,000

627.000
23,000
0
650,000

Total Undergraduate Aid

30,602.589

33.710,000

Graduate Fellowships
Graduate Assistant Tuition
Doctorial Fellowships Tuition
Total Graduate Aid

250,000
4,050,000
525,000
4,825,000

Grand Total Financial Aid

35,427,589

(373,000)
0
0
(373,000)
3,107.41 1

Graduate Aid

• Non-Resident Tuition Differential awards

214
327
43

200,000
3,750,000
425,000
4,375,000
38,085,000

1 72
302
35

(50,000)
(300,000)
{100,000}
(450,000)
2,657,4 1 1

CHART B
201 3-14 ATHLETICS GRANTS-IN-AID REQUEST
Detailed Analysis by Sport 09/27/201 2

Men's Athletic Aid
EMU
NCAA
85.0
1 3.0
1 1 .7
4.5
9.9
1 2.6
9.9
1 46.6

85.0
1 3.0
1 1 .7
4.5
9.9
1 2.6
9.9
146.6

Sport
Football
Basketball
Baseball
Golf
Swimming
Track/Cross Country
Wrestling
Total

Room &
Board

Tuition
& Fees

$728,961
$1 1 1 .488
$1 00,339
$38,592
$84,902
$ 1 08,058
$84,902
$1 ,257,243

$862,496
$ 1 31 ,91 1
$ 1 1 8,720
$45,662
$ 1 00,455
$1 27,852
$ 1 00,455
$1 ,487,552
$2,744,795
93,61 6

5 Medicals @ $ 1 8 , 723.1 1 (tuition, fees. room and board)
Total Men's Athletic Awards
Women's Athletic Aid
EMU
NCAA
1 5.0
12.0
12.0
8.0
1 4.0
1 2.0
1 8.0
1 4.0
6.0
20.0
1 3 1 .0

1 5.0
1 2.0
1 2.0
8.0
1 4.0
1 2.0
1 8.0
1 4.0
6.0
20.0
1 3 1 .0

Sport
Basketball
Softball
Volleyball
Tennis
Swimming
Gymnastics
Track/Cross Country
Soccer
Golf
Crew
Total

Room &
Board

Tuition
& Fees

$1 28,640
$ 1 02,91 2
$1 02,912
$68,608
$ 1 20,064
$1 02,91 2
$ 1 54,368
$ 1 20,064
$51 ,456
$171 ,520
$ 1 , 1 23,457

$ 1 52,207
$ 1 2 1 ,765
$ 1 2 1 ,765
$81 , 1 77
$ 1 42,059
$ 1 21 ,765
$ 1 82,648
$ 1 42,059
$60,883
$202,942
$ 1 , 329,270

3 Medicals @ $1 8,723. 1 1 (tuition. fees, room, board)
Total Women's Athletic Awards

$2,452,727
56,1 69

1 1 4 Out of State Tuition Differentials @ $ 1 6,863
Spring Academic Aid
Men's Football Summer Aid
Women's Basketball 5th Year Aid
GRAND TOTAL ATHLETIC AWARDS

NOTE: Average projected tu,11on1fee increase of 3.5% and roomiboard ,ncrease of 3 5°·. used to calculate revised 2013-14 funding.

$2,838,410

$2,508,897
1 ,585,000
120,000
30,000
1 5,000
$7,097,307
(rounded)

BOARD OF REGENTS
EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY

SECTIO N :
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Date: October 30, 2012

RECOMMENDATION
FISCAL YEAR 2013-14 STATE CAPITAL OUTLAY PLAN

ACTION REQUESTED:

It is recommended that the Board of Regents approve the University's Capital Outlay Plan and delegate
authority to the President to submit the renovation of Strong Hall as the University's top priority capital
project for State funding should the State Budget Office accept project requests for fiscal year 20 1 3- 1 4.

STAFF SUMMARY:

The State Budget Office issued its FY 1 4 Capital Outlay instructions to University and Community
College Presidents on August 22, 2 0 1 2 . The instructions indicated that the State Budget Office is not
accepting capital outlay requests for fiscal year 2 0 1 3 - 1 4 at this time.
Institutions, however, are sti l l required to develop and post to their websites a Capital Outlay Plan by
November 2, 201 2 . The Plan includes information and data on mission, academic programming, staffing
and enrollment trends, facility assessments and implementation plans.
Although capital outlay requests are not being accepted at this time, it is recommended that the Board
delegate authority to the President to submit the renovation of Strong Hall as Eastern's top priority
capital project for state funding in the event the State Budget Office decides to accept project requests
for fiscal year 20 1 3- 1 4. The renovation of Strong Hall has been identified as the University's top capital
project priority since Eastern received the capital outlay from the State for the Pray-Harrold renovation.
Strong Hall i s part of Eastern' s Science Complex and houses the Geology and Geography and the
Physics and Astronomy departments. Built in 1 957, Strong Hall has not received any significant
improvements or renovations since its construction. The project reflects a major renovation of the
87,500 gross square foot structure including modernizing classroom and labs, lecture halls, student
commons areas, and faculty offices as well as creating flexible use spaces for both research and
instruction and replacement of architectural, structural, mechanical and electrical systems.
The Strong Hall project, along with the $90 million self-funded addition and renovation of the Science
Complex, demonstrates the University's commitment to the sciences and would result in first class
science facilities on EMU's campus.

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:

The estimated cost to renovate Strong Hall is $42 million. At a funding mix of 75% State I 25% Eastern,
the University's cost share would be $ 1 0.5 million.

ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION:

The orooosed Board actioMhas been reviewed and is recommended for Board annroval.
Univers\tv Executive O'fficer

Date

BOARD OF REGENTS
E A S TERN M I C H IG A N UNIVERSITY
RECOMMENDATION

SECTION: 19

DATE:

October 30, 2012

REFUNDING PORTIONS OF CURRENT DEBT AND NEW BORROWING
ACTION REQUESTED

It is recommended that the Board of Regents approve the attached resolution authorizing the re
financing of portions of the University's current debt and new borrowing ofup to $10 million.
STAFF SUMMARY

In June 2009, the University issued variable rate General Revenue Bonds to refinance existing bonds.
The 2009 bonds were secured by a letter of credit issued by J.P.Morgan Chase Bank (JPM).

The JPM letter of credit expires in August 2013. The University and its financial advisor began
evaluating re-financing alternatives in July and at its September 18, 2012 meeting, the Board created a
task force consisting of the Chair of the Finance, Audit and Investment Committee (Mike Morris), the
University President (Susan Martin), and the University CFO and Treasurer to the Board (John Lumm).
The Task Force was established for the purpose of investigating and recommending to the Board the
refunding of the 2009 bonds as well as recommendations to fund up to $10 million in new capital
projects.
The Task Force recommends that the Board of Regents authorize the University entering into a direct
placement with JPM for $135.8 million. The direct placement with JPM is for a three year period at a
variable interest rate of 74% (3 Month LIBOR plus 110 basis points) - equivalent to 1.0% at current
interest rates. The funds would be utilized as follows:
• $125.8 million to refund the existing variable rate bonds issued in 2009
• $1.9 million to retire higher-rate callable bonds issued in 2000 and 2002
• $8.1 million in additional borrowing to fund campus capital projects
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS

It is expected that total University debt service costs (interest and principal) will increase by
approximately $200,000 annually reflecting a $450,000 increase for the new borrowing partially offset
by $250,000 savings on the re-financed debt.
ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION

The proposed Board action h,,a,s been reviewed and is recommended for Board approval.
Uif}verijty Executive Officer

Date

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF REGENTS OF
EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE AND DELIVERY OF
GENERAL REVENUE BONDS AND
GENERAL REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS AND
PROVIDING FOR OTHER MATTERS RELATING THERETO

WHEREAS, the Board of Regents of Eastern Michigan University (the "Board") is a
constitutional body corporate established pursuant to Article VIII, Section 6 of the Michigan
Constitution of 1963, as amended, with general supervision of Eastern Michigan University (the
"University") and the control and direction of all expenditures from the University's funds; and
WHEREAS, pursuant to Board Policy 2.3, all capital projects are subject to approval by
the Board; and
WHEREAS, on May 12, 2009, the Board issued and delivered its $125,795,000
aggregate principal amount of General Revenue Variable Rate Demand Refunding Bonds, Series
2009A and Series 2009B (the “2009 Bonds”) to refund certain outstanding bonds of the Board;
and
WHEREAS, the 2009 Bonds were “integrated” for federal income tax purposes with
three outstanding swap or hedge agreements (collectively, the “Swaps”) two of which (one
LIBOR-based and one SIFMA-based) were originally executed in connection with the issuance
of the bonds refunded by the 2009 Bonds and one of which was executed in connection with the
issuance of the 2009 Bonds, the restructuring of one of which (the SIFMA-based) may now best
serve the economic interests of the University; and
WHEREAS, on February 7, 2000, and March 8, 2002, the Board issued its $9,555,000
General Revenue and Refunding Bonds, Series 2000, and $6,860,000 General Revenue Bonds,
Series 2002B, respectively, of which $1,935,000 in aggregate principal amount is now
outstanding (together with the 2009 Bonds, the “Prior Bonds”); and
WHEREAS, the 2009 Bonds were issued as variable rate bonds the interest rates on
which change on a daily basis, secured by a letter of credit issued by JPMorgan Chase Bank,
N.A. (“Chase”), which has proposed that the 2009 Bonds be refunded with new bonds that will
be purchased entirely by Chase without a letter of credit (the “Chase Terms”); and
WHEREAS, upon the advice of its financial advisors and Bond Counsel and the
recommendation of the University’s Administration, the Board approves and adopts the
recommendation of the Administration that the Prior Bonds should be refunded, the SIFMAbased Swap restructured as determined by an Authorized Officer and the refunding bonds
purchased by Chase in accordance with the Chase Terms; and
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WHEREAS, in order to best serve the needs of the University's student body, the Board
proposes to undertake the projects described on Exhibit A hereto (the "Projects") and to finance
such Projects and related costs of issuance of the bonds; and
WHEREAS, acceptance of the Chase Terms, the refunding of the Prior Bonds, the
restructuring of the SIFMA-based Swap and the financing of the Projects as herein described
are within the authority of the Board and will serve proper and appropriate public purposes.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF REGENTS OF
EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY, AS FOLLOWS:
1.
The Board hereby authorizes the issuance, execution and delivery of bonds of the
Board in registered form in one or more series, to be designated (a) GENERAL REVENUE
REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2012A to refund a portion of the Prior Bonds, and (b)
GENERAL REVENUE AND REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2012B to refund the
balance of the Prior Bonds and finance the Projects (collectively, the “Bonds”), in accordance
with the Chase Terms, as the same may be revised with the approval of, and upon such other
terms as may be approved by, the President or the Chief Financial Officer of the University (each
an “Authorized Officer”), including the following: additional or other series designations or
descriptive terms of the Bonds; the date or dates of issuance of the Bonds; the aggregate
principal amount of the Bonds not to exceed $136,000,000 (being the amount necessary to
produce proceeds sufficient, together with other available funds, to implement the refunding and
pay the costs of the Projects, to pay capitalized interest, if any, and costs incidental to the
issuance of the Bonds); restructuring the SIFMA-based Swap; approval of a Trust Indenture
pursuant to which the Bonds will be issued, and agreements with Chase conforming to the Chase
Terms; serial Bonds or term Bonds (which may be subject to redemption requirements), or both,
with the first maturity not earlier than May 1, 2013, and the last maturity not later than March 1,
2049; interest at a fixed rate (not exceeding 5.50% per annum) and/or a variable rate, with the
variable rate of interest not to exceed the lesser of the maximum rate permitted by law or the
maximum rate, if any, to be specified in the relevant Bond documents; redemption or call for
purchase prior to maturity, including the times and prices with no redemption premium to exceed
3% of the principal amount being redeemed; time for payment of interest; denominations;
manner of payment of principal and interest; terms of transfer, exchange, execution and
authentication; and whether issued in certificate or book entry only form.
2.
The Bonds shall be limited and not general obligations of the Board payable from
and secured, on a parity basis with all outstanding bonds of the Board, by a lien on the
University's General Revenues (substantially as defined in the Trust Indenture relating to the
Prior Bonds) or such components thereof and other funds as shall be determined by an
Authorized Officer (individually and collectively, the "Security"). Except as otherwise
determined by an Authorized Officer, the lien shall be on a parity basis with the liens on General
Revenues securing previously issued and outstanding bonds of the Board.
Except as specified in the Bonds or related documents, no recourse shall be had for the
payment of the principal amount of or interest or premium on the Bonds, or any claim based
thereon against the State of Michigan, the Board or any officer or agent thereof, as individuals
2
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either directly or indirectly, nor shall the Bonds and interest with respect thereto become a lien
on or be secured by any property, real, personal or fixed of the State of Michigan or the Board,
other than the Security.
Any pledge of the Security, debt service reserves and other funds shall be valid and
binding from the date of the issuance and delivery of the Bonds without physical delivery or
further act. The lien of said pledge shall be valid and binding against all parties (other than the
holders of any other bonds, notes or debt obligations secured by a parity first lien on the
Security) having a claim in tort, contract or otherwise against the Board, irrespective of whether
such parties have notice of the lien.
3.
The right is reserved to issue additional bonds, notes or other obligations payable
from and secured on a parity basis with the Bonds from the Security, upon compliance with the
terms and conditions as shall be set forth in the Bonds or related documents.
4.
The Authorized Officers, jointly or severally, are hereby authorized and directed
to select bond counsel, a financial advisor and the Trustee; to execute the Bonds by placing his or
her facsimile signature thereon, and to deliver the Bonds in exchange for the purchase price
thereof; to cause preparation of preliminary and final Official Statements with respect to the
Bonds; to perform all acts and deeds and to execute and deliver all instruments and documents,
for and on behalf of the Board and the University required by this resolution, or necessary,
expedient and proper in connection with the issuance, sale and delivery, and ongoing
administration, of the Bonds, as contemplated hereby; and to execute and deliver, for and on
behalf of the Board, any required continuing disclosure undertakings with respect to the Bonds,
in the form such officer deems appropriate.
6.
The Vice-President and Secretary to the Board of Regents is hereby authorized to
sign this resolution on behalf of the Board.
5.
All resolutions or parts of resolutions or other proceedings of the Board in conflict
herewith be and the same are hereby repealed insofar as such conflict exists.
I hereby certify that the attached is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by
the Board of Regents of Eastern Michigan University at a regular meeting held on October 30,
2012.
I further certify as follows:
1.

Present at the meeting were the following Board members:

Absent from the meeting were the following Board members:

3
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2.

The following members of the Board voted for adoption of the Resolution:

The following members of the Board voted against adoption of the Resolution:

4
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RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED:

Secretary to the Board of Regents of
Eastern Michigan University

5
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EXHIBIT A
“PROJECTS”

The Projects include the design and all related capital and incidental costs required for the
construction, expansion, and/or improvements to campus facilities, including but not limited to
University academic, dining, housing and athletic facilities, including site development, parking,
roads, furnishing enhancements, classroom technology, campus information technology and
campus utility systems.
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E A S T E R N M I C H I G A N UN I V E R S I T Y

SECTION:
DATE:

20

October 30, 2012

RECOMMENDATION
LIVONIA SITE LEASE AGREEMENT
ACTION REQUESTED

It is recommended that the Board of Regents approve a five year lease extension with Cambridge
Center Limited Patinership for EMU's Livonia campus location under the lease terms outlined
below.

STAFF SUMMARY

Eastern Michigan University offers a wide range of courses and degrees in convenient, flexible
and innovative formats - both online and at locations tlu-oughout Michigan, including Livonia.
Over the last decade, student credit hours at the Livonia site have grown from 5,544 hours in
FY02 to 8,277 in FY12.
Since 1998, the University has leased space at 9209 W. Six Mile Road for the Livonia campus
site from Cambridge Center Limited Partnership. The existing lease agreement is for 22,453 sq.
ft and expires in June 2013. The FY13 lease rate under the existing agreement is $23.00 /sq. ft.

The location and size of the Livonia site have served the University's needs well and a five year
lease extension is recommended. There is no change is sq. ft. and the lease rate is reduced by
16.5% from the current $23.00 sq. ft to an average of $19.20/sq. ft. over the five year period. The
rate reduction results in savings to Eastern of approximately $87,000 annually and $437,000 over
the five years (FYl 4 through FY 18 ) .
As part of the proposed agreement, the lease rate for the remaining eight months of the current
agreement would be reduced, saving an additional $95,500 in FY13. Also, the landlord will be
providing and paying for minor suite improvements during the next three months.

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS

The average annual lease cost for the five years is $431,100. Compared with cunent lease rate,
the proposed lease extension will result in cost savings of $532,500 over the life of the contract
including $95,500 in savings for FY13 and $437,000 in FY14 through FY18.

ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION

The proposed Board action has been reviewed and is recommended for Board approval.
Unfvei\itv E�ecuti�e Officer

Date '

BOARD OF REGENTS
E A S T E RN M I C H I G A N U N I V E R S I T Y

SECTION : 21
DATE:

October 30, 20 1 2

RECOMMENDATION
DETROIT SITE LEASE AGREEMENT
ACTION REQUESTED

It is recommended that the Board of Regents approve a five year and tlu·ee month lease agreement with
College Park RCO, LLC for a new Eastern Michigan University Detroit campus location at 7800 W.
Outer Drive under the lease te1ms outlined below.

STAFF SUMMARY

Eastern Michigan University offers a wide range of courses and degrees in convenient, flexible and
innovative formats - both on line and at locations tlu·oughout Michigan, including the city of Detroit.
Since 2000, the University has leased 6,25 1 sq. ft. of space at 1 8 1 00 Myers (Northwest Activities Center)
as the site for its Detroit campus. Student credit hours at EMU-Detroit have fallen in recent years from the
peak of 2,035 hours in FYOl to 870 in FY12 in part due to deteriorating conditions at the Northwest
Activities Center.
Eastern is committed to grow enrollment in Detroit and relocating our campus site to 1 0,983 sq. ft. of
space at 7800 W. Outer Drive will be instrumental in that effort. The proposed new site is across the street
from Wayne County Community College's No1ihwest Campus, is convenient for students and faculty,
and will heighten awareness of EMU-Detroit. At 1 0,983 sq. ft., the proposed Detroit site is about half the
size of Livonia, but the additional 4, 700 sq. ft. in classroom space will allow expanded programming.
Also, adequate parking is available. The space was previously occupied by Wayne State University.
The proposed lease with College Park RCO, LLC would commence December 1 , 201 2 and terminate
February 28, 201 8 with an option to renew for another five year term on or before February 28, 2 0 1 7. In
the interim until December 1 , 20 1 2, Eastern' s classrooms will be located in different space at the new site
under a month-by-month rental arrangement with College Park RCO, LLC. Under the proposed
agreement, the landlord is to provide and pay for approximately $ 1 1 8,000 in improvements prior to
December 1 , 20 1 2.
Over the five year and three month period, the average lease rate is $ 1 5 .36/sq. ft. compared with the
$ 1 6.60/sq. ft. Eastern is currently paying at the Northwest Activities Center. Although the rate per square
foot is lower, the $ 1 68,652 average annual lease cost at the new Outer Drive site represents a $65,000
average annual increase in Eastern's costs reflecting the increased square footage at the new site.

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS
The $65,000 increase in annual lease cost of the new Detroit campus site is more than offset by the
savings realized in the Livonia campus site lease extension.

ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION
The propg;;ed Board actio�as been reviewed and is recommended for . B oa�d approval.
. U'hiV'ersitv Executive!Officer
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SECTION: 22
DATE:

October 30 , 2012

E A STERN MICHIGAN U N I V E R S I T Y

RECOMMENDATION
UNIVERSITY POLICY:
CODE OF ETHICS
ACTION REQUESTED
It is recommended that the Board of Regents approve the Code of Ethics policy and authorize the
President and the executive team to implement and enforce the policy on behalf of the Board of
Regents.
STAFF SUMMARY
This policy sets forth the principles under which each employee is expected to perform their
duties and responsibilities. The policy defines ethical behavior as characterized by honesty,
fairness and equity in interpersonal, professional and academic relationships and in research and
scholarly activities. It defines the prohibited conduct and outlines a process for the investigation
of such conduct. The policy affirms that employees commit individually and collectively to the
highest possible standards of conduct. No ethics policy for University personnel cun-ently exists.
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS
No fiscal implications are anticipated as a result of approving this policy.
ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION
The proposed Board action has been reviewed and is recommended for Board approval.

University Executive Officer

Date

Code of Ethics
Revision Date:

Effective Date:

New Policy

Chapter Name:

Employment I Affirmative Action

Policy Name:

Ethics

Policy Number:

3.x.x.x

A PDF version of this policy is available via this link.
UNIVERSITY POLICY STATEMENT
Eastern Michigan University is committed to establishing a culture of openness, trust and integrity in
business practices. The Code of Ethics is intended to clarify each employee's responsibility to uphold the
highest standards of conduct. Effective ethics is a team effort involving the participation and support of
every faculty member and staff employee. The University is committed to protecting faculty, staff,
community partners, donors, vendors and the Institution from illegal or damaging actions by individuals.
UNIVERSITY PRACTICE
This policy sets forth the principles under which each employee of the University is expected to perform
their d uties and responsibilities. By signing this document, employees commit individually and
collectively to the highest possible standards of conduct.
E M U recognizes the right of employees to engage in activities, outside of their employment, that are
private in nature and unrelated to University business. However, a full disclosure of potential conflicts of
interest to an employee's immediate supervisor must be provided to assess and prevent conflicts of
interest from arising in accordance with University Policy 3.1.7 Conflict of Interest.
http://www.emich.edu/policies/policy.php?id=180
ETHICAL BEHAVIOR
Ethical behavior is characterized by honesty, fairness and equity in interpersonal, professional and
academic relationships and in research and scholarly activities. Ethical behavior respects the dignity,
diversity and rights of individuals and groups of people. Each employee is responsible for cond ucting
themselves in an honest and ethical manner and refrain from engaging in conduct that might damage
the reputation of the University.
PROHIBITED CONDUCT
Actions involving theft, fraud, embezzlement, kickbacks, misappropriation of funds or assets,
falsification of records, conflicts of interest, breach of confidentiality and other improprieties are a direct
violation of this policy and University Policy 11.7 Fraud and Fraudulent Activity.
http://www.emich.edu/policies/policy.php?id=228
RESPONSIBILITY FOR IMPLEMENTATION
It is the responsibility of the Chief Human Resources Officer, and the Assistant Vice President, Academic
Personnel and Contract Administration to implement this policy.
COMPLIANCE
Deans, Department Heads, Assistant Vice Presidents, Directors, Managers, and Supervisors are
responsible for monitoring compliance of this policy.

REPORTING OF VIOLATIONS
Any violations or a lleged violations of this policy are to be reported to the Chief Human Resources
Officer or Assistant Vice President, Academic Personnel a nd Contract Administration. Ethics and
compliance violations may also be reported anonymously at www.emich.edu/regents.
REVIEW OF ALLEGATIONS
Alleged ethics violations will be reviewed and investigated by either the Office of Human Resources or
the Academic Human Resources Office as determined by the nature of the allegation, or by another
office depending on the nature of the violation. In every case the a l legation will be reviewed and
investigated at a level appropriate to maintain the integrity and credibility of the investigation.
No employee will be subject to any disciplinary or retaliatory action for reporting a violation or potential
violation of this policy. However, filing known false, malicious reports will not be tolerated a nd anyone
filing such reports will be subject to appropriate disciplinary action.
INVESTIGATION HEARING
All investigations will be conducted in a confidential manner. Employees represented by a collective
bargaining agreement will be provided due process and representational rights in accordance with the
provisions of their labor agreement.
DISCIPLINARY ACTION
If the investigation substantiates the allegations then appropriate disciplinary action will be taken.
Employees represented by a collective bargaining agreement will be provided due process and
representational rights in accordance with the provisions of their labor agreement.
SCOPE OF COVERAGE
The policy governs all employees of Eastern Michigan University.
COMMITMENT
I pledge to perform my duties and responsibilities in accordance with this policy and with the highest
possible standards of conduct.

Employee Signature

Print Name

Date

BOARD OF REGENTS

SECTION: 23
DATE:

October 3 0 , 2012

E A S T E RN M I C H I G AN U N I V E R S I T Y

RECOMMENDATION
UNIVERSITY POLICY:
WORKPLACE VIOLENCE PREVENTION
ACTION REQUESTED
It is reconunended that the Board of Regents approve the Workplace Violence Prevention policy
and authorize the President and the executive team to implement and enforce the policy on
behalf of the Board of Regents.
STAFF SUMMARY
The policy promotes a safe work environment for all employees free from violence, threats of
violence, harassment, intimidation, and other disruptive behavior. It defines prohibited conduct
and provides a procedure for filing complaints in response to disruptive behavior (no tlu·eats or
weapons) and tlU'eatening/violent behavior (with threats and/or weapons). No policy on this
matter currently exists.
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS
No fiscal implications are anticipated as a result of approving this policy.
ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION
The proposed Board action has been reviewed and is recommended for Board approval.

University Executive Officer

Date

Workplace Violence Prevention
Effective Date:

New Policy

Chapter Name:

E m ployment / Affirmative Action

Policy Name:

Workplace Violence Prevention

-Revision Date:
Policy Number:

3.x.x

A PDF version of this policy is available via this link.

UNIVERSITY POLICY STATEMENT:
The Eastern Michigan U niversity policy on Workplace Violence Prevention promotes a safe environment
through the University's commitment to working with, and holding accountable, its employees to
maintain a campus and a work environment free from violence, threats of violence, harassment,
intimidation, and other disruptive behavior. This Policy is applicable specifically to the conduct of
U niversity employees. Conduct of students and of visitors or the public is addressed separately from this
Policy.
GENERAL
Eastern Michigan University does not tolerate any level of acts or threats of violence or hostility,
including but not limited to acts of intimidation, harassment, coercion, assaults, stalking, threats or
other violence committed by or against University employees, students, visitors, invitees, or other third
parties on University campuses or other property owned, leased, or controlled by the University.
The University also does not tolerate any such acts or threats of violence by University employees while
conducting U niversity business at any location, whether on or off University property, including but not
limited to while attending off-site conferences, meetings, or sporting events, or while riding in University
vehicles.
APPLICABILITY
This Policy applies to the conduct of employees while functioning in the scope and course of
employment, whether on campus property or elsewhere. This policy will also apply in the event of
certain off- d uty instances of serious violent behavior by an employee which adversely impacts upon the
suitability of the employee to perform his or her position or to have access to the University's campus or
workplace.
Students, except to the extent acting as employees of the University, will be subject to separate policies
and procedures specifically applicable to students.

PROHIBITED CONDUCT
Although it is impossible to guarantee that no violence will occur, Eastern Michigan U niversity intends to
use a l l of its available resources to protect against and prevent workplace violence. Workplace violence
of the type prohibited by this Policy takes many forms and includes, but is not limited to, murder, rape,
arson, burglary, intimidation, threats, assaults, harassment, coercion, or property damage. Specific
prohibited conduct also includes, but is not limited to, intentionally:
• Physically injuring another person;
• Engaging in verbal or physical behavior that threatens or creates a reasonable fear of injury to
another person;
• Engaging in threatening or violent behavior based on race, ethnic background, national origin,
gender, religion, or other protected status;
• Engaging in verbal or physical behavior that is intended to and does subject another specific
person to extreme emotional distress;
• Vandalizing property of the University, students, visitors, other employees, or other parties;
• Committing or threatening to commit acts of sexual assault, stalking, domestic violence, or
sexual harassment;
• Throwing objects, regardless of the size or type of the object being thrown or whether a person
is the target of a thrown object;
• Violating a protection against abuse order;
• Retaliating against a n individual who, in good faith, reports a crime or a violation of this Policy;
• Use of University property or resources such as work time, telephones, fax machines, mail, e
mail, internet or other means to harass or abuse.
Verbal behavior includes not only face-to-face communication but also any other form of
communication, including via telephone, email, website postings, or a ny other paper or electronic
format.
A violation ofthis Policy by a U niversity employee may lead to disciplinary action, up to and including
termination from employment pursuant to the applicable U niversity or collective bargaining procedures,
and may result in further legal action, including a rrest, where appropriate.
The prohibited conduct set forth above is not intended to in any way prohibit or limit the lawful acts a nd
practices of law enforcement personnel who are performing in accordance with applicable statutes and
a uthority of law.
DEFINITIONS
• Workplace: as used in this Policy means the University's main campus or any location or
property owned, leased, or controlled by the U niversity or any other location on or off
U niversity property where an employee performs any work-related duty. It also includes, but is
not limited to, a l l U niversity buildings and grounds, including parking lots, fields, classrooms,
dormitories, and other work locations, University vehicles, and travel locations while on duty.
•

Workplace violence: the National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health (NIOSH) defines
workplace violence as "violent acts (including physical assaults and threats of assaults) directed
toward persons at work or on duty."

PROCEDURE
Response to Disruptive Behavior (No Threats or Weapons)
Assess whether the individual seems dangerous. If in your best judgment he/she is upset, but not a
threat, set limits and seek assistance from your supervisor or your Human Resources Department (Staff
HR: 734.487.3430 or Academic HR: 734.487.0076).
Response to Threatening/Violent Behavior (Threats and/or Weapon)
If an individual makes threats of physical harm toward you, others, or him/herself; has a weapon; or
behaves in a manner that causes you to fear for your own or another's safety. Immediately call or have
someone call for you EMU Public Safety at 734.487.1222 or call 911.
Please reference the Emergency Response Procedures located in the Emergency Management section of
the Department of Public Safety home page on the EMU web site or go to the following link:
http://www.emich.edu/publicsafety/pdf/ERP%20Final%202010.pdf
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SECTION: 24
DATE:
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RECOMMENDATION
UNIVERSITY POLICY:
EMPLOYMENT OF RELATIVES
ACTION REQUESTED
It is recommended that the Board of Regents approve the Employment of Relatives policy and
authorize the President and the executive team to implement and enforce the policy on behalf of
the Board of Regents.
STAFF SUMMARY
Employment of relatives in the same department or work unit can cause serious conflicts and
problems with favoritism and employee morale. This policy affirms that no relative or additional
eligible adult of an EMU employee may be hired if that person will be working in the same
reporting line, either directly or indirectly, for the EMU employee. No policy on this matter
cmTently exists.
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS
No fiscal implications are anticipated as a result of approving this policy.
ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION
The proposed Board action has been reviewed and is recommended for Board approval.

University Executive Officer

Date

Employment of Relatives
Effective Date:

New Policy

Cha pter Name:

Employment I Affirmative Action

Policy Name:

Employment of Relatives

Revision Date:

Policy Number:

3. .

A PDF version of this policy is available via this link.

UNIVERSITY POLICY STATEMENT
It is well accepted that employment of relatives in the same area of an organization can cause serious
conflicts and problems with favoritism and employee morale. In these circumstances, a l l parties leave
themselves open to charges of inequitable consideration in decisions concerning work assignments,
transfer opportunities, performance evaluations, promotions, demotions, disciplinary actions, and
discharge. I n addition to claims of partiality in treatment at work, personal conflicts from outside the
work environment can be carried into day-to-day working relationships.
It is Eastern Michigan U niversity's policy that relatives of persons currently employed by E M U may be
hired only if they will not be working in the same reporting line directly or indirectly for a relative. If
a l ready employed, they cannot be transferred into such a reporting relationship. If the relative
relationship is established after employment, the divisional leader will within 30 calendar days, review
the matter and determine who will be reassigned in order to comply with this policy.
For the purpose of this policy, a relative is defined to include spouses, additional eligible adult, parents,
children, brothers, sisters, brothers- and sisters-in-law, father- and mothers-in-law, stepparents,
stepbrothers, stepsisters, stepchildren, aunts, uncles and cousins.
The President of Eastern Michigan University will a pprove all appointments associated with this policy.
RESPONSIBILITY FOR IMPLEMENTATION
The President of Eastern Michigan U niversity is responsible for the implementation of this policy. The
Chief Human Resources Officer, Assistant Vice President for Academic Affairs Personnel and Contract
Administration a nd University Supervisors are responsible for day to day implementation and
enforcement of this policy. Further, it is the individual responsibility of each University employee to
disclose relationships that may violate this policy.
SCOPE OF POLICY COVERAGE
The policy covers a l l University Employees.

BOARD OF REGENTS
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DATE:
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RECOMMENDATION
UNIVERSITY POLICY:
POLTICAL ACTIVITY
ACTION REQUESTED
It is recommended that the Board of Regents approve the revised Political Activity policy and
authorize the President and the executive team to implement and enforce the policy on behalf of
the Board of Regents.

STAFF SUMMARY
The current policy only addresses staff employees and clarifies expectations for those who are
running for political office. The revised policy includes all University employees. It also clarifies
that employees must campaign on their own time and should not represent themselves as a
spokesperson for the University. The new language also addresses how requests for a leave of
absence for public office will be determined.

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS
No fiscal implications are anticipated as a result of approving this policy.

ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION
The proposed Board action has been reviewed and is recommended for Board approval.

University Executive Officer

Date

Political Activity of Staff

'

Effective Date:

03.23. 1956

Chapter Name:

Employment / Affirmative Action

Policy Name:

Political Activity of Staff

Revision Date:

09.17. 1969
Policy N umber:

3.2.6

A PDF version of this policy is available via this link.

UNIVERSITY POLICY STATEMENT:
Political activity on the part of staff members is desirable. It is recognized as a part of the whole duty of
a citizen and should be encouraged. However, certain challenges may arise affecting the operations of
the University in connection with the candidacy for appointment to public office, for which policies and
procedures are necessary. These are stated below:
Any staff memberThe employee will discuss with his or her division leader or department head. The
division leader will , and at hisor her recommendation with inform the presidentPresident,_Q.f_such
candidacy or appointment before public announcement is made.
In the case of candidacy for any public office, it is expected that the employee staff member will
campaign on their own time. For the period of such candidacy the employee is expected to continue to
perform the full scope of his or her fu.U-EMU duties and responsibilities unless he or she is granted a
take-5-.§....leave of absence for the period of candidacy. In the case of candidacy for localor county office,
or in the case of primary candidacy for party nomination to state or national office, taking leave of
absence shall not normally be expected or required. If the staff member receives party nomination to
state or national office, thequestionof leave of absence without pa•, shall be discussed with the
department or division head and the president. The judgment as to whether or not a leave of absence
shall be �granted shall depend entirely upon the a mount of time the staff member expects to
devote to his or her candidacy and the operational needs of the university.
E m ployees seeking public office should not represent themselves as spokespersons for the university.
If a n employee staff member is elected or appointed to any public office, the question of whether or
not he or she shall take leave of absence or shall resign his or her position shall be discussed with the
department or division head and the president. In the case of part-time office, such as membership on
city councils, school boards, boards of supervisors, etc., leave of absence or resignation shall not
normally be expected or required. In the case of election or appointment to full-time office, the 5ta..ff
memberemployee m ust ffiaV take either .§_leave of absence without pay or ffiaV resign, dependent upon
the joint judgment of the department or division head and the president; provided that no leave of
absence shall be extended beyond two years. In no case will a n employee staff member be permitted
to hold a public office that presents a conflict of interest with his or her EMU position or is in violation of
the Incompatible Offices Act. In addition, all employees must comply with the federal and Michigan

Campaign Finance Acts, which prohibit the use of EMU resources to support or oppose a candidate or
the qualification, defeat, or passage of a ballot proposal.
RESPONSIBILITY FOR IMPLEMENTATION:
The Chief Human Resources Officer and Assistant Vice President. Academic Personnel and Contract
Administration are responsible for the overall implementation, administration, and interpretation of this
�
SCOPE OF POLICY COVERAGE:
This policy has University-wide application for all employees to the extent that it is not limited by a
collective bargaining agreement.

Authority for Creation or Revision:
Minutes of the Meetings of the State Board of Education, March 23, 1 956; page 80.
Minutes of the Board of Regents, September 1 7, 1 969; para . . 8 1 6M.
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U NIVERSITY POLICY STATEMENT:

Political activity is recognized as a part of the whole duty of a citizen. However, certain challenges may
arise affecting the operations of the University in connection with the candidacy for a ppointment to
public office, for which policies and procedures are necessary. These are stated below:

The employee will discuss with his or her division leader or department head. The division leader will,
inform the President of such candidacy or appointment before public announcement is made.
In the case of candidacy for a ny public office, it is expected that the employee will campaign on their
own time. For the period of such candidacy the employee is expected to continue to perform the full
scope of his or her E M U duties and responsibilities u nless he or she is granted a leave of absence for the
period of candidacy. The judgment as to whether or not a leave of absence shall be granted shall
depend upon the amount of time the employee expects to devote to his or her candidacy and the
operational needs of the university.
Employees seeking public office should not represent themselves as spokespersons for the university.
If a n employee is elected or appointed to any public office, the question of whether or not he or she
shall take leave of absence or shall resign his or her position shall be discussed with the department or
division head and the president. In the case of part-time office, such as membership on city councils,
school boards, boards of supervisors, etc., leave of absence or resignation shall not normal ly be
expected or required. In the case of election or appointment to full-time office, the employee must take
either a leave of absence without pay or resign, dependent upon the joint judgment of the department
or division head and the president; provided that no leave of absence shall be extended beyond two
years. In no case will a n employee be permitted to hold a public office that presents a conflict of
interest with his or her EMU position or is in violation of the Incompatible Offices Act. In addition, all
employees must comply with the federal and Michigan Campaign Finance Acts, which prohibit the use
of E M U resources to support or oppose a candidate or the qualification, defeat, or passage of a ballot
proposal.
RESPONSIBILITY FOR IMPLEM ENTATION:

The Chief Human Resources Officer and Assistant Vice President, Academic Personnel and Contract
Administration are responsible for the overal l implementation, administration, and interpretation of this
policy.

SCOPE OF POLICY COVERAG E :
This po l i cy has U n ive rsity-wide a p p l i catio n fo r a l l e m p l oyees to the exte nt that it i s not l i m ited b y a
co llect ive ba rga i n i ng agreeme nt.

Authority for Creation or Revisio n :
M i n utes of t h e M eeti ngs of t h e State Board of Ed ucation, M a rc h 23, 1956; page 8 0 .
M i n utes o f t h e Boa rd of Rege nts, Septe m be r 17, 1969; pa ra . . 816M .
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I
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B OARD OF REGENTS

SECTION : 26
DATE:

October 30, 201�

E A S T E RN M I C H I G A N U N I V E R S I T Y

RECOMMENDATION
UNIVERSITY POLICY:
SUPPLEMENTAL EMPLOYMENT - NONBARGAINED-FOR EMPLOYEES
ACTION REQUESTED
It is recommended that the Board of Regents approve the revised Supplemental Employment
Nonbargained-for Employees policy and authorize the President and the executive team to
implement and enforce the policy on behalf of the Board of Regents.
STAFF SUMMARY
The policy required minor housekeeping changes to reflect current position titles.
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS
No fiscal implications are anticipated as a result of approving this policy.
ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION
The proposed Board action has been reviewed and is recommended for Board approval.

University Executive Officer

Date
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A PDF version of this policy is available via this link.
U NIVERSITY POLICY STATEMENT
The University encourages the interaction of its faculty and staff with the community and with
governmental, public, a nd business organizations. Through consulting relationships and other forms of
employment, University employees can be a valuable resource.
Full-time employees of the U niversity may be permitted such supplemental employment. However, it is
understood that such employment must be outside of the employee's regular hours of work and must
not interfere with the performance of the employee's duties and responsibilities.
UNIVERSITY PRACTICE
The guidelines outlined below are intended to provide for a limited amount of supplemental
employment and to protect the integrity of the employee-University employment relationship:
Supplemental employment for non-bargained for, non-teaching employees may be permitted when:
It is outside of the employee's regular hours of work and does not interfere with the employee's
assigned duties a nd responsibilities and does not conflict with work requirements outside of the
University's regular business hours.
Prior to undertaking such outside work, the employee must report to the department head the nature,
extent, and expected duration of such work.
When, in the opinion of the appropriate .'{vice- .P.�resident/Divisional Head, the employee's supplemental
employment interferes with the performance of the employee's University duties, the employee may be
requested to end or modify such supplemental employment all as a condition of continued employment
as a full-time employee of the University.
RESPONSIBILITY FOR IMPLEMENTATION
The El<ecutive Director of Human Resources Chief Human Resources Officer, Assistant Vice President,
Academic AffairsAcademic Personnel & Contract Administration, and U niversity Supervisors have the
primary responsibility for implementing and enforcing this policy. Further, it is the responsibility of each
University employee to disclose his or her supplemental employment.
SCOPE OF POLICY COVERAGE
The policy covers all non-bargained for full-time University employees.
Regulations on this subject in regards to bargained-for employees may be found in collective bargaining
agreements.

Authority for Creation or Revision:

M inutes of the Board of Regents: June 19, 1974, para . . 1384M. December 6, 1989,
para . .4134M. June 17, 2003, para . . 6132M.
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A PDF version of this policy is available via this link.
UNIVERSITY POLICY STATEMENT
The University encourages the interaction of its faculty and staff with the community and with
governmental, public, and business organizations. Through consulting relationships and other forms of
employment, University employees can be a valuable resource.
Full-time employees of the University may be permitted such supplemental employment. However, it is
understood that such employment must be outside of the employee's regular hours of work and must
not interfere with the performance of the employee's duties and responsibilities.
UNIVERSITY PRACTICE
The guidelines outlined below are intended to provide for a limited amount of supplemental
employment and to protect the integrity of the employee-University employment relationship:
Supplemental employment for non-bargained for, non-teaching employees may be permitted when:
It is outside of the employee's regular hours of work and does not interfere with the employee's
assigned duties and responsibilities and does not conflict with work requirements outside of the
U niversity's regular business hours.
Prior to undertaking such outside work, the employee must report to the department head the nature,
extent, and expected duration of such work.
When, in the opinion of the a ppropriate Vice-President/Divisional Head, the employee's supplemental
employment interferes with the performance of the employee's University duties, the employee may be
requested to end or modify such supplemental employment a l l as a condition of continued employment
as a full-time employee of the U niversity.
RESPONSIBILITY FOR IMPLEMENTATION
The Chief Human Resources Officer, Assistant Vice President, Academic Personnel & Contract
Administration, and University Supervisors have the primary responsibility for implementing and
enforcing this policy. Further, it is the responsibility of each University employee to disclose his or her
supplemental employment.
SCOPE OF POLICY COVERAGE
The policy covers a l l non-bargained for full-time University employees.
Regulations on this subject in regards to bargained-for employees may be found in collective bargaining
agreements.

Authority for Creation or Revision:
Minutes of the Board of Regents: June 19, 1974, para . . 1384M. December 6, 1989,

para . . 4134M. June 17, 2003, para . . 6132M.
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